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Application Form

Introduction

As of 5 PM, 11/12/2020, Behavioral Health proposals for future programming will 
no longer be accepted. Under the Behavioral Health category, you may only apply 
for reimbursement of past expenses related to COVID-19.

NOTE: If your organization is awarded a grant, it is likely to be issued on a cost-reimbursement basis. This is 
determined at the contracting stage. Please consider this when developing your request and project start 
date.

The submission of an application is not a guarantee or commitment of funding. This application will be made 
public, in its entirety, including any attachments or uploads.

To see the rubric by which your organization's application will be scored, click here.

Please answer these questions FIRST, as the application will show you the required sections and fields to 
complete based on your answers.

Priority Funding Areas* 
Please select the priority area(s) most relevant to your request (see the PCF website for examples).

Behavioral Health

Reimbursement* 
The Pinellas CARES Nonprofit Partnership Fund allows requests to ask for reimbursement of expenditures related 
to COVID-19 programming within the Priority Funding Areas that took place between March 1, 2020 and the time 
of application.

Will your organization be applying for this cost reimbursement?

Yes

Future Programming* 

Will your organization be applying for funding for services to be delivered between the grant award decision 
and December 30, 2020?

As of 5 PM, 11/12/2020, you may no longer apply for future programming for Behavioral Health. You may 
only apply for reimbursement of already-rendered services related to COVID-19.

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Pinellas-CARES-Nonprofit-Partnership-Fund-Rubric.pdf
https://pinellascf.org/CARES
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Yes

Project Name* 
ACT COVID-19

EIN* 
46-0918503

DUNS Number* 
Please provide your organization's DUNS number. This is the Data Universal Numbering System.

You can search for your DUNS number here: https://www.dnb.com/duns-number/lookup.html

If you do not have a DUNS number, you can apply for one here (it is free and may take 3-4 days for approval): 
https://www.dnb.com/duns-number/get-a-duns.html

This field is optional as to not stop a qualifying organization from applying. HOWEVER, a DUNS number will be 
required if your organization is approved for a grant. Your organization should apply for a DUNS number now if it 
does not yet have one.

08027942

Mission Statement* 
The mission of the Arts Conservatory for Teens (ACT) is to educate, empower, and enrich the lives of 

youth and teens to foster healthy, productive, and responsible citizens.

Total Operating Expenditure* 
What are your total annual operating expenses?

$475,500.00

https://www.dnb.com/duns-number/lookup.html
https://www.dnb.com/duns-number/get-a-duns.html
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Amount Requested* 

Please review the entire application and its fiscal requirements before 
determining the total amount your organization will be requesting. This amount 
should include any reimbursements your organization is seeking for past COVID-
19 programming.
Typical funding requests will range between $25,000 and $250,000. Amounts above and below are accepted, 
provided the request can be justified by community need.
Requests at the higher end, or above this range must have a significant and sustained impact on the vulnerable 
community being served. Your organization's capacity for spending a large amount of funds must also be justified.

$71,198.00

If you are requesting more than $250,000 or a large capital expenditure, please speak with PCF program staff 
to discuss the feasibility of your request PRIOR TO submission.

Priority Populations* 
Please select the priority populations your programming will serve:
Note: Examples of "high-risk pandemic response jobs" include front-line workers, nurses, medical housekeeping 
staff, nonprofit employees, law-enforcement and medical first responders.

Communities of color
Children and/or the elderly
Residents with language barriers
Low-income families

Guiding Principles* 
One of the guiding principles of this fund is that it will apply a lens of equity to ensure the needs of specified 
priority populations are met.
From the priority populations you have indicated above, please explain to what extent one or more these 
populations are involved in the creation, design, and impact of your organization (or this specific project).

The Arts Conservatory for Teens' mission is to educate, empower, and enrich the lives of youth and teens 
to foster healthy, productive, and responsible citizens. For eight years, we have provided equitable access to 
underprivileged teens in our community through in-person services. Annually, ACT impacts 2,500 youth and 
teens by providing outreach in schools, recreation centers, youth detention centers, low-income 
neighborhoods, communities of color, and residents with language barriers. Amid COVID-19, our students 
and families experienced unprecedented psychological and emotional stress. Our team immediately focused 
on pivoting to a virtual platform to expand our services to ensure that our students continued access to arts 
enrichment classes and therapeutic intervention programming. We have enlisted field consultants to support 
our COVID-19 response efforts to meet the needs of a diverse population of students in Pinellas County.
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Length of time operating program/project* 
Please briefly explain how long you have been operating the program or project for which you are requesting 
funds. This funding is for expansion of existing programming or sustaining an existing expansion to meet 
community needs.

For eight years, ACT has been operating in Pinellas County, successfully facilitating life-changing 
programming for the most vulnerable in our community. The expansion to online and therapeutic 
intervention programming is in response to COVID-19.

Service Area* 
In which areas of the county do you physically provide services?

North County (locations such as Tarpon Springs, Crystal Beach, Palm Harbor)
Mid-County (locations such as Clearwater, Largo, Safety Harbor)
South County (locations such as St. Petersburg, Lealman, Kenneth City)

Impact on Organization* 
What has been the impact of the coronavirus/COVID-19 on the services of your organization? (Example: inability to 
provide enough food, unable to provide behavioral health sessions, lack of volunteerism, etc.)

ACT's Art of Health & Wellness program utilizes integrative methods to engage the mind, body, and spirit 
in distinct ways from verbal articulation alone. According to the American Art Therapy Association, 
kinesthetic, sensory, perceptual, and symbolic opportunities invite alternative modes of receptive and 
expressive communication, which can circumvent limitations a person experiences when stressed. (2017) 
Creative expression gives voice to the voiceless and empowers individual, communal, and societal 
transformation. (American Art Therapy, 2017) 

Since 2012, ACT has offered in-person programming to 2,500 underprivileged youth and teens annually 
that provides self-improvement tools, leadership development, health & wellness, and arts & cultural 
enrichment. Until recently, all of our programmings was an in-person experience designed to create closer 
personal connections and affect positive social-emotional change through art, empowerment, and enrichment 
programming. At the onset of the national lockdown, the Executive Director discontinued all in-person 
programming. COVID-19 left 445 ACT students that attended weekly workshops without a creative and 
supportive outlet during this traumatic event. Our students reported that COVID-19 negatively impacted their 
wellbeing by having poor concentration and high anxiety over the Pandemic. In response to COVID-19, we 
incurred unforeseen expenses to redesign our program delivery service methods to an online virtual 
platform, increased staff training, and created video content for weekly arts and empowerment workshops. 
We also enlisted consultants to develop and manage COVID-19 awareness and outreach content, project 
consultant, video content creator, website redesign (English and Spanish) and expanded communication and 
outreach methods. We are committed to continuing our services during this global Pandemic.

Fiscal Accountability
Federal Fund Disclosure* 
If your organization is awarded this grant, you may be considered a subrecipient of federal funding. THEREFORE, if 
you are deemed a subrecipient and your organization reaches a threshold of having spent more than $750,000 in 
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federal funding this fiscal year (this INCLUDES other federally funded programs), it will be subject to requirements 
of the Federal Single Audit Act. This will require your organization to comply with Federal Compliance 
Requirements and may necessitate additional expenses for your organization and you should prepare for this.

It is advisable that you contact a certified public accountant (CPA) or other professional for guidance.

Yes, my organization understands and assumes all liabilities/costs in regards to federal funding.

Audited Financial Statements* 
Does your organization routinely contract to have an audit conducted of its financial statements?

Yes

Most Recently Filed IRS Form 990* 
Please upload a copy of the organization's most recently filed IRS Form 990. This is absolutely required.

2018 ACT Form 990-r.pdf

Board-Approved Budget* 
Please upload your most recently board-approved budget for this fiscal year in PDF format.

ACT Approved Annual Budget FY2020-2021.pdf

Audited Financial Statements
Most Recent Audited Financial Statements* 
If your organization routinely contracts for an independent audit of its financial statements, including audits in 
accordance with Uniform Guidance and/or Chapter 10.650, Rules of the Auditor General, upload the most recent 
audit. The document should not be more than a year old.

2017 Audit Review Report FYE 2018.pdf
Please note that we are in the middle of our audit which was delayed to COVID-19. We expect to be 

completed in December 2020. Attached is the 2017 audit.

Management Letter* 
Please provide a management letter indicating any findings from your organization's most recent independent 
audit.

If there is no management letter, please explain why.

Management Letter_Communication with Governance .pdf
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Expansion or Sustaining of Exact Programming Funded by 
Another Source
Existing Contract 
If you are applying for funding to expand and/or sustain COVID-19 response programming that has already been 
funded by another source, please upload that contract here and provide a brief description of the funding source 
and relationship with the funder. Please note that any costs funded by another source are not allowed to be 
included in this application. Only the costs that are required to expand or sustain programs in excess of that 
funding will be considered for the purposes of this application.

Reimbursement of COVID-19 Related Expenses
Your organization may seek reimbursement for COVID-19 related expenditures between March 1, 2020 and the 
time of submittal of this application. This is NOT a replacement for the loss of revenue from canceled fundraising 
events or a decrease in private/public support. These are costs already incurred and paid from reserves or rainy 
day funds that were used to deliver services within this funding's focus areas, specifically in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic. These are funds that were NOT budgeted for use in this fiscal year.

Attestation* 
I affirm that this funding was expended by my organization solely for program costs in relation to COVID-19, and is 
not being requested on a unit-of-service basis. None of these costs have been reimbursed by any other funding 
source. 

Yes, I affirm the above is accurate and true.

Amount of Reimbursement Requested* 
Please specify the total amount of reimbursement your organization is seeking.

$45,314.00

Documentation of Expenses* 

Please use this template to describe the expenses for which you are seeking reimbursement. 

Upload records of expenses indicating the use of unbudgeted funds using some or all of the financial documents:

� Receipts documenting the purchase of unbudgeted items or service

� Credit Card Statements showing payment of items (with MOST account numbers REDACTED)

� Bank Statements showing payment of credit cards (with MOST account numbers REDACTED)

� Financial reports that were presented to a Board of Directors

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/CARES-Reimbursement-of-Past-Expenses-Template.docx
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� Board minutes that show authorization of withdrawal(s) from reserve funds

� Bank statements with redacted account numbers indicating usage of unbudgeted funds

If you have selected more than one Priority Funding Area in the introductory section, please ensure to include 
information that separates the expenses. If necessary, use the textbox below to indicate any clarifying information 
regarding uploaded documentation.

CARES-Reimbursement-of-Past-Expenses-ACT2020.pdf

Number Served by Funding Area* 
Please briefly specify how many people were served by the programming for which you are seeking 
reimbursement. If you are applying for reimbursement in multiple Funding Areas, be sure to provide numbers for 
each one. Numbers do not need to be unduplicated.

Example
Food: 1250 people
Behavioral Health: 250 people

Behavioral Health: 100

Funding and Usage
Client Service Delivery* 
Briefly describe the services to be delivered under the programming for which you are requesting funding. Please 
include when and where the services will occur, how the target population will access the services, and the length 
of time the services will be provided. Please specify the zip codes of participants. If not available, specify the zip 
codes of service delivery points.

As we adapt to the evolving COVID-19 Pandemic, the health and wellbeing of the youth we serve remain 
our number one priority. ACT moved all operations to an online platform. Our workshops are designed to 
increase the social-emotional well-being of young people across Pinellas County. Client service delivery 
consists of three components: artistic, therapeutic intervention, and empowerment workshops. Workshops 
are conducted during out-of-school time hours Monday thru Thursday from 5:00 PM - 7:00 PM. 100 students 
are engaged in online virtual workshops: 

Artistic Workshops: Professionally instructed one-hour virtual artistic workshops in fine and performing 
arts. Additionally, ACT provides students with a platform to demonstrate skills through virtual showcases, art 
exhibitions, performances, and theatrical stage performances. As a result of COVID-19, students were left 
isolated, stressed, and without socially enriching experiences that support positive behavioral health.

Therapeutic Intervention Workshops: six (6) 1.50 hours virtual therapeutic group intervention sessions, 
one on one counseling sessions on a need basis, virtual chat sessions with the therapist, and (2) one-hour 
youth assessments. As a result of COVID-19, therapeutic services will be provided to students to relieve the 
stress of the COVID-19 Pandemic and develop resilience skills to move forward.

 
Empowerment Workshops: six (6) 1.50 hours virtual workshops modeled after Maslow's Five-Tier Model 

Hierarchy of Needs with an intense focus on psychological and self-fulfillment needs to address mental health 
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components amid COVID-19. Through behavioral coaching and training, students will have an opportunity to 
change their narrative, how they view themselves, and how to push through their adversities and maintain 
mental health stability. 

The project will run through the end of the year. Zipcodes of students participants include 33705, 33711, 
33712, 33771, 33770, 33774, 34684, and 33755.

Communication/Outreach and Community Engagement Efforts* 
In what ways is your organization marketing and communicating its available programming to the community it 
serves? How will you ensure that your target population is aware of your services and utilizes them?

ACT has cultivated partnerships throughout Pinellas County for many years with schools, recreation 
centers, charter schools, homeschools, and organizations serving youth. Our Logistic Partner Organizations 
(LPO's) are Pinellas County Schools and the City of St. Petersburg Parks and Recreation Department. Our 
partnership with Pinellas County School includes artistic and character development services at (4) Title 1 
middle schools in south, mid, and north county. Pending a positive outcome for this grant, Pinellas County 
Schools will provide referrals to the project, and the City of St. Petersburg Parks and Recreation Department 
will host and distribute awareness and outreach materials. 

Also, we recruit and promote our services to youth and teens in the digital natives' domain via all social 
media channels (Facebook, Instagram, and TikTok). We also distribute awareness information to our 
community partners, families, supporters, and board members through our email database (4,000 actives). 
Regularly, we host virtual parent engagement sessions to ensure that our parents are aware that we can serve 
more students in our program. Additionally, ACT has produced COVID-19 related awareness and outreach 
content, redesigned the website to reduce language barriers (English and Spanish), and expanded 
communication activities to educate and reach more students and families in underserved neighborhoods 
throughout Pinellas County.

Hurricane Preparedness* 
If a hurricane-related emergency were to strike Pinellas County this year and cause an interruption in your 
organization's normal programming, how would you return to offering the programming, and continue to spend 
awarded funds from this grant?

There is an expectation that your programming will be able to continue in the event of a hurricane-related 
emergency. 

If your organization has a COOP (Continuity of Operations Plan), you may upload it here instead of providing a text 
answer. You may redact sensitive information from your organization's COOP.

ACT_EMERGENCY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES_2020.docx (1).pdf

Evidence of Insurance Coverage* 
Grantees of the Pinellas CARES Nonprofit Partnership Fund will be required to maintain appropriate insurance to 
cover the services proposed in this application. PCF will determine whether this coverage is appropriate.
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Please upload evidence of insurance policies that cover the programming for which your organization is requesting 
funds.

If there is no insurance coverage for this programming, please provide an explanation as to why.

ACT General Liability Insurance Policy 2020-2021.pdf

Insurance Requirement* 
If you are awarded a contract for the Pinellas CARES Nonprofit Partnership Fund, you will be required to list 
Pinellas Community Foundation as an additional insured through your general liability insurance. If you would like 
to begin this process now, please contact your general liability insurance carrier.

Here is the information for your carrier:
Pinellas Community Foundation
17755 US Highway 19 N
Suite 150
Clearwater, FL 33764
727-531-0058

Please check the box below to indicate that you understand and will be able to comply with this requirement.

Yes, I understand this requirement.

The Budget Summary and Budget Narrative sections are 
absolutely critical to a successful application. Improperly 
completed forms will be returned to you to fix, and will delay a 
funding decision being made on your application. Please see 
the examples in each section. To avoid rejection of your 
organization's application, PCF HIGHLY recommends you watch 
this short, instructional video as well: Budget 
Narrative/Summary Instructions

Update as of 9/25/2020: Due to new U.S. Department of the Treasury guidance, the CARES Act does not cover 
any administrative or indirect costs. The Budget Narrative and Summary have been updated. CFO, CEO, and 
other types of "administrative" time must be documented as a direct cost on an hourly basis under Personnel 
or Contracted Services. The above webinar will be updated shortly.

If your organization is awarded a grant, it is likely to be issued on a cost-reimbursement basis. Please 
consider this when developing your budget narrative and summary.

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=s5kkxsaQkCg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=s5kkxsaQkCg
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Note about Hazard Pay: Hazard pay will not automatically be approved as a budget item. Hazard pay is only for 
hazardous duty or work involving physical hardship, in each case that is related to COVID-19. Much of the 
immediate hazards of COVID-19 can be mitigated by appropriate use of PPE and/or regular sanitizing of spaces. 
The threshold for approval of hazard pay is high. It is best that you inquire in advance of adding this to a budget in 
your grant application.

If you would like to use a unit of service cost as a basis for your budget, you MUST contact Pinellas 
Community Foundation program staff FIRST to discuss this possibility.

Budget Summary* 

Please download the budget summary template HERE and complete it. If you have selected multiple Priority 
Fund Areas, you should include ALL costs in this summary.

Capital includes buildings, vehicles, equipment at $3,000 or more per item. The purchase of capital must represent 
the lower cost option for the period during which the purchased asset would be used for COVID-response 
activities. Outright purchase must be less than the cost of renting or leasing OR if renting or leasing is not available.

CLICK HERE TO SEE AN EXAMPLE OF A PROPERLY COMPLETED BUDGET SUMMARY.

Please export as a PDF and upload it.

2revised_CARES-Partnership-Fund-Budget-Summary-Grant (2).pdf

Budget Narrative* 

Please download the budget narrative template HERE and complete it. 

The budget narrative needs to do more than define the expenses. It should clearly state what is going to be 
paid using CARES funds and then justify the expenses as a program expansion (or sustaining an already 
expanded program) as a result of COVID-19. Do not bold, underline, or italicize. Use dollar amounts that 
match your Budget Summary.

If you have selected multiple Priority Fund Areas, you should include ALL costs in this narrative.

CLICK HERE TO SEE AN EXAMPLE OF A PROPERLY COMPLETED BUDGET NARRATIVE.

Capital includes buildings, vehicles, equipment at $3,000 or more per item. The purchase of capital must represent 
the lower cost option for the period during which the purchased asset would be used for COVID-response 
activities. Outright purchase must be less than the cost of renting or leasing OR if renting or leasing is not available.

Please export as a PDF and upload it.

2Revised CARES Budget Narrative Nov 2020.pdf

Capital Requests 
If you are requesting funding for capital expenses, please upload bids/estimates/rental agreements to match the 
expenses described in your budget summary and narrative.

Please upload in PDF format.

https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/CARES-Partnership-Fund-Budget-Summary-Grant.xlsx
https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Example-Budget-Summary-CARES.pdf
https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/CARES-Partnership-Fund-Budget-Narrative-Grant.docx
https://pinellascf.org/wp-content/uploads/Example-Budget-Narrative-CARES.pdf
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[Unanswered]

Logistical partner organizations (LPOs) are considered to be a critical part of service delivery strategy for this grant 
program, and using them is highly encouraged. Typical LPOs are:

� Grassroots organizations with small annual operating budgets (under $50,000)

� Churches and other faith-based organizations

� Neighborhood associations

� Social organizations/collaboratives

� Resident councils in low-income house communities

� Neighborhood family centers

� Senior centers

Their essential role is to serve as outreach, information, referral and service delivery sites for food distribution, 
legal aid counseling to prevent evictions and behavioral health services, consistent with the three priority need 
areas in the grant specifications.

Are you going to use LPOs in this programming?* 
Yes

Logistical Partner Organizations (LPOs)
LPO List* 
Please upload a list with entity names and primary contact information for each LPO. If there is additional 
information to provide, do so in the text box below.

City of St. Petersburg Parks and Recreation Dept.
Richard Craft, Recreation and Programming Superintendent
City of St. Petersburg
727.893.7897 
richard.craft@stpete.org

Pinellas County Schools
Lori Matway, Associate Superintendent
Pinellas County Schools
727.588.6033
matwayl@pcsb.org

Role in Programming* 
Please describe the role(s) of specified LPOs in the programming proposed in this application.
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City of St. Petersburg Parks and Recreation Dept.
Provides programming space for the in-person workshops.

Pinellas County Schools
Provides referrals for the project.

Behavioral Health

As of 5 PM, 11/12/2020, Behavioral Health proposals for future programming will 
no longer be accepted. Under the Behavioral Health category, you may only apply 
for reimbursement of past expenses related to COVID-19. Do not fill this area out. 

This grant will require weekly reporting on the following measures:

� Number of individuals receiving COVID-19-related behavioral health services by in person, 
telehealth, or telephone by zip code of participant or service delivery point (participant zip 
code is preferred)

This grant will require monthly reporting on the following measures:

� Percentage of target met of the projected number of people receiving COVID-19-related 
behavioral health services by in person, telehealth, or telephone.

� Monthly Progress Rate as defined by your measurement and methodology specified below

Affirmation of Reporting* 
I affirm that my organization is capable of providing weekly and monthly reports on the above measures.

Yes

Measurement - Behavioral Health* 
The Pinellas CARES Nonprofit Partnership Fund understands that behavioral health involves several dimensions of 
clinical need and organizational infrastructure.

For the purpose of this grant, applicants are asked to select ONE robust measure of progress that can be validly 
measured on a monthly basis. Please describe the instrument that you are going to use and how the results are 
interpreted to indicate progress.

The Perceived Stress Scale (PSS) is the primary tool to evaluate students' progress and programming 
effectiveness with secondary assessments to assess the overall program.
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Methodology* 
Please state how you will define and document a monthly Progress Rate for all clients in the program based on the 
selected behavior change measure(s) specified above.

Monthly Projected Progress Rate (%): Using the definition of progress described above, project the percentage of 
progress achieved on a monthly basis.

We assess students monthly utilizing the Perceived Stress Scale (PSS) assessment tool. PSS is the most 
widely used psychological instrument for measuring the perception of stress. It is a measure of the degree to 
which situations in one's life are appraised as stressful. Items were designed to tap how unpredictable, 
uncontrollable, and overloaded respondents find their lives. Individual scores on the PSS can range from 0 to 
40, with higher scores indicating higher perceived stress. Scores ranging from 0-13 would be considered low 
stress. Scores ranging from 14-26 would be considered moderate stress. Scores ranging from 27-40 would be 
considered high perceived stress. Each students' progression or digression will be documented and reported 
monthly.

Number of Clients Served During Grant Period - Behavioral Health* 
This grant period ends on December 30, 2020. Please estimate the number of clients that will be served for 
behavioral health by the end of the grant period.

100

Estimated Percentage of Progress - Grant Period* 
Please estimate % of progress on the proposed measure during the grant period.

85% progress

September Projections - Number Served - Behavioral Health* 
Please estimate the number of individuals to be served by this funding for behavioral health in September 2020.

0

September Projections - Progress Rate - Behavioral Health* 
Please project an estimated progress rate for your clients for September 2020. This is the percentage of clients that 
show improvement according to tool(s) you specified in the "Measurement" section above.

0

October Projections - Number Served - Behavioral Health* 
Please estimate the number of individuals to be served by this funding for behavioral health in October 2020.

0
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October Projections - Progress Rate - Behavioral Health* 
Please project an estimated progress rate for your clients based for October 2020. This is the percentage of clients 
that show improvement according to tool(s) you specified in the "Measurement" section above.

0

November Projections - Number Served - Behavioral Health* 
Please estimate the number of individuals to be served by this funding for behavioral health in November 2020.

100

November Projections - Progress Rate - Behavioral Health* 
Please project an estimated progress rate for your clients based for November 2020. This is the percentage of 
clients that show improvement according to tool(s) you specified in the "Measurement" section above.

40

December Projections - Number Served - Behavioral Health* 
Please estimate the number of individuals to be served by this funding for behavioral health in December 2020.

100

December Projections - Progress Rate - Behavioral Health* 
Please project an estimated progress rate for your clients based for December 2020. This is the percentage of 
clients that show improvement according to tool(s) you specified in the "Measurement" section above.

85

Funder Involvement
Which of the funders have provided a grant to your organization within the last 
three years?* 

Foundation for a Healthy St. Petersburg
Pinellas Community Foundation
Pinellas County Government
Wells-Fargo
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Other Funding Sources 
If your organization has submitted applications to other funders or has received funding in response to 
coronavirus/COVID-19 from another funder, please briefly describe below:

Foundation for a Healthy St. Petersburg $15,000
Support operations during COIVD-19 Pandemic

Creative Pinellas- $1,000
Support operations during COIVD-19 Pandemic

Corrective Action* 
Is your organization currently under a corrective action agreement with any funder (including but not limited to 
those listed above)? If yes, please explain in detail, including the status of the corrective action. If no, state No.

No

Confirmation
Signature and Affirmation* 
By submitting this application, I hereby swear that executive leadership is aware of this request for funding, and if 
this funding is approved, my organization will be able to use these funds in the manner described in the 
application.

Please type your name as an electronic signature and the date on which you are submitting this application.

Alex Harris
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File Attachment Summary

Applicant File Uploads
•   2018 ACT Form 990-r.pdf
•   ACT Approved Annual Budget FY2020-2021.pdf
•   2017 Audit Review Report FYE 2018.pdf
•   Management Letter_Communication with Governance .pdf
•   CARES-Reimbursement-of-Past-Expenses-ACT2020.pdf
•   ACT_EMERGENCY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES_2020.docx (1).pdf
•   ACT General Liability Insurance Policy 2020-2021.pdf
•   2revised_CARES-Partnership-Fund-Budget-Summary-Grant (2).pdf
•   2Revised CARES Budget Narrative Nov 2020.pdf
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990 Preparation and Financial Audit Review FY 2019/20 (Proposed completion date Nov 2020) 

Arts Conservatory For Teens | Annual Board Planning Session 2020 
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                    INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S  REVIEW  REPORT 

 
 

To The Board of Directors of 
In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc.  
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens 

 
 

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc.  
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens (“ACT”) (a Florida non profit organization) which comprises the statement 
of financial position as of August 31, 2018 and the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and cash   
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily 
applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of management.  A  
review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an  
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express and opinion.  

 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 
Accountant’s Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for 
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
AICPA.  Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting 
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to 
be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  We believe that 
the results of our procedures  provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.   
 
Accountant’s conclusion  
 
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying 
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  
 
 

                   
 

Tampa, Florida 
July 25, 2019 
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In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc.   
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens  
August 31, 2018  
 
_______________________________________________________________________                                             ____ 
 

 

Statement of Financial Position  
 
 
 

ASSETS 

 

                                           Cash and cash equivalents    $       90,047  
 

                           Property and equipment, net                        64,337   

 
       Total Assets                                         $    154,384    
                                             

   
  
 
   
         Without donor restrictions                     $    154,384 
 
                                           Total Net Assets                             $    154,384 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     See the Independent Accountant’s Review Report 

Read notes to financial statement 
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In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc.   
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens  
August 31, 2018  
 
_______________________________________________________________________                                             ____ 
 

 

                                                                             STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
                                                                FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST  31, 2018 
 
 

 
   

Without Donor 
   Restrictions 

  
 
   

  Total   
  
 

 REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:      
    Direct public grants                                                               $            172,300       $      172,300      
    Direct public support                                                                           345,444                     345,444             

           Product sales                                                                                         70,369                  70,369      
    Special events                                                                                        95,837 
    Program income membership dues                                                         5,776 

               95,837 
                 5,776 

     

           Miscellaneous income                                                                                 25                                        25       
       Total Revenue and Other Support                                                    689,751                 689,751           

 
Program and Essential Services: 

     

           Program  costs contract services, supplies                                          201,820  2             201,820     
     Travel, meetings, fleet services                                                            20,007                     20,007 

   Meals and entertainment                                                                         9,508                       9,508 
   Payroll  lease costs                                                                              237,263                   237,263 

 

     Marketing and public information                10,395             10,395 
  

  

        Total Program and Essential services              478,993          478,993    
  
    Support Services: 
        General and administrative                                      

     Fundraising  

 
 

       71,574 
               46,695 

     
 

       71,574 
       46,695 

  

              Total Support Services  
 
             118,269          118,269   

 
 

              Total Expenses              597,262 
             

  
 
     597,262  

-
  

Change in net Assets                 92,489              92,489 
 

  
 

            Net assets, beginning of year 
            Net assets, ending of year                                                                       

                             
$    
               61,895 
$           154,384 

           61,895 
$     154,384 

  

    

    
                                  See the Independent Accountant’s Review Report    

                                                          Read notes to financial statements 
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In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc.  
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens 
August 31, 2018   
             

 

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2018 

       
     Program Management            

     Services     and General            Fundraising  Total  
 
Administration                                                                                                            125                    125 
Supplies       68,341                                                     1,812               70,153 
Contract Services    118,265                                                                           118,265 
Performance Fees            1,155                 1,155 
Travel and meetings       14,202           3,382                                               17,584 
Travel fleet services         5,805                                                                               5,805 
Meals and entertainment                            9,508                                                                               9.508 
Payroll lease expense    237,263                   27,000                                             264,263 
Advertising and promotion      10,395        4,685               15,080 
Bank service charges      126                                                    126 
Registration, licenses & permits    339                                   339 
Computer & internet        1,692                               3,044                 4,736 
Continuing education         45                                                     45 
Facilities, equipment, parking               1,064                    1,064 
Insurance auto         9,522                                                         9,522 
Insurance general liability                 586                                                   586 
Insurance health               7,142                                                7,142 
Insurance professional liability                 954                                                   954 
Interest & loan fees               1,710                                                1,710 
Postage         541                                                   541 
Telecommunications                                  4,000                     1,549                                                 5,549          
Background screening        578                                                   578 
Utilities                2,500                                                 2,500 
Rent                  7,473                    15,874                23,347 
Repairs & maintenance        58                                                      58 
Charity Disbursements         20,000                20,000 
Depreciation                          16,527                                              16,527 
  Total functional expenses       $           478,993           $      71,574              $     46,695         $  597,262 
 
                                                              See the Independent Accountant’s Review Report 

     Read notes to financial statement 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (INDIRECT 
METHOD) FOR THE YEAR END August 31, 

2018 
 

  Cash flows from operating activities: 
       
       Change in net assets         $        92,489 
          Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash from operating activities: 
 Depreciation                    16,527
             
              

               Net cash from operating activities:                                                                                109,016 
 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
 
Additions to furniture, equipment, and leasehold improvements                                                   (5,932)                                                      
  Less donated assets                                                                                                                         3,600 
 
               Net cashflows from investing activities                                                                           (2,332) 
 
 
Cash flows financing activities: 
Payments on line of credit                                                                                                             (27,000) 
Proceeds from borrowings 
 
Net cash used in financing activities                                                                                         (27,000)                                                             
 
Change in cash and cash equivalents                                                                                             79,684 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                                                                               10,363 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year                                                                                         90,047 
 
Supplementary information: 

 

Interest Paid                                                   $        1,710  

  

       
            See the Independent Accountant’s Review Report 
                                                                          Read notes to financial statement 
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IN TOUCH WITH THE WORLD, INC. 
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens 
Year Ended August 31, 2018 
 

 

 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATMENTS 

 

          NOTE 1 – NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 

                 Nature of Activities 
 

In Touch With the World, Inc.  d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens  ( "ACT")  is a  non profit corporation 
incorporated  in compliance with the requirements of Florida Statute, Chapter 817.155.  
“ACT” began its operations on, September 6, 2012 and is a 501(3)(c) tax exempt  according to the 
Internal Revenue Code .  The exemption certificate dated September 6, 2012 states that contributions are 
tax deductible under section 170 of the Code. 
The Website is located at www.artconservatoryforteens.org, and the administrative offices are located in 
St. Petersburg, Florida. The mission of the organization  is to educate, empower and enrich the lives of 
youth and teens through arts education.  “ACT” is an evidence-based before and after school youth 
development organization that fosters the development of healthy, productive, responsible citizens.  
“ACT’s” most significant youth activities include the Arts Magnet Program, Character Essentials, Young 
Artists Alliance, and Teens Empowered Today.  

 
Basis of Accounting 

 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). 
“ÁCT” follows standards of accounting and financial reporting prescribed for not-for-profit 
organizations. Revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are 
classified and reported as follows: 
 

x Net assets without donor restrictions are not subject to donor-imposed restricted amounts and 
are available for use in carrying out the operations of the Organization. 

x Net assets with donor restrictions represent those amounts that are not available until future 
periods and/or donor restricted for specific purposes. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a stipulated time restriction ends and/or a purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily 
restricted net assets are reclassified tonet assets without donor restrictions and are reported in 
the statement of activities as net assets without donor restrictions.  Temporarily restricted gifts 
that are received and expended in the same fiscal year are classified as unrestricted revenue. 
Additionally, for temporarily restricted net assets that are solely time restricted, the 
Organization’s policy is not to expend such net assets until they have been collected and thus 
released from restriction. Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how 
the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived 
assets are reported as restricted support.  
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IN TOUCH WITH THE WORLD, INC. 
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens 
Year Ended August 31, 2018 
 

 

NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 
(CONTINUED) 

 
x Permanently restricted net assets are gifts from donors who place restrictions on the use of the 

funds which generally require the original principal to be invested for perpetuity. Generally,  
gains and related investment income on these gifts are available for unrestricted purposes, unless 
the donor designates restrictions on the use of earnings for a specific purpose, in which case the 
earnings are then considered temporarily restricted.  

Fair Value Measurements – Fair value is defined as the price that would be received when selling  
an asset or would be paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United 
States (“U.S. GAAP”) established a three tier hierarchy to maximize the use of observable market 
data and minimize the use of unobservable inputs and to establish classification of fair value 
measurements for disclosure purposes.  Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market 
participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk. Inputs 
may be observable or unobservable.  Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions 
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data 
obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that 
reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the assumptions market participants would 
use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on the best information available.  

 

Liquidity – Assets are presented in the accompanying statements of financial position 
according to their proximity to cash equivalency and liabilities according to their nearness to 
maturity and the expending of cash.  
Cash and Cash Equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents include cash and all highly liquid  
investments with maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. Cash equivalents 
are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. 
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid debt     
instruments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents, including 
those classified as short-term investments.  
Pledges Receivable – Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within 
one year are recorded at their net realizable value.  Unconditional promises to give that are 
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future 
cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-adjusted interest  
applicable  to the years in which the promises are received. Discount amortization is included 
in contribution revenue. Conditional promises to give are not included as support until the  
conditions are met. As of August 31,  2018 ,   contributions receivable amounts recorded was 
$0.  Investments – Investments are reported at cost, if purchased, or at fair market  value, if 
donated.  As of August 31, 2018, the investment value recorded was $0. 
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NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 
(CONTINUED) 

 
Inventory – Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market.  Cost is determined using the 
first-in, first-out method.  
 
Furniture, Equipment,  Leasehold Improvements and Vehicles  – Furniture, equipment,  
leasehold improvements and vehicles  are stated at cost if purchased or at estimated fair 
value at the date of receipt if acquired by gift.  Depreciation is recorded over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets using the straight-line method.  Vehicle depreciation is recorded 
using a useful life of 5 years.   
 
Debt  - Line of Credit – The Organization obtained a working capital line of credit from the 
Bank of  the Ozarks on October 26, 2016, up to a maximum amount of  $60,000, with a 12 
month maturity date  of October 26, 2017. Repayment terms of interest only due monthly 
with outstanding principal due at maturity.  On   June 17, 2017  a draw on the line of credit 
in the amount of  $28,000 was disbursed. A loan origination fee of $500  was paid  on 
August 25, 2017. The loan was paid off December 21, 1017. A UCC filing by the Bank of 
the Ozarks  dated September 24, 2018 evidences the termination of the loan.  On November 
8, 2018 a new working capital line of credit was established with First Home Bank in the 
amount of $50,000. As of the end of August 31, 2018, the line of credit was 0.  

 
Revenue Recognition – In the absence of donor restrictions, contributions are considered to 
be available for unrestricted use and related income is recognized in the period when the 
contribution, pledge, or unconditional promise to give is received.  

 
Contributed Services – Contributed services are recognized as in-kind revenue at their 
estimated value when they create or enhance nonfinancial assets, or they require special 
skills which would need to be purchased if they were not donated. There were no  
contributed services recorded as of August 31, 2018.  
 
Volunteer Hours – Volunteers have made significant contributions to the furtherance of the 
Organization’s mission.    A dollar valuation of their effort is not reflected in the statement 
of activity because they do not meet the necessary criteria for recognition under US GAAP.  
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NOTE 1 - NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - 
(CONTINUED) 

 
 

Advertising Costs – The Organization records advertising costs as expense when paid and are 
reported under program, general and administrative, fundraising, or program services expense in the  
statement of financial position.  Advertising costs related to long term specific events and classes 
are capitalized and amortized in the period of the event or class 
 
Income Taxes – The Organization is exempt from income tax under Section 501©(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  Management believes that “ACT” satisfies the requirements of a tax exempt 
organization as of August31, 2018.   

 
 

Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States generally accepted 
accounting principles requires the use of estimates that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues, expenses and various disclosures. These estimates are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience. Accordingly, actual results could differ from the 
estimates used.  

 
 

Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk 
 

Financial instruments which potentially subject the Organization to concentrations of credit 
risk, as defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
consist primarily of bank accounts and certificates of deposits with balances in excess of 
amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ($250,000) and contributions 
receivable. Management of the Organization evaluates the financial stability of its 
depositories and considers the risk of loss to be remote. 

 

NOTE 2  NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTONS 
 

The Organization’s net assets are generally unrestricted, except for reserve funds held for special 
purposes which require approval by the board.  
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NOTE 3 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 

The Organization capitalizes all property and equipment to which it has title or other evidence of 
ownership. Capitalized property and equipment is recorded at cost or fair value at time of donation 
and depreciated using the appropriate method for the asset based on its useful life. As of August 
31, 2018, property, plant and equipment assets purchases were as follows: 
 
 Furniture and fixtures                        $ 2,889 
 Computer equipment                          10,700 
 Vehicles                                              70,000  
 Equipment – Music                        2,500 
 Equipment – Other                        1,998 
   Less accumulated depreciation     ($23,750) 
Net Property and Equipment           $  64,337 
 
Depreciation amounted to $16,527 for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2018 and accumulated 
depreciation amounted to  $23,750.  
Donated assets amounted to $14,631 as of August 31, 2018. 
 
NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND CREDIT CARD PAYABLES 

 

The accounts payable balance represents amounts due to various vendors but not yet paid. As of 
August  31, 2018, the accounts payable including credit card balances was $0. 
 
 NOTE 5: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

 
Short Term Contractual Agreements 
The Organization  periodically enters into various short-term contractual agreements with outside 
vendors and service providers to help with the Organization’s administration and program services. 
These contracts have different expiration dates and renewal terms. 

 
        NOTE 6: AVAILABILITY AND LIQUIDITY  

 
“Act’s” goal is to maintain financial assets to meet 90 days of operating expenses (approximately  
$85,914).   As of August 31, 2018,  cash and cash equivalents amounted to $90,047. 
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NOTE 6: LEGAL MATTERS 

 
        There were no known pending legal matters as of August 31, 2018.  
        

NOTE 7: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

Management Evaluation of Subsequent Events 
 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 25, 2019, the date the financial 
statements were available to issue. A line of credit in the amount of $50,000 with First Home 
Bank was established November 8, 2018 as discussed in Note 1. Debt. 
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September 5,  2019 

To the Board of Directors 
In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc. 
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens (ACT) 
1111 18th Avenue South 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33705 
 

We have reviewed the financial statements of  In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc. d/b/a 
Arts Conservatory for Teens (ACT) for the year ended August  31, 2018, and have issued our report 
thereon dated July 25, 2019.  Professional standards require that we communicate to you the following 
information related to our review.  

Review Findings 

• Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practice - Management is responsible for the selection and use 
of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant accounting policies used by In Touch with 
Communities Around the World, Inc. d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens (ACT) .  are described in 
Note 1 to the financial statements.  

• The Quickbooks Online accounting financial statements need to be adjusted and aligned with the 
required accounting format for nonprofit organizations. For example appropriately segregating 
costs into program services, fundraising and general and administrative revenues and expenses.  

• The Quickbooks Online financial statements will require adjustments through December 31, 2018 
before the 2018 Federal tax return Form 990 can be completed. The organization’s 2017 review 
report was conducted on a fiscal year basis ending August 31, 2018.  The tax return is prepared 
on a calendar year basis ending December 31, 2018.  

• Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  A procedure and policy for 
management estimates of value and depreciation on purchased and donated assets needs to be 
implemented.  

• Policies and procedure for  loans, donated assets and credit card purchases including cash back  
should be implemented. 

 



 
 

 
To the Board of Directors 
In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc. d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens (ACT) 
Page 2 
 

 
• Management Representations -We have requested certain representations concerning 

management’s  quantitative and qualitative information and documentation   presented in the 
performance of this review engagement. These representations are included in the Management 
Representation Letter dated July 25, 2019.  

This information is intended solely for the use of In Touch with Communities Around the World, Inc. 
d/b/a Arts Conservatory for Teens, and its management and not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than the parties specified by management.  

 

Very truly yours 

 

Waters CPA Group, P,A,      

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Reimbursement Template 
Summary of Expenses 

 
For each unbudgeted/unplanned, but COVID-19 related expenditure, provide the following: 
 

● Receipt or invoice for the purchase 
● Method of payment for the purchase  
● If paid via credit card or credit arrangement, provide a copy of the credit card statement with the 

appropriate charge (for security REDACT most account numbers) 
● Include bank statement demonstrating paying of credit card (for security REDACT most account 

numbers)  
 
You may add additional rows to the table below in order to properly document expenses. Keep items and 
documentation in the item order in your summary chart to easily follow the documentation. 

 
 

 
Total Reimbursement Request:  $ 45,314.00 

  

1 

Item Number Quantity Item Description Total Cost 

1  8 Business Advancement Solutions, Herbert Murphy, Consultant $ 27,500.00 

2 6 Communications and Outreach Specialist $ 10,650.00 

3 1 Website Designer $ 2,564.00 

4 3 Video content creator for student training videos $ 3,800.00 

5 1 Professional photographer website content $ 800.00 

6    

7    

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    



o ember

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto O e po e ort October

mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v
Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



October

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto O e po e ort September

mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v
Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v

September

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto t t e b e co t er ce or mo t o t

Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



t

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto O e po e ort

mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v
Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto t t e b e co t er ce or mo t o e

Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



e

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto t t e b e co t er ce or mo t o

mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v
Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto O e po e ort pr

mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

v
Ser ce e ere

v
ro ect oor t o

v
c eme t

v
S b co tr ct eme t

v
rc roc reme t eme t
O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t

o r per o r



pr

O

o c t omm te ro
e or c

t e e So t
S t eter b r

or pro e o er ce re ere co ecto O e po e ort rc

Ser ce e ere
v ro ect oor t o
v c eme t
v S b co tr ct eme t
v rc roc reme t eme t
v O S bco tr ctor reeme t eme t mo t e

e ceme t So t o
erbert rp
ec t e o t t
t er e t
m rbor

CONFIDENTIAL

o r per o r



Soul Media & Events, LLC

2918 W. Gandy Blvd. #A

Tampa, FL 33611

(813) 283-8035 

emily@soulmediaglobal.com 

Invoice
Submitted on 11/1/20

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
Arts Conservatory for Teens Soul Media & Events LLC 701BACT_SM

P.O. Box 35424 | St. Petersburg FL 33705

Due date
(Upon Receipt)

Description of Services Qty Unit price Total price

Marketing Strategy and Execution $1,500.00

Social Media Strategy and Execution 

Graphic design 

Website Design and Updates 

Email Marketing 

Notes: Subtotal

Adjustments

$1,500



Soul Media & Events, LLC

2918 W. Gandy Blvd. #A

Tampa, FL 33611

(813) 283-8035 

emily@soulmediaglobal.com 

Invoice
Submitted on 10/4/20

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
Arts Conservatory for Teens Soul Media & Events LLC 601BACT_SM

P.O. Box 35424 | St. Petersburg FL 33705

Due date
(Upon Receipt)

Description of Services Qty Unit price Total price

Marketing Strategy and Execution $1,500.00

Social Media Strategy and Execution 

Graphic design 

Website Design and Updates 

Email Marketing 

Notes: Subtotal

Adjustments

$1,500



Soul Media & Events, LLC

2918 W. Gandy Blvd. #A

Tampa, FL 33611

(813) 283-8035 

emily@soulmediaglobal.com 

Invoice
Submitted on 9/1/20

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
Arts Conservatory for Teens Soul Media & Events LLC 402BACT_SM

P.O. Box 35424 | St. Petersburg FL 33705

Due date
(Upon Receipt)

Description of Services Qty Unit price Total price

Marketing Strategy and Execution $1,500.00

Social Media Strategy and Execution 

Graphic design 

Website Design and Updates 

Email Marketing 

Notes: Subtotal

Adjustments

$1,500



Soul Media & Events, LLC

2918 W. Gandy Blvd. #A

Tampa, FL 33611

(813) 283-8035 

emily@soulmediaglobal.com 

Invoice
Submitted on 8/30/20

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
Arts Conservatory for Teens Soul Media & Events LLC 401BACT_SM

P.O. Box 35424 | St. Petersburg FL 33705

Due date
(Upon Receipt)

Description of Services Qty Unit price Total price

Marketing Strategy and Execution $1,500.00

Social Media Strategy and Execution 

Graphic design 

Website Design and Updates 

Email Marketing 

Notes: Subtotal

Adjustments

$1,500



Soul Media & Events, LLC

2918 W. Gandy Blvd. #A

Tampa, FL 33611

(813) 283-8035 

emily@soulmediaglobal.com 

Invoice
Submitted on 7/15/20

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
Arts Conservatory for Teens Soul Media & Events LLC 301BACT_SM

P.O. Box 35424 | St. Petersburg FL 33705

Due date
(Upon Receipt)

Description of Services Qty Unit price Total price

Marketing Strategy and Execution $650.00

Social Media Strategy and Execution 

ACT Collateral Development 

Website Design and Updates 

Notes: Subtotal

Adjustments

$650



Soul Media & Events, LLC

2918 W. Gandy Blvd. #A

Tampa, FL 33611

(813) 283-8035 

emily@soulmediaglobal.com 

Invoice
Submitted on 6/11/20

Invoice for Payable to Invoice #
Arts Conservatory for Teens Soul Media & Events LLC 201BACT_SM

P.O. Box 35424 | St. Petersburg FL 33705

Due date
(Upon Receipt)

Description of Services Qty Unit price Total price

Marketing Strategy and Execution $1,000.00

Social Media Strategy and Execution 

ACT Collateral Development 

Website Design and Updates 

Notes: Subtotal

Adjustments

$1,000



DDaavviiss  PPhhoottooggrraapphhyy  
2029 Bonita Way South • St. Petersburg, FL 33712 

(727) 452-9613 Cell 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
Service Description: 

 
 
 
Payment Information:     
            
Your business is highly valued. Please remit payment by money order or check to:  
   
  

Payable to:  Chris Davis  
 Mail to:  Davis Photography 
    ATTN: Chris Davis, Owner 
    2029 Bonita Way South 
    St. Petersburg, Fl 33712 

  

Photo Shoots Date 
Rate 
Per 

Hour 
Hours Total 

ACT staff photo shoot      
  5 Days  (4 Tampa Location / 1 St Pete 
Location) 

8/21, 8/25, 
8/26, 8/28, 
9/10 

  $800.00 

     
     
     

Sub-Total  $800.00 
Tax Exempt   

Total  $800.00 
   

Invoiced To: ACT 
  Arts Conservatory for Teens 

Invoice #: 796 
Invoice Date: 09/04/2020 
 



GNK Studios LLC
10113 Hawk Storm Avenue
Tampa, Florida 33610
8132336763
gnkstudios318@gmail.com

INVOICE

INV0043

DATE

10/08/2020

DUE DATE

10/08/2020

BALANCE DUE

USD $0.00

BILL TO

Arts Conservatory for Teens
+1 (706) 402-3367

alexh.act@gmail.com

DESCRIPTION RATE QTY AMOUNT

YCA Conference promo videos
Recording + editing = full day rate

$600.00 1 $600.00

TOTAL $600.00
PAID -$600.00

10/27/2020

BALANCE DUE USD $0.00



INVOICE
Inspired Design Plus

40 E. Main St. #1
Springville, New York 14141

United States

www.inspireddesignplus.com

BILL TO
Emily Harris
Emily Harris

813-283-8035
emily@soulmediaglobal.com

Invoice Number: 289

Invoice Date: July 20, 2020

Payment Due: August 4, 2020

Amount Due (USD): $0.00

Items Quantity Price Discount

Website Build for ACT 1 $2,400.00 $2,400.00

Squaresapce Hosting - Reimbursement for annual
fee

1 $144.00 $144.00

Squarespace Domain - Reimbursement for annual
fee

1 $20.00 $20.00

Total: $2,564.00

Payment on September 18, 2020 using a check: $2,564.00

Amount Due (USD): $0.00

Notes / Terms
Please Send Check To:

Inspired Design Plus
40 E. Main St. #1
Springville, NY 14141

OR
Pay via PayPal email address jessica@inspireddesignplus.com

Thank you for your business!

jessicaflores
Paid - Smaller



1/1

Check Details
Check Number 2415

Date Posted 08/17/20

Check Amount $1,550.00

For your security, information like account numbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of checks have been removed from the
images. 
You can see full or partial fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

Equal Housing Lender



1/1

Check Details
Check Number 2418

Date Posted 10/27/20

Check Amount $600.00

For your security, information like account numbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of checks have been removed from the
images. 
You can see full or partial fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

Equal Housing Lender



1/1

Check Details
Check Number 2417

Date Posted 09/21/20

Check Amount $1,650.00

For your security, information like account numbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of checks have been removed from the
images. 
You can see full or partial fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

Equal Housing Lender



1/1

Check Details
Check Number 2414

Date Posted 09/22/20

Check Amount $2,564.00

For your security, information like account numbers, signatures, and the ability to view the backs of checks have been removed from the
images. 
You can see full or partial fronts and backs of the images by using the link at the top of the window.

Equal Housing Lender



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
April 30, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 5

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

Activity summary
Beginning balance on 4/1 $3,416.02
Deposits/Credits 28,783.30
Withdrawals/Debits -  26,507.70

Ending balance on 4/30  $5,691.62

Average ledger balance this period $8,957.18

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo store. 
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April 30, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 5

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
4/3 Cospachdebit 2020-04-01 200401 139440

Rmr*IV*Arts20Ts18**17590.12*17590.12*0\Dtm*003*20
17,590.12

4/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
200402 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

24.46

4/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200403
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

991.00

4/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200403
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

2,000.00 17,990.68

4/9 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib07Xhmmnt on 04/09/20

500.00

4/9 2410 Check 3,500.00 13,990.68
4/10 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200410

12232984 Arts Conservatory for
1,053.74

4/10 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200410
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.18 10,640.76

4/13 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200412 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

103.18

4/13 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 041320
227050466022888 IN Touch with Communit

829.79

4/13 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 041320
227050466022892 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.28

4/13 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 041320
227050466022822 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.30

4/13 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 041320
227050466022896 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.30

4/13 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 041320
227050466022890 IN Touch with Communit

1,125.74

4/13 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 041320
227050466022894 IN Touch with Communit

1,306.82 4,240.71

4/16 Paypal Inst Xfer 200416 Anthonymurp Act 200.00 4,040.71
4/20 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200417 496263139883 Arts

Conservatory for
45.00

4/20 Wire Trans Svc Charge - Sequence: 200420023271 Srf#
Ow00000756664171 Trn#200420023271 Rfb#
Ow00000756664171

30.00

4/20 WT Fed#02041 First Home Bank /Ftr/Bnf=First Home Bank Srf#
Ow00000756664171 Trn#200420023271 Rfb#
Ow00000756664171

1,006.92 3,048.79

4/21 Sbad Treas 310 Misc Pay 042120 Eidg:3300627180
Nte*Pmt*Eidg:3300627180\

10,000.00 13,048.79

4/22 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200421 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

10.00 13,058.79

4/24 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib07Zt3Q9D on 04/24/20

500.00

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

307.50

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

371.25

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

632.25

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

716.25

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

727.50

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

737.50

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

860.00

4/24 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200424
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74
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Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
May 31, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 5

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

Statement period activity summary
Beginning balance on 5/1 $5,691.62
Deposits/Credits 47,785.00
Withdrawals/Debits -  39,537.00

Ending balance on 5/31  $13,939.62

Average ledger balance this period $10,664.86

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo branch. 
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May 31, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 5

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
5/1 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200430 496263139883 Arts

Conservatory for
20.00

5/1 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Tax May 01 12232984
Arts Conservatory for

1,424.64 4,286.98

5/4 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
200502 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

28.16

5/4 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200504
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

991.00

5/4 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200504
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

3,000.00 267.82

5/5 WT Fed#00585 City National Bank /Org=IN Touch with Comm
Around The Srf# 200504170856VT00 Trn#200505134202 Rfb#

20,000.00

5/5 Wire Trans Svc Charge - Sequence: 200505134202 Srf#
200504170856VT00 Trn#200505134202 Rfb#

15.00 20,252.82

5/7 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib083x9Hfn on 05/07/20

200.00

5/7 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib083Zq84x on 05/07/20

250.00 19,802.82

5/8 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200508
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.76

5/8 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200508
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.17 16,452.89

5/11 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 051120
227053266023394 IN Touch with Communit

13,776.82 2,676.07

5/14 Online Transfer From IN Touch with Communities Business
Checking xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib084Zny7J on 05/14/20

20,000.00 22,676.07

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

832.50

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

867.50

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,162.50

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,162.50

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,178.75

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,222.50

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,500.00

5/15 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200515
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,984.40 12,765.42

5/18 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200517 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

45.00

5/18 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 051820
227053966020894 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.28

5/18 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 051820
227053966020890 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.30

5/18 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 051820
227053966020892 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.30 9,569.54

5/22 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200521 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

10.00

5/22 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200522
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74

5/22 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200522
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.18 6,229.62

5/26 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200524 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

200.00 6,429.62
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Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
June 30, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 6

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

Statement period activity summary
Beginning balance on 6/1 $13,939.62
Deposits/Credits 76,166.69
Withdrawals/Debits -  29,804.91

Ending balance on 6/30  $60,301.40

Average ledger balance this period $37,094.88

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo branch. 
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June 30, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 6

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
6/1 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200530 496263139883 Arts

Conservatory for
2,520.00

6/1 < Business to Business ACH Debit - J Thor Productio Sale 200530 IN
Touch

3,166.15 13,293.47

6/2 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200601 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

20.00

6/2 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib0883Gc8R on 06/02/20

300.00

6/2 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200602
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

991.00

6/2 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200602
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

3,000.00 9,022.47

6/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
200602 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

67.54

6/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 060320
227055566183032 IN Touch with Communit

1,080.30 7,874.63

6/4 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200603 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

50.00

6/4 WT Fed#00107 City National Bank /Org=IN Touch with
Communities Arou Srf# 200604085820VT00 Trn#200604053589
Rfb#

30,000.00

6/4 Wire Trans Svc Charge - Sequence: 200604053589 Srf#
200604085820VT00 Trn#200604053589 Rfb#

15.00

6/4 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib088Fdhl5 on 06/04/20

3,600.00 34,309.63

6/5 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200604 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

100.00

6/5 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200605
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74

6/5 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200605
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.18 31,059.71

6/8 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200605 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

25.00

6/8 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200606 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

51.69

6/8 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200607 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

1,126.69

6/8 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib0892Hzsm on 06/08/20

500.00 31,763.09

6/9 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200608 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

10.00 31,773.09

6/10 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200610 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

1,100.00 32,873.09

6/11 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200610 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

25.00 32,898.09

6/12 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200611 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

30.00

6/12 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200612
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,000.00 31,928.09

6/15 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200612 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

691.04

6/15 Online Transfer From IN Touch with Communities Business
Checking xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib08B7Xrzr on 06/15/20

13,500.00

6/15 Wire Trans Svc Charge - Sequence: 200615134004 Srf#
Ow00000826753097 Trn#200615134004 Rfb#
Ow00000826753097

30.00

6/15 WT Fed#01729 First Home Bank /Ftr/Bnf=First Home Bank Srf#
Ow00000826753097 Trn#200615134004 Rfb#
Ow00000826753097

665.36
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Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
July 31, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 5

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

Statement period activity summary
Beginning balance on 7/1 $60,301.40
Deposits/Credits 34,687.00
Withdrawals/Debits -  32,577.27

Ending balance on 7/31  $62,411.13

Average ledger balance this period $63,325.57

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo branch. 
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July 31, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 5

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
7/2 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200701 496263139883 Arts

Conservatory for
2,500.00

7/2 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200702
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

446.49

7/2 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200702
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

3,000.00 59,354.91

7/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
200702 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

123.04

7/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200703
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74

7/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200703
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,116.52

7/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 070320
227058566103366 IN Touch with Communit

1,298.64

7/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200703
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

3,287.17 52,475.80

7/6 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200705 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

25.00 52,500.80

7/10 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200709 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

21,150.00 73,650.80

7/14 2411 Cashed Check 2,000.00
7/14 2413 Check 6,000.00 65,650.80
7/16 Online Transfer From IN Touch with Communities Business

Checking xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib08Hhq5SC on 07/16/20
6,000.00 71,650.80

7/17 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200716 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

122.00

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

200.00

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

400.00

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

600.00

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

650.00

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.76

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,116.52

7/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200717
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.19 65,456.33

7/20 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200717 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

45.00

7/20 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 072020
227060266010868 IN Touch with Communit

1,298.66 64,202.67

7/22 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200721 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

10.00 64,212.67

7/27 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200725 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

25.00 64,237.67

7/28 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200727 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

10.00

7/28 Online Transfer From IN Touch with Communities Business
Checking xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib08Kdhbf7 on 07/28/20

4,800.00 69,047.67

7/30 Online Transfer to IN Touch with Communities Business Checking
xxxxxx3716 Ref #Ib08Kqvrjc on 07/30/20

1,000.00

7/30 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Tax Jul 30 12232984 Arts
Conservatory for

179.11 67,868.56

7/31 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200731
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74
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Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
August 31, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 6

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

 IMPORTANT ACCOUNT INFORMATION

We're making important changes to the terms and conditions of several of our accounts. If these changes affect you, a detailed 
message is included below your transaction detail for each impacted account.

Statement period activity summary
Beginning balance on 8/1 $62,411.13
Deposits/Credits 2,113.95
Withdrawals/Debits -  23,299.45

Ending balance on 8/31  $41,225.63

Average ledger balance this period $51,498.28

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Sheet Seq = 0334045
Sheet 00001 of  00003
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August 31, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 6

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo branch. 

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
8/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 080320

227061666014998 IN Touch with Communit
1,298.58

8/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
200802 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

713.33 60,399.22

8/4 Mobile Deposit : Ref Number :914040198621 1,000.00
8/4 Purchase authorized on 08/03 National Indemnity 866-920-5220

NE S460216765274879 Card 8204
2,060.38

8/4 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200804
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

2,000.00 57,338.84

8/5 Purchase authorized on 08/04 Teachable.Com Httpsteachabl NY
S580217788228112 Card 8204

119.00 57,219.84

8/6 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200805 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

25.00

8/6 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200806
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

61.60 57,183.24

8/7 Wire Trans Svc Charge - Sequence: 200807099768 Srf#
Ow00000898830498 Trn#200807099768 Rfb#
Ow00000898830498

30.00

8/7 WT Fed#08953 First Home Bank /Ftr/Bnf=First Home Bank Srf#
Ow00000898830498 Trn#200807099768 Rfb#
Ow00000898830498

334.38 56,818.86

8/10 Purchase authorized on 08/07 Intuit *Payroll 888-537-7794 CA
S300220378879061 Card 8204

64.00

8/10 Recurring Payment authorized on 08/07 Adobe Inc 800-8336687
CA S300220547285536 Card 8204

14.99

8/10 Recurring Payment authorized on 08/08 Int*Quickbooks Onl
800-446-8848 CA S300221391757564 Card 8204

70.00 56,669.87

8/11 Purchase authorized on 08/10 Social Solutions G 443-4603375 TX
S300223499358932 Card 8204

597.06 56,072.81

8/12 Wire Trans Svc Charge - Sequence: 200812068655 Srf#
Ow00000905437658 Trn#200812068655 Rfb#
Ow00000905437658

30.00

8/12 Purchase authorized on 08/11 Lock Up Self Stora 727-5020044 FL
S300224636718401 Card 8204

327.14

8/12 WT Fed#06295 First Home Bank /Ftr/Bnf=First Home Bank Srf#
Ow00000905437658 Trn#200812068655 Rfb#
Ow00000905437658

324.22 55,391.45

8/13 Purchase authorized on 08/11 7-Eleven 22724 Tampa FL
S460224767425037 Card 8204

28.00

8/13 Purchase authorized on 08/12 Bestbuycom80627661
888-Bestbuy MN S460225701477620 Card 8204

53.17 55,310.28

8/14 Purchase Return authorized on 08/12 Vanillagift.Com Atlanta GA
S620227548893484 Card 8204

123.95 55,434.23

8/17 Recurring Payment authorized on 08/15 Adobe Acropro Subs
800-443-8158 CA S460228268063119 Card 8204

101.95

8/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200817
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74

8/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200817
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,116.52

8/17 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200817
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.17

8/17 2415 Check 1,550.00 49,315.85
8/18 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200817 496263139883 Arts

Conservatory for
45.00
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Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
September 30, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 7

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

 IMPORTANT ACCOUNT INFORMATION

We're making important changes to the terms and conditions of several of our accounts. If these changes affect you, a detailed 
message is included below your transaction detail for each impacted account.

Statement period activity summary
Beginning balance on 9/1 $41,225.63
Deposits/Credits 12,315.00
Withdrawals/Debits -  26,563.29

Ending balance on 9/30  $26,977.34

Average ledger balance this period $29,333.86

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Sheet Seq = 0420143
Sheet 00001 of  00004



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

September 30, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 7

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo branch. 

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
9/1 Purchase authorized on 08/31 Hubspot Inc. 888-482776 MA

S380244798217356 Card 8204
250.00

9/1 Purchase authorized on 08/31 Hubspot Inc. 888-482776 MA
S580244798295344 Card 8204

450.00

9/1 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 090120
227064566016246 IN Touch with Communit

1,298.60

9/1 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200901
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

1,500.00

9/1 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200901
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

3,000.00 34,727.03

9/2 Recurring Payment authorized on 08/31 Adobe Creative Clo
408-536-6000 CA S300244794180926 Card 8204

52.99

9/2 Purchase authorized on 08/31 Lock Up Self Stora 727-5020044 FL
S460245189361060 Card 8204

323.11

9/2 Purchase authorized on 09/01 Station House St. 7278958260 FL
S460245329986344 Card 8204

180.00

9/2 Purchase authorized on 09/01 Indeed 203-564-2400 CT
S580245560210821 Card 8204

18.35

9/2 Purchase authorized on 09/02 Publix Super Mar 250 3Rd St
Petersburg FL P00300246646561218 Card 8204

126.95

9/2 Purchase authorized on 09/02 USPS PO 11826107 1750 16T Saint
Petersb FL P00300246668827117 Card 8204

24.00 34,001.63

9/3 Purchase authorized on 09/02 Station House St. 7278958260 FL
S460246758895631 Card 8204

100.00

9/3 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
200902 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

51.41 33,850.22

9/8 Recurring Payment authorized on 09/04 Teachable.Com
Httpsteachabl NY S460248824802268 Card 8204

119.00

9/8 Purchase authorized on 09/05 Chevron 0378729 Tampa FL
S380249690240502 Card 8204

31.00

9/8 Recurring Payment authorized on 09/07 Adobe Inc 800-8336687
CA S380251330595414 Card 8204

14.99 33,685.23

9/9 Recurring Payment authorized on 09/08 Int*Quickbooks Onl
800-446-8848 CA S460252398188380 Card 8204

70.00

9/9 Purchase authorized on 09/08 Intuit *Payroll 888-537-7794 CA
S580252510447338 Card 8204

48.00 33,567.23

9/11 Purchase authorized on 09/10 Panera Bread #2033 727-895-5441
FL S460254523903402 Card 8204

35.31

9/11 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200911
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,137.50

9/11 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200911
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,200.27

9/11 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 200911
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.17 28,897.98

9/14 Purchase authorized on 09/13 7-Eleven Tampa FL
P00000000336803213 Card 8204

28.00

9/14 Purchase authorized on 09/13 Best Buy 00005611 Tampa FL
P00300257608107529 Card 8204

130.17 28,739.81

9/16 2416 Check 227.00 28,512.81
9/17 Mobile Deposit : Ref Number :512170585929 250.00
9/17 Recurring Payment authorized on 09/15 Adobe Acropro Subs

800-443-8158 CA S300259638320763 Card 8204
101.95 28,660.86

9/18 Merchant Bankcd Deposit 200917 496263139883 Arts
Conservatory for

45.00
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Wells Fargo Business Choice Checking
October 31, 2020    ■    Page 1 of 7

(287)

Questions?
Available by phone 24 hours a day, 7 days a week:
Telecommunications Relay Services calls accepted
1-800-CALL-WELLS   (1-800-225-5935)

TTY:  1-800-877-4833
En español:  1-877-337-7454 

Online:  wellsfargo.com/biz

Write: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (287)
P.O. Box 6995
Portland, OR  97228-6995

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
243 KATHERINE BLVD APT 5108
PALM HARBOR FL 34684-3698

Your Business and Wells Fargo
Visit wellsfargoworks.com to explore videos, articles, infographics, interactive
tools, and other resources on the topics of business growth, credit, cash flow
management, business planning, technology, marketing, and more.

Account options
A check mark in the box indicates you have these convenient
services with your account(s).  Go to wellsfargo.com/biz or
call the number above if you have questions or if you would
like to add new services.

Business Online Banking ✓

Online Statements ✓

Business Bill Pay ✓

Business Spending Report ✓

Overdraft Protection

 IMPORTANT ACCOUNT INFORMATION

We're making important changes to the terms and conditions of several of our accounts. If these changes affect you, a detailed 
message is included below your transaction detail for each impacted account.

Statement period activity summary
Beginning balance on 10/1 $26,977.34
Deposits/Credits 10,240.00
Withdrawals/Debits -  31,161.67

Ending balance on 10/31  $6,055.67

Average ledger balance this period $9,712.64

Account number:  8024008453
IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES
AROUND THE WORLD, INC
DBA ART CONSERVATORY FOR TEENS (A.C.T.)
Florida account terms and conditions apply

For Direct Deposit use
Routing Number (RTN):  063107513

For Wire Transfers use
Routing Number (RTN):  121000248

Sheet Seq = 0361132
Sheet 00001 of  00004
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October 31, 2020    ■   Page 2 of 7

Overdraft Protection
This account is not currently covered by Overdraft Protection.  If you would like more information regarding Overdraft Protection and eligibility requirements
please call the number listed on your statement or visit your Wells Fargo branch. 

Transaction history

Check Deposits/ Withdrawals/ Ending daily
Date Number Description Credits Debits balance
10/1 Purchase authorized on 09/30 Hubspot Inc. 888-482776 MA

S460275081930693 Card 8204
450.00

10/1 Purchase authorized on 09/30 Lock Up Self Stora 727-5020044 FL
S580275190183320 Card 8204

323.11

10/1 999 Check 2,985.30 23,218.93
10/2 Recurring Payment authorized on 09/30 Adobe Creative Clo

408-536-6000 CA S460274740725036 Card 8204
52.99

10/2 Purchase authorized on 10/01 Station House St. 7278958260 FL
S380275344199282 Card 8204

180.00

10/2 Purchase authorized on 10/01 Station House St. 7278958260 FL
S380275550115605 Card 8204

50.00

10/2 Purchase authorized on 10/01 Salsa Labs, Inc 202-787-5499 MD
S380275618953721 Card 8204

1,100.00

10/2 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 201002
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

255.00

10/2 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 201002
12232984 IN Touch with Communit

3,000.00 18,580.94

10/5 Purchase authorized on 10/02 Amazon.Com*Mk97O0N
Amzn.Com/Bill WA S380276592255750 Card 8204

132.36

10/5 Recurring Payment authorized on 10/04 Teachable.Com
Httpsteachabl NY S580278824372948 Card 8204

119.00

10/5 < Business to Business ACH Debit - IRS Usataxpymt 100520
227067966070750 IN Touch with Communit

1,298.62

10/5 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Merchant Bankcd Deposit
201002 496263139883 Arts Conservatory for

23.68 17,007.28

10/6 Purchase authorized on 10/04 AAA Battery Svc of Tampa FL
S380278720699799 Card 8204

235.02

10/6 Purchase authorized on 10/04 Uber Trip Help.Uber.Com CA
S580278735899945 Card 8204

13.07

10/6 Recurring Payment authorized on 10/04 Stamps.Com
855-608-2677 CA S380279227529355 Card 8204

198.25

10/6 Purchase authorized on 10/05 Bp#9775719Kennedy Tampa FL
S460279607997327 Card 8204

34.00 16,526.94

10/8 Purchase authorized on 10/07 Intuit *Payroll 888-537-7794 CA
S460281378909171 Card 8204

70.50

10/8 Recurring Payment authorized on 10/07 Adobe Inc 800-8336687
CA S460281409265533 Card 8204

14.99 16,441.45

10/9 Recurring Payment authorized on 10/08 Int*Quickbooks Onl
800-446-8848 CA S460282423217092 Card 8204

70.00

10/9 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 201009
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,053.74

10/9 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 201009
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

1,116.52

10/9 < Business to Business ACH Debit - Payroll Payroll 201009
12232984 Arts Conservatory for

2,296.18 11,905.01

10/13 Purchase authorized on 10/09 Paypal *Davisphoto 402-935-7733
CA S380283853156429 Card 8204

800.00

10/13 Purchase authorized on 10/10 Best Buy Mht 0000 Tampa FL
S300284540868495 Card 8204

105.24

10/13 Recurring Payment authorized on 10/12 Salesmessage.Com
Httpswww.Sale FL S300286515822856 Card 8204

35.00

10/13 Purchase authorized on 10/12 Walgreens Store 3016 W GA
Tampa FL P00460286530698040 Card 8204

27.75 10,937.02

herberta.murphy
Highlight

herberta.murphy
Highlight

herberta.murphy
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EMERGENCY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
Guidelines For Emergency And Disaster Preparedness  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

EMERGENCY RESPONSE 3 

Who To Call In An Emergency 3 

PREVENTION 3 

TEAM MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES 3 
TEAM MEMBER EQUIPMENT 3 
MAINTAINING INDOOR & OUTDOOR ENVIRONMENTS 3 
MINIMIZING RISKS 3 
TEAM MEMBER TRAINING 4 
EMERGENCY DRILLS 4 

ACCIDENTS, INJURIES & MEDICAL EMERGENCIES 4 

MINOR INJURIES 4 
MAJOR EMERGENCIES & INJURIES 4 

EVACUATIONS, LOCKOUT, SHELTER-IN-PLACE, LOCKDOWN, & ARMED PERSON ON PREMISES 5 

EVACUATION 5 
LOCKOUT 5 
SHELTER-IN-PLACE 6 
LOCKDOWN 6 
ARMED PERSON INSIDE THE FACILITY - LOCKDOWN/EVACUATE 6 

STUDENTS WITH ACCESS AND FUNCTIONAL NEEDS 7 

TRACKING ENTRY & EXIT OF STUDENTS AND VISITORS 7 

AFTER AN EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION 7 

DEALING WITH THE MEDIA 7 

ILLNESS 8 

Public Health Reporting Requirements 8 
 

 
  

Arts Conservatory For Teens Education | Empowerment | Enrichment WHAT INSPIRES YOU? R. 8/1/2020 

 
 



EMERGENCY RESPONSE 
Who To Call In An Emergency 
 
Medical or Life Threatening Emergency call 911 
 
Teen Arts Manager , Vanessa Vilchis 
Cellphone 727.420.5442 
All AMP/CE/YAA emergencies and student or parent issues 
 
Chief Executive Officer , Dr. Alex Harris 
Cellphone 727.637.8344 
All major or crises emergencies, especially for life threating, major accidents, and press/media/TV involvement 
 

PREVENTION 
Unfortunately, accidents do occur. Some can be prevented, but despite everything we do, there will be situations which call for special actions. 
While the various steps and suggested actions outlined in this guide and various trainings represent sound procedure, your own good judgment 
should be the final authority until you are able to contact your supervisor and/or the executive administration. 
 

TEAM MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Prevention of accidents before they happen. 
2. Handling the situation quickly and calmly at the time it occurs.  
3. Notifying the necessary people after the incident. 
4. Recording and documenting the information as soon as possible. 

 

TEAM MEMBER EQUIPMENT 
The following items must be properly maintained and with team members at all times, including when switching to alternate locations both on and 
off site: 
 
ATTENDANCE SHEET 
An accurate list of students in your care must be maintained at all times. 
 
FIRST AID/MEDICATION 
First Aid kits should be checked and refilled regularly and include, band aids, paper towels, medical gloves, Kleenex, and instant ice packs. A First 
Aid Kit must be at every group location. All Emergency Medication must be taken with us at all times. Any students needing emergency medication 
must be able to self-medicate only trained team members in Medication Administration approved by ACT may provide assistance. 
 

MAINTAINING INDOOR & OUTDOOR ENVIRONMENTS 
1. All students must be supervised and monitored at all times. 

 
2. All program areas including all indoor facilities, outdoor areas, transportation vehicles, and fieldtrip locations will be checked for 

safety hazards before being accessible to students. 
 

3. Team member supplies/equipment that may be hazardous will have monitored with limited access to students. Items such as 
team member personal belongings, medications, and other hazardous items must be locked and out of reach to students. 

 

MINIMIZING RISKS 
Team members are expected to actively supervise all students at all times. This means that while students are present team members are 
expected to place the needs of the student ahead of their own personal needs. 
 
TEAM MEMBER RESPONSIBILITIES 
BEING A PROPER ROLE MODEL  
A proper role model acts in the same manner that student are expected to act while at the program. This includes following all policies and 
procedures of the ACT, supervising and acting in ways outlined in team member trainings, making safe decisions, and acting in a manner 
appropriate around students. 
 
EXERCISING PROPER JUDGEMENT  

Arts Conservatory For Teens Education | Empowerment | Enrichment WHAT INSPIRES YOU? R. 8/1/2020 

 
 



Proper judgment includes following all safety guidelines, making quick and sound decisions, and being prepared for any situation that may arise 
while working with students. 
 
MINIMIZING THREATS TO STUDENT’S SAFETY  
The most important part of a team members’ job is to keep all of the student safe. By acting in accordance with the responsibilities outlined above 
we can avoid most accidents. Team members should never be afraid or hesitant to change an activity or leave any location, no matter how much 
planning was involved or how excited both team member and students are/were, if a safety risk or issue arises. Team members must be prepared 
to respond immediately when students are making unsafe choices. 
 
DEVELOPING SAFE HABITS 
COMMUNICATE RULES, EXPECTATIONS, & DIRECTIONS 
Explain daily expectations, activities planned, program procedures, activity directions, etc. clearly and constantly. Even when activities are 
common students need refreshers or new students may be present. 
 
TEACH & MODEL HOW TO CARE FOR ACT EQUIPMENT 
Demonstrate to students and explain to them how to use, clean up, and to store equipment and supplies. 
 

TEAM MEMBER TRAINING 
Team member trainings are required by the ACT. Trainings are extremely important to ensure effective operation to achieve objectives, goals and 
to keep students safe. 
 
REQUIRED TRAININGS FOR ALL EMPLOYEES 

● CPR and First Aid 
● Emergency Procedures 
● Program Policies 
● Safety & Supervision 
● Child Abuse Prevention 

 
SUGGESTED TRAININGS FOR ALL NON-EMPLOYEES 

● CPR and First Aid 
● Emergency Procedures 
● Program Policies 
● Safety & Supervision 
● Child Abuse Prevention 

 
ADDITIONAL TRAININGS 
Team Members are required to complete additional training hours and various trainings as scheduled throughout the year including two 

full day trainings each year. 
 

EMERGENCY DRILLS 
Emergency Drills are an important piece to being properly prepared to handle emergency situations. The ACT performs routine safety and 
emergency drills to prepare for fires, tornados, bomb threats, and active shooter and lockdown & lockout policies. Drills are held quarterly, at the 
minimum, and records for drills are kept on site at locations.  

ACCIDENTS, INJURIES & MEDICAL EMERGENCIES 
Respond to all accidents both major and minor quickly and calmly. Remember that in an emergency response time matters immensely. Keep in 
mind that students will follow your lead so responding frantically can make the situation worse. 
 

MINOR INJURIES 
Minor Injuries are those in which team members trained in First Aid are able to attend to without calling for additional help. 
 
IN CASES OF MINOR INJURIES 

1. Administer First Aid as needed in manner prescribed during First Aid training. 
 

2. Call the parent to share information about cause of injury, condition of injured party, and course of action taken. Don’t presume an 
injury is insignificant and parent contact is unnecessary. 

 
3. Document all information properly using incident reports, log books, and always follow up with both the injured party and 

parents/guardians. Document all follow up conversations as well. 
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MAJOR EMERGENCIES & INJURIES 
 
IN CASE OF MAJOR EMERGENCY AND/OR INJURY 

1. First Aid should be administered immediately. Follow procedures from trainings including CPR, First Aid, and Universal 
Precautions. 

 
2. Call 911. Never hesitate to call. It’s better to call for help and not need it then to not make the call. Give the emergency dispatcher all 

relevant information needed to find you and about the incident. Do not hang up until told to do so. Have the injured party’s emergency 
information (paperwork from Student’s Information Records) available and send with paramedics. 

 
3. Keep the ACT informed by following the steps outlined in Section I of this guide. 

 
4. Contact Parents/Guardians/Emergency Contacts as soon as you have information about condition, and transport information if 

relevant. 
 

5. A team member must accompany any student(s) transported by ambulance. Remember that it is our policy the students will never be 
left alone. 

 
6. Get names, addresses and phone numbers of all witnesses for future reference and for documentation including incident reports, log 

books, and any other relevant form. Submit the incident to a supervisor as soon as possible. 
 

7. Follow up with both the injured party and parents/guardians about their condition, etc. Document all follow up conversations as well. 
 
TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE EMERGENCIES 
When all students have boarded and are properly seated, a team member member or school district bus driver will go over both safety rules and 
evacuation procedures. 
 
FLAT TIRE AND/OR BREAKDOWN 
If a flat tires occurs or if the transportation vehicle breaks down park the transportation vehicle in the safest location possible. When safe 
and free of any dangers have all passengers exit the transportation vehicle and proceed to the safest and most accommodating location 
possible. Contact the immediate supervisor and wait for instructions. Always be prepared for the unexpected and have backup activities 
available while you wait. 
 
ACCIDENTS INVOLVING INJURIES 
Determine the condition of all parties involved. If possible pull off the road to a safe location. Following procedures outlined in First Aid, CPR, & 
Universal Precautions initiate any help that might be needed. Refer to Section I: EMERGENCY RESPONSE: WHO TO CALL IN AN 
EMERGENCY & Section III: ACCIDENTS, INJURIES, & MEDICAL EMERGENCIES both of which were previously outlined. 
 
Any driver that is a ACT team member member and receives a citation for a moving traffic violation must immediately submit to a controlled 
substance test and an alcohol test if, (a) the accident results in a fatality, or bodily injury to a person who must immediately receive medical 
treatment away from the scene, or (b) one or more of the vehicles involved is towed from the scene. 

EVACUATIONS, LOCKOUT, SHELTER-IN-PLACE, LOCKDOWN, & 
ARMED PERSON ON PREMISES 
EVACUATION 
Evacuation is required when a ACT facility or off-site facility must be cleared and unoccupied for any reason. Many times this event is caused by 
the fire alarm system activating. When evacuating stay calm and think before you act. One should be aware of at least two means of exit from their 
location at all times. 
 

1. In cases when evacuation is necessary all students & team member are to line up at the assigned exit. 
 

2. Team member members will perform a count of students and a quick walk through of the area to ensure all students are accounted 
for and in line. 

 
3. Team member must remember to bring the required team member equipment items listed in Section 2. 

 
4. Ensuring that all students are present, with a team member member at both the front and end of the line, the group will exit the facility 

quickly. 
 

5. After leaving the building, walk to the predetermined evacuation site/area. Do not use elevators; use stairways only. Stay quiet 
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so instructions may be heard. Think about safety first. 
 

6. Immediately upon reaching the designated evacuation area attendance will be taken. Reentrance to the facility will only occur when 
granted by the proper authorities. Parents will be immediately notified of alternate pick up information if reentrance is not granted. 

 

LOCKOUT 
A Lockout is initiated when there is a threat or hazard outside an ACT Facility or off-site location and it is safer for all persons to remain inside. The 
danger may be criminal, threatening or suspicious activity outside the premises, in the immediate vicinity of the facility. A lockout uses the security 
of the building for protection. 
 

1. In cases when lockouts are necessary, all entrances and exits are locked and all individuals are directed to exit from only one source 
to maintain security within the building and minimize potential exposure to the outside threat or hazard. 

 
2. All team member and students will continue with regularly scheduled activities inside the building. 

 
3. Parents coming to pick up or drop off will be properly identified prior to gaining access to the building. 

a. In the event a parent wishes to still leave the facility with their child during a lockout, team members should encourage them to 
remain indoors until the “lockout” is lifted. 

 

SHELTER-IN-PLACE 
A Shelter-In-Place is ordered when short-term protection from an outside event is necessary.  One of the most common ways to Shelter-In-Place 
is to take refuge in a small, interior room, with no or few windows. These situations include, but are not limited to, severe weather, tornado 
warnings, and hazmat incidents. For weather emergencies, a Shelter-In-Place is typically reported by emergency weather reports or emergency 
broadcast systems. It may also be reported by team member or guests based on personal knowledge. 
 

1. If a tornado warning, or other event requiring a Shelter-In-Place, occurs, all students and team member are to line up at the 
assigned area. 

 
2. Team member members will perform a count of students and a quick walk through of the area to ensure all students are accounted 

for and in line. 
 

3. Team member must remember to bring the required team member equipment items listed in Section 2. Ensuring that all students are 
present, with a team member member at both the front and end of the line, the group will relocate to the predetermined 
Shelter-In-Place location. Immediately upon reaching the Shelter-In-Place Location attendance will be taken. Students and team 
member will remain in the designated area until the warning has expired or the hazard has been deemed safe. 

 

LOCKDOWN 
A lockdown is initiated when there is a threat or hazard inside of the ACT facility or off-site location and evacuation may be unsafe to perform. This 
may be presented as a parental custody dispute, alcohol or drug impairment, intruders (armed with weapons or not), disciplined or discharged 
employees, etc. Always be aware and assess the situation. Use lockdown procedures to protect students, visitors, and team members from 
physical threats.  If at an offsite location, i.e. schools make sure to follow their lockdown procedures. 
 
INITIATING A LOCKDOWN 

1. If you recognize a threat or hazard, do not approach the offending party or put yourself or others in danger. 
 

2. Immediately designate a team member to call 911 and report the type of threat. Stay on the line with the dispatcher and provide a 
description of what was observed, the number of individuals providing the threat, their height, weight, race, sex, clothes 
description, type of weapon (if any), and nature of the threat. 

 
3. As soon as possible notify the supervisor or Designee of the emergency or threat. 

 
4. Announce vocally loudly or by PA: “LOCKDOWN THE BUILDING, LOCK ALL DOORS AND TURN OUT ALL LIGHTS.” If a PA is 

unavailable, and it is safe to do so, identify team member to circulate the building and notify all persons of the threat or hazard. 
 

5. As soon as possible follow contact the ACT as described previously on “Who to Call in an Emergency” from Section 1. 
 

6. Wait for notification from first responders that it is safe before beginning to exit all areas. Under no circumstances should any 
member unlock a door and allow an unknown person to enter. Remember, and intruder may pretend to be harmless or even 
helpful to gain entrance to a locked room. 

 
One should never put themselves in danger. The first reaction should be to avoid or get away from the threat. Should one find themselves 
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confronted by the threat they should take any and all actions to protect themselves. 
 

ARMED PERSON INSIDE THE FACILITY - LOCKDOWN/EVACUATE 
In the event of an armed person or persons inside the facility the following steps should be taken depending on the immediate danger/threat. 
 
GET OUT 
When at all possible get yourself and all students out of the facility or building and far away from the threat 
 
CALL OUT 
Use mobile phone to call 911. 
 
KEEP OUT 
Do not lock exterior doors. Close, lock, and barricade interior doors, if possible HIDE OUT 
Seek shelter in the nearest secured place. Turn off lights and any devices indicating that the room is occupied. Keep out of the line of sight. Be 
Quiet. Do not respond to anyone at the door. 
 
TAKE OUT 
Last Resort. Use anything to distract or disable the suspect. 
 
ONLY CONFRONT THE PERSON AS A LAST RESORT TO SAVE YOUR LIFE 

STUDENTS WITH ACCESS AND FUNCTIONAL NEEDS 
In the event of an emergency additional and intentional care will need to be made for any students or team member with access and functional 
needs, including disabilities. A list of those with access and functional needs should be made and special notation will be taken identifying weather 
this need is permanent or temporary. 
 
Any students with Access or Functional Needs will be assigned to a team member member to ensure safe evacuation or relocations. This team 
member member will be responsible for providing any and all assistance needed for the student. Any student(s) needing emergency medication 
must be in a group with a team member member trained in Medication Administration or delegated for a particular medication individually by the 
ACT. 
 

TRACKING ENTRY & EXIT OF STUDENTS AND VISITORS 
To ensure the safety of the students and to be recognizable to parents and school team member all ACT Team members must wear ACT team 
member badges and team member shirts at all times while in the care of students. 
 
SIGN IN/OUT 
It is required that all students sign in and out daily from our programs. 
 
HEAD & FACE COUNTS 
In addition to attendance team member are required to perform routine head and face counts while students are in attendance. It is the 
responsibility of all team members to know the exact number of students present in their group at all times. 
 
PARENT PICK UP 
New parents or unknown person – Ask if you can help them. If they say they are to pick up a student, ask to see their photo ID. Refer to the 
student application for who is authorized to pick up. If they did not sign the form or are not listed on the authorized to pick up list, you MAY NOT 
release the student to that person. A call must be made to the parent/guardian. The parent/guardian can authorize the release over the phone and 
must amend the application as soon as possible. 
 
LATE PARENT 
At 10 minutes late upon facility or program closure, start calling both authorized parent’s home and work phone numbers. 
 
At 20 minutes late and unable to contact either parent, call any other person who is authorized to pick up the student and/or the emergency 
contact person. 
 
At 30 minutes late and unable to contact anyone, call your supervisor. At this time the supervisor may make the decision to contact the proper 
authorities. 
 
INTOXICATED PARENT 
Ask if someone else can drive them home. If no, ask if you can call a taxi or use an app based transportation such as LYFT or UBER.  Inform the 
parent/guardian that while you legally cannot refuse to release their child to them if they leave in a vehicle you are required to contact the police.  If 
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they leave anyway, call police, explain the situation, give license number, make of vehicle and home address, and any other relevant information. 
 
VISITORS 
Parents or guardians are always welcome and visits do not need to be announced or arranged in advance. Any visitor entering a ACT program 
areas is required to sign in. A visitor will sign the "Visitor's Log", write their address, state the purpose of the visit, and show identification. 

AFTER AN EMERGENCY COMMUNICATION 
DEALING WITH THE MEDIA 
In case of an accident or missing student, the media may come to investigate. Only managers may speak with the press. Any questions should be 
referred to Herbert Murphy at corporate office. Call your immediate supervisor with any instances needing further direction. 
The initial news media contact is the most crucial because: 
 

1. Once a serious accident occurs, the ACT has been undeniably harmed. It becomes the job of the ACT Executive Administration to make 
the impact of that harm as light as possible. 

 
2. The first impression the general public gets is the one that is the most lasing. 

 
3. Maintain an attitude of cooperation and helpfulness even though; you are unable to respond to their questions. 

 
4. Be wary of casual conversation. Do not say “off the record” or “no comment”. Once again, refer them to call ACT Executive 

Administration with any questions. 
 
INSURANCE 
Essentially, the ACT carries three types of insurance: 
Compensation for employees on payroll for injuries or illnesses attributed to their work. If team member are hurt at work, forms must be filled out 
that day, whether or not the team member needs medical attention or not. If medical attention is needed, team member must go to the ACT’s 
designated doctors and hospitals. This insurance is called Workman’s Compensation. 
Personal injury or property damage to persons other than employees. The determination of whether our insurance company will pay a claim is 
totally up to the insurance company. A participant may send us a bill and we will turn it over to the insurance company who will determine liability. 
 
Automobile accidents, which result in injury to persons or damage to property. Make sure that automobile forms are completed immediately and 
turned into the manager. 
CAUTION: If you are asked about the insurance coverage of the ACT, you are authorized to say ONLY: “It will be referred to our insurance 
company”. 
 
CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS 
In the event of an emergency, the ACT, has the option for continuation of operations by combining with other ACT programs in the vicinity, wither 
at a school location or ACT building. 
 
RETRIEVING TEAM MEMBER & STUDENT'S FILES 
Team member and Student’s Files are kept on site in paper and electronic copy. 
 
PROTECTING CONFIDENTIAL RECORDS 
In order to maintain the member/program participant right to confidentiality of personal information, including, but not limited to credit card and 
bank account information, the following policies and procedures will be followed effective immediately. 

ILLNESS 
Public Health Reporting Requirements 
By law, certain diseases and conditions are reportable to public health for surveillance purposes and so disease control measures can be 
implemented. Persons treating or having knowledge of a reportable disease, whether the disease is suspected or confirmed, must report the case 
to the state or local public health agency. Group outbreaks resulting from any cause, including foodborne outbreaks, must be reported to the state 
or local public health agency within 24 hours. For the purposes of public health reporting, an outbreak is defined as two or more persons ill with 
similar symptoms within a similar time frame. 
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Authorized Representative

NPP2558332F

No. NPP1598112

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES AROUND THE 
WORLD, INC.
PO BOX 35424
SAINT PETERSBURG, FL 33705

POLICY PERIOD: (MO. DAY YR.)   From: To:

FORM OF BUSINESS:

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION:

12:01 A.M. STANDARD TIME AT YOUR
MAILING ADDRESS SHOWN ABOVE

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS OF THIS POLICY, WE AGREE

THIS POLICY CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING COVERAGE PARTS FOR WHICH A PREMIUM IS INDICATED.

NAMED INSURED AND ADDRESS:

Renewal of Number

POLICY DECLARATIONS

09/19/2020 09/19/2021

Non-Profit Corporation

Non-Profit Management Liability

United States Liability Insurance Company
1190 Devon Park Drive, Wayne, Pennsylvania 19087

A Member Company of United States Liability Insurance Group

Coverage Form(s) and Endorsement(s) made a part of this policy at time of issue
See Endorsement EOD (1/95)

Agent:  COMEGYS INSURANCE (2074)
P.O. BOX 1438
St. Petersburg, FL  33731     

Issued: 09/23/2020 12:33 PM

By:

UPD (08-07)
THESE DECLARATIONS TOGETHER WITH THE COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS, COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS, 
COVERAGE PART COVERAGE FORM(S) AND FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS, IF ANY, ISSUED TO FORM A PART THEREOF, 
COMPLETE THE ABOVE NUMBERED POLICY.

THIS PREMIUM MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADJUSTMENT.

WITH YOU TO PROVIDE THE INSURANCE AS STATED IN THIS POLICY.

PREMIUM
Commercial Liability Coverage Part $489.00
Non Profit Management Liability Coverage Parts $768.00

TOTAL: $1,257.00



Description of EndorsementsEndt# Revised
The following forms apply to multiple coverage parts

CG0220 Florida Changes - Cancellation And Nonrenewal03/12
CG2173 Exclusion Of Certified Acts Of Terrorism01/15
IL0017 Common Policy Conditions11/98
IL0021 Nuclear Energy Liability Exclusion Endorsement09/08
Jacket FL Policy Jacket12/19
L-224 Punitive Or Exemplary Damages Exclusion10/10
L-367 Minimum Earned Premium Endorsement02/11
L-610 Expanded Definition Of Bodily Injury11/04
LLQ100 Amendatory Endorsement07/06
LLQ368 Separation Of Insureds Clarification Endorsement08/10
TRIADN Policyholder Disclosure Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage02/15

Description of EndorsementsEndt# Revised
The following forms apply to the Commercial Liability coverage part

CG0001 Commercial General Liability Coverage Form12/07
CG0068 Recording And Distribution Of Material Or Information In Violation Of 

Law Exclusion
05/09

CG2026 Additional Insured-Designated Person or Organization04/13
CG2107 Exclusion - Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal 

Information And Data-Related Liability - Limited Bodily Injury Exception 
Not Included

05/14

CG2136 Exclusion - New Entities03/05
CG2139 Contractual Liability Limitation10/93
CG2147 Employment-Related Practices Exclusion12/07
CG2271 Colleges or Schools (Limited Form)04/13
CG2404 Waiver Of Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others To Us05/09
Jacket FL Policy Jacket12/19
L-232s Classification Limitation Endorsement09/05
L-278 Independent Contractors/Subcontractors Exclusion03/14
L-472 Exclusion - Injury To Performers Or Entertainers07/08
L-500 Bodily Injury Exclusion - All Employees, Volunteer Workers, Temporary 

Workers, Casual Laborers, Contractors, And Subcontractors
02/11

L-536 Exclusion - Participation In Athletic Activity, Physical Activity Or Sports09/09
L-549 Absolute Professional Liability Exclusion12/07
L-581 Certain Animal Exclusion02/11
L-599 Absolute Exclusion For Pollution, Organic Pathogen, Silica, Asbestos 

And Lead With A Hostile Fire Exception
10/07

L-618B Amendment Of Premium Audit Conditions01/09
L-631 Event Vendor/Exhibitor & Contractor - Exclusion02/11

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS

EXTENSION OF DECLARATIONS

Policy No. NPP1598112 Effective Date: 09/19/2020

12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.EOD (01/95) Page of1 2



FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS

EXTENSION OF DECLARATIONS

Policy No. NPP1598112 Effective Date: 09/19/2020

12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

L-703DOL Molestation Or Abuse Insurance (Defense Outside Limits)10/14
L-744NPP Blanket Additional Insured Endorsement06/10
L-767 NPP Exclusion - Bleacher Collapse11/11
L-783NPP Amendment of Liquor Liability Exclusion07/18

Description of EndorsementsEndt# Revised
The following forms apply to the Management Liability coverage part

DO FL Florida State Amendatory Endorsement05/17
DO-100 Directors and Officers Coverage Part05/17
DO-101 Employment Practices Coverage Part05/17
DO-224A Sexual Abuse Exclusion05/17
DO-283 Data and Security Plus Endorsement05/17
DO-296 Fair Labor Standards Act Endorsement Defense Costs Only Coverage05/17
DO-298 Amendment of Prior or Pending Litigation Exclusion05/17
DO-GTC General Terms and Conditions05/17
Jacket FL Policy Jacket12/19

All other terms and conditions remain unchanged.EOD (01/95) Page of2 2



Coverage Form(s)/Part(s) and Endorsement(s) made a part of this policy at time of issue: 
See Form EOD (01/95)

   LIMITS OF INSURANCE

Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000
Personal & Advertising Injury Limit (Any One Person/Organization) $1,000,000
Medical Expense (Any One Person) $5,000
Damages To Premises Rented To You (Any One Premises) $100,000
Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit Included
General Aggregate Limit $2,000,000
Abuse And Molestation Liability Each Occurrence $100,000
Abuse And Molestation Liability Aggregate $300,000

    LIABILITY DEDUCTIBLE $0

   LOCATIONS OF ALL PREMISES YOU OWN, RENT OR OCCUPY
Location Address Territory

1 1246 50th Ave North, St., Saint Petersburg, FL 33703 004

  PREMIUM COMPUTATION

Rate Advance Premium
Loc Classification Code No. Premium Basis Pr/Co All Other Pr/Co All Other

1 Theaters - Not-For-Profit only 49185 750 Per 1,000 
Admissions

Included 308.078 Included $231

1 Additional Insured - Designated Person 49950 1 Per Additional 
Insured

Included 100.000 Included $100

1 Abuse and Molestation Liability - Performing Arts 41795 Flat Included 0.000 Included Included

1 Waiver of Rights of Recovery 49956 1 Person Or 
Organization

Included 0.000 Included Included

1 Blanket Additional Insured - Non-Profit Package 49950 1 Flat Included 100.000 Included $100

1 Arts and Culture Instructional 49187 200 Per Students Included 58.080 Included $58

MINIMUM PREMIUM FOR GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART: $300

TOTAL PREMIUM FOR GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART:
(This Premium may be subject to adjustment.)

$489
MP - minimum premium

NPP1598112

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

Effective Date: 09/19/2020
12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

Policy No.

Copyright, ISO Commercial Risk Services, Inc., 1983, 1984, 1988
Includes copyrighted material of ISO Commercial Risk Services, Inc., with its permission.

THESE DECLARATIONS ARE PART OF THE POLICY DECLARATIONS CONTAINING THE NAME OF THE INSURED AND THE POLICY PERIOD.

CL150 (10/03) Page 1 Of 1



ITEM I. PARENT ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ADDRESS

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES AROUND THE WORLD, INC.
PO BOX 35424
SAINT PETERSBURG, FL 33705

ITEM II. POLICY PERIOD: (MM/DD/YYYY)   From: 09/19/2020 To: 09/19/2021

$628

ITEM III. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

ITEM IV. RETENTION:

ITEM V. PREMIUM:

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$0

EACH CLAIM

IN THE AGGREGATE

EACH CLAIM

RETROACTIVE DATE: 09/19/2020

a. Non Profit Directors & Officers

b. Non Profit Directors & Officers

Non Profit Directors and Officers Liability Coverage Part

ITEM III. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

ITEM IV. RETENTION:

ITEM V. PREMIUM:

$1,000,000

$1,000,000

$0

$140

EACH CLAIM

IN THE AGGREGATE

EACH CLAIM

Employment Practices Liability Coverage Part

RETROACTIVE DATE: Full Prior Acts

a. Employment Practices

b. Employment Practices

PRIOR OR PENDING LITIGATION See form DO-298

PRIOR OR PENDING LITIGATION See form DO-298

THIS IS A CLAIMS MADE POLICY COVERAGE FORM AND UNLESS OTHERWISE PROVIDED HEREIN, THE 
COVERAGE OF THIS FORM IS LIMITED TO LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS FIRST MADE DURING THE POLICY 
PERIOD, OR THE EXTENSION PERIOD, IF APPLICABLE.  DEFENSE COSTS SHALL BE APPLIED AGAINST 
THE RETENTION.

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

Effective Date: 09/19/2020
12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

No. Effective Date:NPP1598112

PLEASE READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY.

DO-150 (02/09) Page 1 Of 2

THESE DECLARATIONS ARE PART OF THE POLICY DECLARATIONS CONTAINING THE NAME OF THE INSURED AND THE POLICY PERIOD.



THIS IS A CLAIMS MADE POLICY COVERAGE FORM AND UNLESS OTHERWISE PROVIDED HEREIN, THE 
COVERAGE OF THIS FORM IS LIMITED TO LIABILITY FOR CLAIMS FIRST MADE DURING THE POLICY 
PERIOD, OR THE EXTENSION PERIOD, IF APPLICABLE.  DEFENSE COSTS SHALL BE APPLIED AGAINST 
THE RETENTION.

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

Effective Date: 09/19/2020
12:01 AM STANDARD TIME

No. Effective Date:NPP1598112

PLEASE READ YOUR POLICY CAREFULLY.

ITEM VI. Coverage Form(s)/Part(s) and Endorsement(s) made a part of this policy at time of issue:
See Endorsement EOD (01/95)

ITEM III. LIMITS OF LIABILITY

ITEM IV. RETENTION:

ITEM V. PREMIUM:

NOT COVERED

NOT COVERED

NOT COVERED

Fiduciary Liability Coverage Part

a. Fiduciary Liability

DO-150 (02/09) Page 2 Of 2

THESE DECLARATIONS ARE PART OF THE POLICY DECLARATIONS CONTAINING THE NAME OF THE INSURED AND THE POLICY PERIOD.



 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
 CG 02 20 03 12 
 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
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FLORIDA CHANGES –  
CANCELLATION AND NONRENEWAL 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
ELECTRONIC DATA LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCT WITHDRAWAL COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART  

 
A. Paragraph 2. of the Cancellation Common Policy 

Condition is replaced by the following:  
 2. Cancellation Of Policies In Effect  
 a. For 90 Days Or Less  

If this policy has been in effect for 90 days 
or less, we may cancel this policy by 
mailing or delivering to the first Named 
Insured written notice of cancellation, 
accompanied by the reasons for 
cancellation, at least:  

 (1) 10 days before the effective date of 
cancellation if we cancel for 
nonpayment of premium; or  

 (2) 20 days before the effective date of 
cancellation if we cancel for any other 
reason, except we may cancel 
immediately if there has been:  

 (a) A material misstatement or 
misrepresentation; or  

 (b) A failure to comply with the 
underwriting requirements 
established by the insurer.  

 b. For More Than 90 Days  
If this policy has been in effect for more 
than 90 days, we may cancel this policy 
only for one or more of the following 
reasons:  

 (1) Nonpayment of premium;  

 (2) The policy was obtained by a material 
misstatement;  

 (3) Failure to comply with underwriting 
requirements established by the insurer 
within 90 days of the effective date of 
coverage;  

 (4) A substantial change in the risk covered 
by the policy; or  

 (5) The cancellation is for all insureds under 
such policies for a given class of 
insureds.  

If we cancel this policy for any of these 
reasons, we will mail or deliver to the first 
Named Insured written notice of 
cancellation, accompanied by the reasons 
for cancellation, at least:  

 (a) 10 days before the effective date of 
cancellation if we cancel for 
nonpayment of premium; or  

 (b) 45 days before the effective date of 
cancellation if we cancel for any of 
the other reasons stated in 
Paragraph 2.b.  

B. Paragraph 3. of the Cancellation Common Policy 
Condition is replaced by the following: 

 3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first 
Named Insured at the last mailing address 
known to us. 
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C. Paragraph 5. of the Cancellation Common Policy 
Condition is replaced by the following: 

 5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first 
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we 
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first 
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be 
less than pro rata. If the return premium is not 
refunded with the notice of cancellation or 
when this policy is returned to us, we will mail 
the refund within 15 working days after the 
date cancellation takes effect, unless this is an 
audit policy.  
If this is an audit policy, then, subject to your 
full cooperation with us or our agent in securing 
the necessary data for audit, we will return any 
premium refund due within 90 days of the date 
cancellation takes effect. If our audit is not 
completed within this time limitation, then we 
shall accept your own audit, and any premium 
refund due shall be mailed within 10 working 
days of receipt of your audit. 

The cancellation will be effective even if we 
have not made or offered a refund. 

D. The following is added and supersedes any other 
provision to the contrary:  
Nonrenewal 

 1. If we decide not to renew this policy, we will 
mail or deliver to the first Named Insured 
written notice of nonrenewal, accompanied by 
the reason for nonrenewal, at least 45 days 
prior to the expiration of this policy.  

 2. Any notice of nonrenewal will be mailed or 
delivered to the first Named Insured at the last 
mailing address known to us. If notice is 
mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient proof 
of notice.  
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Exclusion Of Certified Acts Of Terrorism 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY 

 
A. The following exclusion is added: 

This insurance does not apply to: 
TERRORISM 
"Any injury or damage" arising, directly or 
indirectly, out of a "certified act of terrorism". 

B. The following definitions are added: 
 1. For the purposes of this endorsement, "any 

injury or damage" means any injury or damage 
covered under any Coverage Part to which this 
endorsement is applicable, and includes but is 
not limited to "bodily injury", "property 
damage", "personal and advertising injury", 
"injury" or "environmental damage" as may be 
defined in any applicable Coverage Part. 

 2. "Certified act of terrorism" means an act that is 
certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in 
accordance with the provisions of the federal 
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, to be an act of 
terrorism pursuant to such Act. The criteria 
contained in the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act 
for a "certified act of terrorism" include the 
following: 

 a. The act resulted in insured losses in excess 
of $5 million in the aggregate, attributable to 
all types of insurance subject to the 
Terrorism Risk Insurance Act; and  

 b. The act is a violent act or an act that is 
dangerous to human life, property or 
infrastructure and is committed by an 
individual or individuals as part of an effort 
to coerce the civilian population of the 
United States or to influence the policy or 
affect the conduct of the United States 
Government by coercion. 

C. The terms and limitations of any terrorism 
exclusion, or the inapplicability or omission of a 
terrorism exclusion, do not serve to create 
coverage for injury or damage that is otherwise 
excluded under this Coverage Part. 
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COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 
All Coverage Parts included in this policy are subject to the following conditions.  
 
A. Cancellation  
 1. The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-

tions may cancel this policy by mailing or de-
livering to us advance written notice of cancel-
lation.  

 2. We may cancel this policy by mailing or deliv-
ering to the first Named Insured written notice 
of cancellation at least:  

 a. 10 days before the effective date of cancel-
lation if we cancel for nonpayment of pre-
mium; or  

 b. 30 days before the effective date of cancel-
lation if we cancel for any other reason.  

 3. We will mail or deliver our notice to the first 
Named Insured's last mailing address known to 
us.  

 4. Notice of cancellation will state the effective 
date of cancellation. The policy period will end 
on that date.  

 5. If this policy is cancelled, we will send the first 
Named Insured any premium refund due. If we 
cancel, the refund will be pro rata. If the first 
Named Insured cancels, the refund may be 
less than pro rata. The cancellation will be ef-
fective even if we have not made or offered a 
refund.  

 6. If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be suf-
ficient proof of notice.  

B. Changes  
This policy contains all the agreements between 
you and us concerning the insurance afforded.  
The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions is authorized to make changes in the terms 
of this policy with our consent. This policy's terms 
can be amended or waived only by endorsement 
issued by us and made a part of this policy.  

C. Examination Of Your Books And Records  
We may examine and audit your books and re-
cords as they relate to this policy at any time dur-
ing the policy period and up to three years after-
ward.  

D. Inspections And Surveys  
 1. We have the right to:  
 a. Make inspections and surveys at any time;  

 b. Give you reports on the conditions we find; 
and  

 c. Recommend changes.  
 2. We are not obligated to make any inspections, 

surveys, reports or recommendations and any 
such actions we do undertake relate only to in-
surability and the premiums to be charged. We 
do not make safety inspections. We do not un-
dertake to perform the duty of any person or 
organization to provide for the health or safety 
of workers or the public. And we do not warrant 
that conditions:  

 a. Are safe or healthful; or  
 b. Comply with laws, regulations, codes or 

standards.  
 3. Paragraphs 1. and 2. of this condition apply 

not only to us, but also to any rating, advisory, 
rate service or similar organization which 
makes insurance inspections, surveys, reports 
or recommendations.  

 4. Paragraph 2. of this condition does not apply 
to any inspections, surveys, reports or recom-
mendations we may make relative to certifica-
tion, under state or municipal statutes, ordi-
nances or regulations, of boilers, pressure ves-
sels or elevators.  

E. Premiums  
The first Named Insured shown in the Declara-
tions:  

 1. Is responsible for the payment of all premiums; 
and  

 2. Will be the payee for any return premiums we 
pay.  

F. Transfer Of Your Rights And Duties Under 
This Policy  
Your rights and duties under this policy may not 
be transferred without our written consent except 
in the case of death of an individual named in-
sured.  
If you die, your rights and duties will be trans-
ferred to your legal representative but only while 
acting within the scope of duties as your legal rep-
resentative. Until your legal representative is ap-
pointed, anyone having proper temporary custody 
of your property will have your rights and duties 
but only with respect to that property.  
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NUCLEAR ENERGY LIABILITY EXCLUSION  
ENDORSEMENT 

(Broad Form) 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
FARM COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
OWNERS AND CONTRACTORS PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
RAILROAD PROTECTIVE LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK POLICY 

 
 1. The insurance does not apply:  
 A. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury" 

or "property damage":  
 (1) With respect to which an "insured" under 

the policy is also an insured under a nu-
clear energy liability policy issued by Nu-
clear Energy Liability Insurance Associa-
tion, Mutual Atomic Energy Liability 
Underwriters, Nuclear Insurance Associa-
tion of Canada or any of their successors, 
or would be an insured under any such pol-
icy but for its termination upon exhaustion 
of its limit of liability; or  

 (2) Resulting from the "hazardous properties" 
of "nuclear material" and with respect to 
which (a) any person or organization is re-
quired to maintain financial protection pur-
suant to the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, or 
any law amendatory thereof, or (b) the "in-
sured" is, or had this policy not been issued 
would be, entitled to indemnity from the 
United States of America, or any agency 
thereof, under any agreement entered into 
by the United States of America, or any 
agency thereof, with any person or organi-
zation.  

 B. Under any Medical Payments coverage, to 
expenses incurred with respect to "bodily in-
jury" resulting from the "hazardous properties" 
of "nuclear material" and arising out of the op-
eration of a "nuclear facility" by any person or 
organization.  

 C. Under any Liability Coverage, to "bodily injury" 
or "property damage" resulting from "hazard-
ous properties" of "nuclear material", if:  

 (1) The "nuclear material" (a) is at any "nuclear 
facility" owned by, or operated by or on be-
half of, an "insured" or (b) has been dis-
charged or dispersed therefrom;  

 (2) The "nuclear material" is contained in 
"spent fuel" or "waste" at any time pos-
sessed, handled, used, processed, stored, 
transported or disposed of, by or on behalf 
of an "insured"; or  

 (3) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" 
arises out of the furnishing by an "insured" 
of services, materials, parts or equipment in 
connection with the planning, construction, 
maintenance, operation or use of any "nu-
clear facility", but if such facility is located 
within the United States of America, its terri-
tories or possessions or Canada, this ex-
clusion (3) applies only to "property dam-
age" to such "nuclear facility" and any 
property thereat.  

 2. As used in this endorsement:  
"Hazardous properties" includes radioactive, toxic 
or explosive properties.  
"Nuclear material" means "source material", "spe-
cial nuclear material" or "by-product material".  
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"Source material", "special nuclear material", and 
"by-product material" have the meanings given 
them in the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 or in any 
law amendatory thereof.  
"Spent fuel" means any fuel element or fuel com-
ponent, solid or liquid, which has been used or ex-
posed to radiation in a "nuclear reactor".  
"Waste" means any waste material (a) containing 
"by-product material" other than the tailings or 
wastes produced by the extraction or concentra-
tion of uranium or thorium from any ore processed 
primarily for its "source material" content, and (b) 
resulting from the operation by any person or or-
ganization of any "nuclear facility" included under 
the first two paragraphs of the definition of "nu-
clear facility".  
"Nuclear facility" means:  

 (a) Any "nuclear reactor";  
 (b) Any equipment or device designed or used 

for (1) separating the isotopes of uranium or 
plutonium, (2) processing or utilizing "spent 
fuel", or (3) handling, processing or packag-
ing "waste";  

 (c) Any equipment or device used for the proc-
essing, fabricating or alloying of "special 
nuclear material" if at any time the total 
amount of such material in the custody of 
the "insured" at the premises where such 
equipment or device is located consists of 
or contains more than 25 grams of pluto-
nium or uranium 233 or any combination 
thereof, or more than 250 grams of uranium 
235;  

 (d) Any structure, basin, excavation, premises 
or place prepared or used for the storage or 
disposal of "waste";  

and includes the site on which any of the foregoing 
is located, all operations conducted on such site 
and all premises used for such operations.  
"Nuclear reactor" means any apparatus designed 
or used to sustain nuclear fission in a self-
supporting chain reaction or to contain a critical 
mass of fissionable material.  
"Property damage" includes all forms of radioac-
tive contamination of property.  
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This policy jacket together with the policy declarations, 
coverage forms and endorsements, if any, complete 

this policy. 
 

The enclosed declarations designates the issuing 
company.
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INSURANCE POLICY 
 

 

Read your policy carefully! 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
In Witness Whereof, the company has caused this Policy to be executed and attested.  Where required by law, 
this Policy shall not be valid unless countersigned by a duly authorized representative of the company. 
 
Secretary   President 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 
EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 

 
PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES EXCLUSION 

 
Regardless of any other provision of this policy, this policy does not apply to punitive or 
exemplary damages. 
If a “suit” is brought against any insured, and falls within the coverage provided by the policy, 
seeking both compensatory damages (damages for economic loss and pain and suffering) and 
punitive or exemplary damages (damages as a means of punishment), no coverage shall be 
provided by this policy for any costs, interest, defense costs, attorney or legal fees of any type or 
damages attributable to punitive or exemplary damages. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
COMMERCIAL INLAND MARINE COVERAGE PART 

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY COVERAGE PART 
CRIME AND FIDELITY COVERAGE PART 

EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 
EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 

 
MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM ENDORSEMENT 

 
In the event of cancellation of this policy by the insured, a Minimum Earned Premium of twenty-
five percent (25%) of the total premium shall become earned. 
 
Failure to make timely payments will be considered a request by you for us to cancel your 
policy.  In the event of such cancellation for non-payment of premium, the greater of the Pro-rata 
or Short-Rate premium (whichever is applicable) and the Minimum Earned Premium shall be 
retained as consideration for the coverage provided. 
 
In the event of cancellation by us, the Earned Premium shall be computed on a Pro-Rata basis, 
and will not be subject to the Minimum Earned Premium. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESSOWNERS COVERAGE FORM 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

 
 

EXPANDED DEFINITION OF BODILY INJURY 
 
 

The Definition of “bodily injury” is removed in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 
 

1. "Bodily injury" means: 
a. bodily injury,  
b. sickness,  
c. disease; or 
d. mental anguish or emotional distress arising out of a., b., or c., above, 

 
sustained by a person, including death resulting from any of these at any time. 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a 
part of your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another 
effective date is shown. 



LLQ 100 (7/06)  1of 1 

UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

 
 
 
 

Throughout this policy, with the exception of SECTION II – WHO IS AN INSURED; 
when the word “insured(s)” is used it shall mean “any insured(s)”. 
 
 

 
   

 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a 
part of your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another 
effective date is shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

 
SEPARATION OF INSUREDS CLARIFICATION ENDORSEMENT 

 
It is agreed that SECTION IV – COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS 
and SECTION IV – LIQUOR LIABILITY CONDITIONS; 7. Separation Of Insureds is 
deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

7. Separation of Insureds 
The Limits of Insurance of this policy applies: 
a. As if each Named Insured were the only Named Insured; and 
b. Separately to each insured against whom claim is made or “suit” is brought, but 

nothing in this endorsement shall serve to increase the Limits of Insurance beyond the 
Per occurrence, per person, per premises, per common cause, aggregate or any similar 
limit stipulated in the Declarations. 

 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 



I decline to purchase Terrorism Coverage. I understand that I will have no coverage for losses 
arising from acts of Terrorism.

TRIADN (02-15)

On File with the Company

I elect to purchase coverage for certified acts of Terrorism for a premium 
of $

POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE NOTICE OF
TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act ("the Act"), as amended you have a right to
purchase insurance coveragefor losses arising out of acts of terrorism. As defined in Section 102(1) of the Act : The
term “act of terrorism” means any act or acts that are certified by the Secretary of the Treasury, in consultation with
the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United States, to be an act of terrorism; to be a
violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the
United States, or outside the United States in the case of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United
States mission; and to have been committed by an individual or individuals, as part of an effort to coerce the civilian
population of the United States or to influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Governmentby
coercion.

You should know that any coverage for losses caused by certified acts of terrorism is partially reimbursed by the
United States under a formula established by federal law. Under this formula, the United States reimburses 85%
through 2015; 84% beginning on January 1, 2016; 83% beginning on January 1, 2017; 82% beginning on January 1,
2018; 81% beginning on January 1, 2019 and 80% beginning on January 1, 2020, of covered terrorism losses
exceeding the statutorily established deductible paid by the insurance company providingthe coverage.The premium
charged for this coverage is providedbelow and does not include any charges for the portion of loss covered by the
federal government under the Act.

Coveragefor "insured losses”, as defined in the Act, is subject to the coverageterms, conditions, amounts and limits
in this policy applicable to losses arising from events other than acts of terrorism.

You should know that the Act, as amended, contains a $100 billion cap that limits U.S. Governmentreimbursement,
as well as insurers' liability, for losses resulting from certified acts of terrorism, when the amount of such losses in any
one calendar year exceeds $100 billion. If the aggregate insured losses for all insurers exceed $100 billion, your
coverage may be reduced.

You should also know that, under federal law, you are not required to purchase coverage for losses caused by
certified acts of terrorism.

REJECTION OR SELECTION OF TERRORISM INSURANCE COVERAGE

Please “X” one of the boxes below and return this notice to the Company.

100

Note: if you do not respond to our offer and do not return this notice to the Company, you will 
have no Terrorism Coverage under this policy.

Date

Named Insured

Authorized Signature

Applicant Name (Print)

X

Signature on File with the Company On File with the Company

IN TOUCH WITH COMMUNITIES AROUND THE WORLD, INC.
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Commercial General Liability Coverage Form 
 
Various provisions in this policy restrict coverage. 
Read the entire policy carefully to determine rights, 
duties and what is and is not covered.  
Throughout this policy the words "you" and "your" 
refer to the Named Insured shown in the Declarations, 
and any other person or organization qualifying as a 
Named Insured under this policy. The words "we", 
"us" and "our" refer to the company providing this 
insurance.  
The word "insured" means any person or organization 
qualifying as such under Section II – Who Is An In-
sured.  
Other words and phrases that appear in quotation 
marks have special meaning. Refer to Section V –
Definitions.  
SECTION I – COVERAGES  
COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY 
DAMAGE LIABILITY  
 1. Insuring Agreement  
 a. We will pay those sums that the insured be-

comes legally obligated to pay as damages 
because of "bodily injury" or "property damage" 
to which this insurance applies. We will have 
the right and duty to defend the insured against 
any "suit" seeking those damages. However, 
we will have no duty to defend the insured 
against any "suit" seeking damages for "bodily 
injury" or "property damage" to which this in-
surance does not apply. We may, at our discre-
tion, investigate any "occurrence" and settle 
any claim or "suit" that may result. But:  

 (1) The amount we will pay for damages is 
limited as described in Section III – Limits 
Of Insurance; and  

 (2) Our right and duty to defend ends when we 
have used up the applicable limit of insur-
ance in the payment of judgments or set-
tlements under Coverages A or B or medi-
cal expenses under Coverage C.  

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or 
perform acts or services is covered unless ex-
plicitly provided for under Supplementary Pay-
ments – Coverages A and B.  

 b. This insurance applies to "bodily injury" and 
"property damage" only if:  

 (1) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" is 
caused by an "occurrence" that takes place 
in the "coverage territory"; 

 (2) The "bodily injury" or "property damage" 
occurs during the policy period; and 

 (3) Prior to the policy period, no insured listed 
under Paragraph 1. of Section II – Who Is 
An Insured and no "employee" authorized 
by you to give or receive notice of an "oc-
currence" or claim, knew that the "bodily in-
jury" or "property damage" had occurred, in 
whole or in part. If such a listed insured or 
authorized "employee" knew, prior to the 
policy period, that the "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" occurred, then any con-
tinuation, change or resumption of such 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" during 
or after the policy period will be deemed to 
have been known prior to the policy period. 

 c. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" which 
occurs during the policy period and was not, 
prior to the policy period, known to have oc-
curred by any insured listed under Paragraph 
1. of Section II – Who Is An Insured or any 
"employee" authorized by you to give or re-
ceive notice of an "occurrence" or claim, in-
cludes any continuation, change or resumption 
of that "bodily injury" or "property damage" af-
ter the end of the policy period.  

 d. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" will be 
deemed to have been known to have occurred 
at the earliest time when any insured listed un-
der Paragraph 1. of Section II – Who Is An In-
sured or any "employee" authorized by you to 
give or receive notice of an "occurrence" or 
claim: 

 (1) Reports all, or any part, of the "bodily injury" 
or "property damage" to us or any other in-
surer; 

 (2) Receives a written or verbal demand or 
claim for damages because of the "bodily 
injury" or "property damage"; or 

 (3) Becomes aware by any other means that 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" has oc-
curred or has begun to occur. 
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 e. Damages because of "bodily injury" include 
damages claimed by any person or organiza-
tion for care, loss of services or death resulting 
at any time from the "bodily injury".  

 2. Exclusions  
This insurance does not apply to:  

 a. Expected Or Intended Injury  
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" expected 
or intended from the standpoint of the insured. 
This exclusion does not apply to "bodily injury" 
resulting from the use of reasonable force to 
protect persons or property.  

 b. Contractual Liability  
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which 
the insured is obligated to pay damages by 
reason of the assumption of liability in a con-
tract or agreement. This exclusion does not 
apply to liability for damages:  

 (1) That the insured would have in the absence 
of the contract or agreement; or  

 (2) Assumed in a contract or agreement that is 
an "insured contract", provided the "bodily 
injury" or "property damage" occurs subse-
quent to the execution of the contract or 
agreement. Solely for the purposes of liabil-
ity assumed in an "insured contract", rea-
sonable attorney fees and necessary litiga-
tion expenses incurred by or for a party 
other than an insured are deemed to be 
damages because of "bodily injury" or 
"property damage", provided:  

 (a) Liability to such party for, or for the cost 
of, that party's defense has also been 
assumed in the same "insured contract"; 
and  

 (b) Such attorney fees and litigation ex-
penses are for defense of that party 
against a civil or alternative dispute res-
olution proceeding in which damages to 
which this insurance applies are alleged.  

 c. Liquor Liability  
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which 
any insured may be held liable by reason of:  

 (1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of 
any person;  

 (2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a 
person under the legal drinking age or un-
der the influence of alcohol; or  

 (3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation relating 
to the sale, gift, distribution or use of alco-
holic beverages.  

This exclusion applies only if you are in the 
business of manufacturing, distributing, selling, 
serving or furnishing alcoholic beverages.  

 d. Workers' Compensation And Similar Laws  
Any obligation of the insured under a workers' 
compensation, disability benefits or unem-
ployment compensation law or any similar law. 

 e. Employer's Liability  
"Bodily injury" to:  

 (1) An "employee" of the insured arising out of 
and in the course of:  

 (a) Employment by the insured; or  
 (b) Performing duties related to the conduct 

of the insured's business; or  
 (2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister 

of that "employee" as a consequence of 
Paragraph (1) above.  

This exclusion applies whether the insured 
may be liable as an employer or in any other 
capacity and to any obligation to share damag-
es with or repay someone else who must pay 
damages because of the injury. 
This exclusion does not apply to liability as-
sumed by the insured under an "insured con-
tract".  
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 f. Pollution  
 (1) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising 

out of the actual, alleged or threatened dis-
charge, dispersal, seepage, migration, re-
lease or escape of "pollutants": 

 (a) At or from any premises, site or location 
which is or was at any time owned or 
occupied by, or rented or loaned to, any 
insured. However, this subparagraph 
does not apply to: 

 (i) "Bodily injury" if sustained within a 
building and caused by smoke, 
fumes, vapor or soot produced by or 
originating from equipment that is 
used to heat, cool or dehumidify the 
building, or equipment that is used to 
heat water for personal use, by the 
building's occupants or their guests; 

 (ii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
for which you may be held liable, if 
you are a contractor and the owner 
or lessee of such premises, site or 
location has been added to your pol-
icy as an additional insured with re-
spect to your ongoing operations 
performed for that additional insured 
at that premises, site or location and 
such premises, site or location is not 
and never was owned or occupied 
by, or rented or loaned to, any in-
sured, other than that additional in-
sured; or 

 (iii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
arising out of heat, smoke or fumes 
from a "hostile fire"; 

 (b) At or from any premises, site or location 
which is or was at any time used by or 
for any insured or others for the han-
dling, storage, disposal, processing or 
treatment of waste;  

 (c) Which are or were at any time trans-
ported, handled, stored, treated, dis-
posed of, or processed as waste by or 
for:  

 (i) Any insured; or  
 (ii) Any person or organization for whom 

you may be legally responsible; or 

 (d) At or from any premises, site or location 
on which any insured or any contractors 
or subcontractors working directly or in-
directly on any insured's behalf are per-
forming operations if the "pollutants" are 
brought on or to the premises, site or lo-
cation in connection with such opera-
tions by such insured, contractor or sub-
contractor. However, this subparagraph 
does not apply to:  

 (i) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
arising out of the escape of fuels, 
lubricants or other operating fluids 
which are needed to perform the 
normal electrical, hydraulic or me-
chanical functions necessary for the 
operation of "mobile equipment" or 
its parts, if such fuels, lubricants or 
other operating fluids escape from a 
vehicle part designed to hold, store 
or receive them. This exception does 
not apply if the "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" arises out of the 
intentional discharge, dispersal or re-
lease of the fuels, lubricants or other 
operating fluids, or if such fuels, lub-
ricants or other operating fluids are 
brought on or to the premises, site or 
location with the intent that they be 
discharged, dispersed or released as 
part of the operations being per-
formed by such insured, contractor 
or subcontractor; 

 (ii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
sustained within a building and 
caused by the release of gases, 
fumes or vapors from materials 
brought into that building in connec-
tion with operations being performed 
by you or on your behalf by a con-
tractor or subcontractor; or 

 (iii) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" 
arising out of heat, smoke or fumes 
from a "hostile fire". 

 (e) At or from any premises, site or location 
on which any insured or any contractors 
or subcontractors working directly or in-
directly on any insured's behalf are per-
forming operations if the operations are 
to test for, monitor, clean up, remove, 
contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or 
in any way respond to, or assess the ef-
fects of, "pollutants". 
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 (2) Any loss, cost or expense arising out of 
any:  

 (a) Request, demand, order or statutory or 
regulatory requirement that any insured 
or others test for, monitor, clean up, re-
move, contain, treat, detoxify or neutral-
ize, or in any way respond to, or assess 
the effects of, "pollutants"; or  

 (b) Claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a gov-
ernmental authority for damages be-
cause of testing for, monitoring, cleaning 
up, removing, containing, treating, de-
toxifying or neutralizing, or in any way 
responding to, or assessing the effects 
of, "pollutants".  

However, this paragraph does not apply to 
liability for damages because of "property 
damage" that the insured would have in the 
absence of such request, demand, order or 
statutory or regulatory requirement, or such 
claim or "suit" by or on behalf of a govern-
mental authority. 

 g. Aircraft, Auto Or Watercraft  
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of the ownership, maintenance, use or en-
trustment to others of any aircraft, "auto" or wa-
tercraft owned or operated by or rented or 
loaned to any insured. Use includes operation 
and "loading or unloading".  
This exclusion applies even if the claims 
against any insured allege negligence or other 
wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring, employ-
ment, training or monitoring of others by that 
insured, if the "occurrence" which caused the 
"bodily injury" or "property damage" involved 
the ownership, maintenance, use or entrust-
ment to others of any aircraft, "auto" or water-
craft that is owned or operated by or rented or 
loaned to any insured. 
This exclusion does not apply to:  

 (1) A watercraft while ashore on premises you 
own or rent;  

 (2) A watercraft you do not own that is:  
 (a) Less than 26 feet long; and  
 (b) Not being used to carry persons or 

property for a charge;  
 (3) Parking an "auto" on, or on the ways next 

to, premises you own or rent, provided the 
"auto" is not owned by or rented or loaned 
to you or the insured;  

 (4) Liability assumed under any "insured con-
tract" for the ownership, maintenance or 
use of aircraft or watercraft; or  

 (5) "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising 
out of:  

 (a) The operation of machinery or equip-
ment that is attached to, or part of, a 
land vehicle that would qualify under the 
definition of "mobile equipment" if it were 
not subject to a compulsory or financial 
responsibility law or other motor vehicle 
insurance law in the state where it is li-
censed or principally garaged; or 

 (b) the operation of any of the machinery or 
equipment listed in Paragraph f.(2) or 
f.(3) of the definition of "mobile equip-
ment".  

 h. Mobile Equipment  
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out 
of:  

 (1) The transportation of "mobile equipment" by 
an "auto" owned or operated by or rented or 
loaned to any insured; or  

 (2) The use of "mobile equipment" in, or while 
in practice for, or while being prepared for, 
any prearranged racing, speed, demolition, 
or stunting activity.  

 i. War  
"Bodily injury" or "property damage", however 
caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of: 

 (1) War, including undeclared or civil war; 
 (2) Warlike action by a military force, including 

action in hindering or defending against an 
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using 
military personnel or other agents; or 

 (3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped 
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any 
of these. 

 j. Damage To Property  
"Property damage" to:  

 (1) Property you own, rent, or occupy, including 
any costs or expenses incurred by you, or 
any other person, organization or entity, for 
repair, replacement, enhancement, restora-
tion or maintenance of such property for 
any reason, including prevention of injury to 
a person or damage to another's property;  

 (2) Premises you sell, give away or abandon, if 
the "property damage" arises out of any 
part of those premises;  

 (3) Property loaned to you;  
 (4) Personal property in the care, custody or 

control of the insured;  
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 (5) That particular part of real property on 
which you or any contractors or subcontrac-
tors working directly or indirectly on your 
behalf are performing operations, if the 
"property damage" arises out of those op-
erations; or  

 (6) That particular part of any property that 
must be restored, repaired or replaced be-
cause "your work" was incorrectly per-
formed on it.  

Paragraphs (1), (3) and (4) of this exclusion do 
not apply to "property damage" (other than 
damage by fire) to premises, including the con-
tents of such premises, rented to you for a pe-
riod of 7 or fewer consecutive days. A separate 
limit of insurance applies to Damage To Prem-
ises Rented To You as described in Section III 
– Limits Of Insurance. 
Paragraph (2) of this exclusion does not apply 
if the premises are "your work" and were never 
occupied, rented or held for rental by you.  
Paragraphs (3), (4), (5) and (6) of this exclu-
sion do not apply to liability assumed under a 
sidetrack agreement.  
Paragraph (6) of this exclusion does not apply 
to "property damage" included in the "products-
completed operations hazard".  

 k. Damage To Your Product  
"Property damage" to "your product" arising out 
of it or any part of it.  

 l. Damage To Your Work  
"Property damage" to "your work" arising out of 
it or any part of it and included in the "products-
completed operations hazard".  
This exclusion does not apply if the damaged 
work or the work out of which the damage aris-
es was performed on your behalf by a subcon-
tractor.  

 m. Damage To Impaired Property Or Property 
Not Physically Injured  
"Property damage" to "impaired property" or 
property that has not been physically injured, 
arising out of:  

 (1) A defect, deficiency, inadequacy or danger-
ous condition in "your product" or "your 
work"; or  

 (2) A delay or failure by you or anyone acting 
on your behalf to perform a contract or 
agreement in accordance with its terms.  

This exclusion does not apply to the loss of use 
of other property arising out of sudden and ac-
cidental physical injury to "your product" or 
"your work" after it has been put to its intended 
use.  

 n. Recall Of Products, Work Or Impaired 
Property  
Damages claimed for any loss, cost or ex-
pense incurred by you or others for the loss of 
use, withdrawal, recall, inspection, repair, re-
placement, adjustment, removal or disposal of:  

 (1) "Your product";  
 (2) "Your work"; or  
 (3) "Impaired property";  

if such product, work, or property is withdrawn 
or recalled from the market or from use by any 
person or organization because of a known or 
suspected defect, deficiency, inadequacy or 
dangerous condition in it.  

 o. Personal And Advertising Injury 
"Bodily injury" arising out of "personal and ad-
vertising injury". 

 p. Electronic Data 
Damages arising out of the loss of, loss of use 
of, damage to, corruption of, inability to access, 
or inability to manipulate electronic data.  
As used in this exclusion, electronic data 
means information, facts or programs stored as 
or on, created or used on, or transmitted to or 
from computer software, including systems and 
applications software, hard or floppy disks, CD-
ROMS, tapes, drives, cells, data processing 
devices or any other media which are used 
with electronically controlled equipment. 

 q. Distribution Of Material In Violation Of 
Statutes 
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising di-
rectly or indirectly out of any action or omission 
that violates or is alleged to violate: 

 (1) The Telephone Consumer Protection Act 
(TCPA), including any amendment of or 
addition to such law; or 

 (2) The CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, including any 
amendment of or addition to such law; or 

 (3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation, other 
than the TCPA or CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, 
that prohibits or limits the sending, transmit-
ting, communicating or distribution of mate-
rial or information.  
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Exclusions c. through n. do not apply to damage 
by fire to premises while rented to you or tempo-
rarily occupied by you with permission of the own-
er. A separate limit of insurance applies to this 
coverage as described in Section III – Limits Of 
Insurance.  

COVERAGE B PERSONAL AND ADVERTISING 
INJURY LIABILITY  
 1. Insuring Agreement  
 a. We will pay those sums that the insured be-

comes legally obligated to pay as damages 
because of "personal and advertising injury" to 
which this insurance applies. We will have the 
right and duty to defend the insured against 
any "suit" seeking those damages. However, 
we will have no duty to defend the insured 
against any "suit" seeking damages for "per-
sonal and advertising injury" to which this in-
surance does not apply. We may, at our discre-
tion, investigate any offense and settle any 
claim or "suit" that may result. But:  

 (1) The amount we will pay for damages is 
limited as described in Section III – Limits 
Of Insurance; and  

 (2) Our right and duty to defend end when we 
have used up the applicable limit of insur-
ance in the payment of judgments or set-
tlements under Coverages A or B or medi-
cal expenses under Coverage C.  

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or 
perform acts or services is covered unless ex-
plicitly provided for under Supplementary Pay-
ments – Coverages A and B. 

 b. This insurance applies to "personal and adver-
tising injury" caused by an offense arising out 
of your business but only if the offense was 
committed in the "coverage territory" during the 
policy period.  

 2. Exclusions  
This insurance does not apply to:  

 a. Knowing Violation Of Rights Of Another 
"Personal and advertising injury" caused by or 
at the direction of the insured with the 
knowledge that the act would violate the rights 
of another and would inflict "personal and ad-
vertising injury". 

 b. Material Published With Knowledge Of 
Falsity 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
oral or written publication of material, if done by 
or at the direction of the insured with 
knowledge of its falsity.  

 c. Material Published Prior To Policy Period 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
oral or written publication of material whose 
first publication took place before the beginning 
of the policy period.  

 d. Criminal Acts 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
a criminal act committed by or at the direction 
of the insured. 

 e. Contractual Liability 
"Personal and advertising injury" for which the 
insured has assumed liability in a contract or 
agreement. This exclusion does not apply to li-
ability for damages that the insured would have 
in the absence of the contract or agreement. 

 f. Breach Of Contract 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
a breach of contract, except an implied con-
tract to use another's advertising idea in your 
"advertisement". 

 g. Quality Or Performance Of Goods – Failure 
To Conform To Statements 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
the failure of goods, products or services to 
conform with any statement of quality or per-
formance made in your "advertisement". 

 h. Wrong Description Of Prices 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
the wrong description of the price of goods, 
products or services stated in your "advertise-
ment".  

 i. Infringement Of Copyright, Patent, 
Trademark Or Trade Secret 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
the infringement of copyright, patent, trade-
mark, trade secret or other intellectual property 
rights. Under this exclusion, such other intellec-
tual property rights do not include the use of 
another's advertising idea in your "advertise-
ment". 
However, this exclusion does not apply to in-
fringement, in your "advertisement", of copy-
right, trade dress or slogan. 

 j. Insureds In Media And Internet Type 
Businesses 
"Personal and advertising injury" committed by 
an insured whose business is: 

 (1) Advertising, broadcasting, publishing or 
telecasting; 

 (2) Designing or determining content of web-
sites for others; or 
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 (3) An Internet search, access, content or 
service provider.  

However, this exclusion does not apply to Par-
agraphs 14.a., b. and c. of "personal and ad-
vertising injury" under the Definitions Section. 
For the purposes of this exclusion, the placing 
of frames, borders or links, or advertising, for 
you or others anywhere on the Internet, is not 
by itself, considered the business of advertis-
ing, broadcasting, publishing or telecasting. 

 k. Electronic Chatrooms Or Bulletin Boards 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
an electronic chatroom or bulletin board the in-
sured hosts, owns, or over which the insured 
exercises control. 

 l. Unauthorized Use Of Another's Name Or 
Product 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
the unauthorized use of another's name or 
product in your e-mail address, domain name 
or metatag, or any other similar tactics to mis-
lead another's potential customers. 

 m. Pollution 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
the actual, alleged or threatened discharge, 
dispersal, seepage, migration, release or es-
cape of "pollutants" at any time.  

 n. Pollution-Related 
Any loss, cost or expense arising out of any:  

 (1) Request, demand, order or statutory or 
regulatory requirement that any insured or 
others test for, monitor, clean up, remove, 
contain, treat, detoxify or neutralize, or in 
any way respond to, or assess the effects 
of, "pollutants"; or  

 (2) Claim or suit by or on behalf of a govern-
mental authority for damages because of 
testing for, monitoring, cleaning up, remov-
ing, containing, treating, detoxifying or neu-
tralizing, or in any way responding to, or 
assessing the effects of, "pollutants".  

 o. War 
"Personal and advertising injury", however 
caused, arising, directly or indirectly, out of: 

 (1)  War, including undeclared or civil war; 
 (2) Warlike action by a military force, including 

action in hindering or defending against an 
actual or expected attack, by any govern-
ment, sovereign or other authority using 
military personnel or other agents; or 

 (3) Insurrection, rebellion, revolution, usurped 
power, or action taken by governmental au-
thority in hindering or defending against any 
of these. 

 p. Distribution Of Material In Violation Of 
Statutes 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising direct-
ly or indirectly out of any action or omission 
that violates or is alleged to violate: 

 (1) The Telephone Consumer Protection Act 
(TCPA), including any amendment of or 
addition to such law; or 

 (2) The CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, including any 
amendment of or addition to such law; or 

 (3) Any statute, ordinance or regulation, other 
than the TCPA or CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, 
that prohibits or limits the sending, transmit-
ting, communicating or distribution of mate-
rial or information.  

COVERAGE C MEDICAL PAYMENTS  
 1. Insuring Agreement  
 a. We will pay medical expenses as described 

below for "bodily injury" caused by an accident:  
 (1) On premises you own or rent;  
 (2) On ways next to premises you own or rent; 

or  
 (3) Because of your operations; 

provided that:  
 (a) The accident takes place in the "cover-

age territory" and during the policy peri-
od;  

 (b) The expenses are incurred and reported 
to us within one year of the date of the 
accident; and  

 (c) The injured person submits to examina-
tion, at our expense, by physicians of 
our choice as often as we reasonably 
require.  

 b. We will make these payments regardless of 
fault. These payments will not exceed the ap-
plicable limit of insurance. We will pay reason-
able expenses for:  

 (1) First aid administered at the time of an 
accident;  

 (2) Necessary medical, surgical, x-ray and 
dental services, including prosthetic devic-
es; and  

 (3) Necessary ambulance, hospital, profes-
sional nursing and funeral services.  
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 2. Exclusions  
We will not pay expenses for "bodily injury":  

 a. Any Insured 
To any insured, except "volunteer workers".  

 b. Hired Person 
To a person hired to do work for or on behalf of 
any insured or a tenant of any insured.  

 c. Injury On Normally Occupied Premises 
To a person injured on that part of premises 
you own or rent that the person normally occu-
pies.  

 d. Workers Compensation And Similar Laws 
To a person, whether or not an "employee" of 
any insured, if benefits for the "bodily injury" 
are payable or must be provided under a work-
ers' compensation or disability benefits law or a 
similar law.  

 e. Athletics Activities 
To a person injured while practicing, instructing 
or participating in any physical exercises or 
games, sports, or athletic contests.  

 f. Products-Completed Operations Hazard 
Included within the "products-completed opera-
tions hazard".  

 g. Coverage A Exclusions 
Excluded under Coverage A. 

SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A 
AND B  
 1. We will pay, with respect to any claim we investi-

gate or settle, or any "suit" against an insured we 
defend:  

 a. All expenses we incur.  
 b. Up to $250 for cost of bail bonds required 

because of accidents or traffic law violations 
arising out of the use of any vehicle to which 
the Bodily Injury Liability Coverage applies. We 
do not have to furnish these bonds.  

 c. The cost of bonds to release attachments, but 
only for bond amounts within the applicable 
limit of insurance. We do not have to furnish 
these bonds.  

 d. All reasonable expenses incurred by the in-
sured at our request to assist us in the investi-
gation or defense of the claim or "suit", includ-
ing actual loss of earnings up to $250 a day 
because of time off from work.  

 e. All court costs taxed against the insured in the 
"suit". However, these payments do not include 
attorneys' fees or attorneys' expenses taxed 
against the insured.  

 f. Prejudgment interest awarded against the 
insured on that part of the judgment we pay. If 
we make an offer to pay the applicable limit of 
insurance, we will not pay any prejudgment in-
terest based on that period of time after the of-
fer.  

 g. All interest on the full amount of any judgment 
that accrues after entry of the judgment and 
before we have paid, offered to pay, or depos-
ited in court the part of the judgment that is 
within the applicable limit of insurance.  

These payments will not reduce the limits of insur-
ance.  

 2. If we defend an insured against a "suit" and an 
indemnitee of the insured is also named as a party 
to the "suit", we will defend that indemnitee if all of 
the following conditions are met:  

 a. The "suit" against the indemnitee seeks dam-
ages for which the insured has assumed the li-
ability of the indemnitee in a contract or 
agreement that is an "insured contract";  

 b. This insurance applies to such liability as-
sumed by the insured;  

 c. The obligation to defend, or the cost of the 
defense of, that indemnitee, has also been as-
sumed by the insured in the same "insured 
contract";  

 d. The allegations in the "suit" and the information 
we know about the "occurrence" are such that 
no conflict appears to exist between the inter-
ests of the insured and the interests of the in-
demnitee;  

 e. The indemnitee and the insured ask us to 
conduct and control the defense of that indem-
nitee against such "suit" and agree that we can 
assign the same counsel to defend the insured 
and the indemnitee; and  

 f. The indemnitee:  
 (1) Agrees in writing to:  
 (a) Cooperate with us in the investigation, 

settlement or defense of the "suit";  
 (b) Immediately send us copies of any 

demands, notices, summonses or legal 
papers received in connection with the 
"suit";  

 (c) Notify any other insurer whose coverage 
is available to the indemnitee; and  

 (d) Cooperate with us with respect to coor-
dinating other applicable insurance 
available to the indemnitee; and  

 (2) Provides us with written authorization to:  
 (a) Obtain records and other information 

related to the "suit"; and  
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 (b) Conduct and control the defense of the 
indemnitee in such "suit".  

So long as the above conditions are met, attor-
neys' fees incurred by us in the defense of that in-
demnitee, necessary litigation expenses incurred 
by us and necessary litigation expenses incurred 
by the indemnitee at our request will be paid as 
Supplementary Payments. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of Paragraph 2.b.(2) of Section I – 
Coverage A – Bodily Injury And Property Damage 
Liability, such payments will not be deemed to be 
damages for "bodily injury" and "property damage" 
and will not reduce the limits of insurance.  
Our obligation to defend an insured's indemnitee 
and to pay for attorneys' fees and necessary litiga-
tion expenses as Supplementary Payments ends 
when we have used up the applicable limit of in-
surance in the payment of judgments or settle-
ments or the conditions set forth above, or the 
terms of the agreement described in Paragraph f. 
above, are no longer met. 

SECTION II – WHO IS AN INSURED  
 1. If you are designated in the Declarations as:  
 a. An individual, you and your spouse are in-

sureds, but only with respect to the conduct of 
a business of which you are the sole owner.  

 b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an in-
sured. Your members, your partners, and their 
spouses are also insureds, but only with re-
spect to the conduct of your business.  

 c. A limited liability company, you are an insured. 
Your members are also insureds, but only with 
respect to the conduct of your business. Your 
managers are insureds, but only with respect 
to their duties as your managers.  

 d. An organization other than a partnership, joint 
venture or limited liability company, you are an 
insured. Your "executive officers" and directors 
are insureds, but only with respect to their du-
ties as your officers or directors. Your stock-
holders are also insureds, but only with respect 
to their liability as stockholders.  

 e. A trust, you are an insured. Your trustees are 
also insureds, but only with respect to their du-
ties as trustees. 

 2. Each of the following is also an insured:  
 a. Your "volunteer workers" only while performing 

duties related to the conduct of your business, 
or your "employees", other than either your 
"executive officers" (if you are an organization 
other than a partnership, joint venture or limited 
liability company) or your managers (if you are 
a limited liability company), but only for acts 
within the scope of their employment by you or 
while performing duties related to the conduct 
of your business. However, none of these "em-
ployees" or "volunteer workers" are insureds 
for:  

 (1) "Bodily injury" or "personal and advertising 
injury":  

 (a) To you, to your partners or members (if 
you are a partnership or joint venture), 
to your members (if you are a limited li-
ability company), to a co-"employee" 
while in the course of his or her em-
ployment or performing duties related to 
the conduct of your business, or to your 
other "volunteer workers" while perform-
ing duties related to the conduct of your 
business;  

 (b) To the spouse, child, parent, brother or 
sister of that co-"employee" or "volun-
teer worker" as a consequence of Para-
graph (1)(a) above;  

 (c) For which there is any obligation to 
share damages with or repay someone 
else who must pay damages because of 
the injury described in Paragraphs (1)(a) 
or (b) above; or  

 (d) Arising out of his or her providing or 
failing to provide professional health 
care services.  

 (2) "Property damage" to property:  
 (a) Owned, occupied or used by,  
 (b) Rented to, in the care, custody or con-

trol of, or over which physical control is 
being exercised for any purpose by  

you, any of your "employees", "volunteer 
workers", any partner or member (if you are 
a partnership or joint venture), or any mem-
ber (if you are a limited liability company).  
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 b. Any person (other than your "employee" or 
"volunteer worker"), or any organization while 
acting as your real estate manager.  

 c. Any person or organization having proper 
temporary custody of your property if you die, 
but only:  

 (1) With respect to liability arising out of the 
maintenance or use of that property; and  

 (2) Until your legal representative has been 
appointed.  

 d. Your legal representative if you die, but only 
with respect to duties as such. That repre-
sentative will have all your rights and duties 
under this Coverage Part.  

 3. Any organization you newly acquire or form, other 
than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability 
company, and over which you maintain ownership 
or majority interest, will qualify as a Named In-
sured if there is no other similar insurance availa-
ble to that organization. However:  

 a. Coverage under this provision is afforded only 
until the 90th day after you acquire or form the 
organization or the end of the policy period, 
whichever is earlier;  

 b. Coverage A does not apply to "bodily injury" or 
"property damage" that occurred before you 
acquired or formed the organization; and  

 c. Coverage B does not apply to "personal and 
advertising injury" arising out of an offense 
committed before you acquired or formed the 
organization.  

No person or organization is an insured with respect 
to the conduct of any current or past partnership, joint 
venture or limited liability company that is not shown 
as a Named Insured in the Declarations.  
SECTION III – LIMITS OF INSURANCE  
 1. The Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations 

and the rules below fix the most we will pay re-
gardless of the number of:  

 a. Insureds;  
 b. Claims made or "suits" brought; or  
 c. Persons or organizations making claims or 

bringing "suits".  
 2. The General Aggregate Limit is the most we will 

pay for the sum of:  
 a. Medical expenses under Coverage C;  
 b. Damages under Coverage A, except damages 

because of "bodily injury" or "property damage" 
included in the "products-completed operations 
hazard"; and  

 c. Damages under Coverage B.  

 3. The Products-Completed Operations Aggregate 
Limit is the most we will pay under Coverage A for 
damages because of "bodily injury" and "property 
damage" included in the "products-completed op-
erations hazard".  

 4. Subject to Paragraph 2. above, the Personal and 
Advertising Injury Limit is the most we will pay un-
der Coverage B for the sum of all damages be-
cause of all "personal and advertising injury" sus-
tained by any one person or organization.  

 5. Subject to Paragraph 2. or 3. above, whichever 
applies, the Each Occurrence Limit is the most we 
will pay for the sum of:  

 a. Damages under Coverage A; and  
 b. Medical expenses under Coverage C  

because of all "bodily injury" and "property dam-
age" arising out of any one "occurrence".  

 6. Subject to Paragraph 5. above, the Damage To 
Premises Rented To You Limit is the most we will 
pay under Coverage A for damages because of 
"property damage" to any one premises, while 
rented to you, or in the case of damage by fire, 
while rented to you or temporarily occupied by you 
with permission of the owner.  

 7. Subject to Paragraph 5. above, the Medical Ex-
pense Limit is the most we will pay under Cover-
age C for all medical expenses because of "bodily 
injury" sustained by any one person.  

The Limits of Insurance of this Coverage Part apply 
separately to each consecutive annual period and to 
any remaining period of less than 12 months, starting 
with the beginning of the policy period shown in the 
Declarations, unless the policy period is extended 
after issuance for an additional period of less than 12 
months. In that case, the additional period will be 
deemed part of the last preceding period for purposes 
of determining the Limits of Insurance.  
SECTION IV – COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CONDITIONS  
 1. Bankruptcy  

Bankruptcy or insolvency of the insured or of the 
insured's estate will not relieve us of our obliga-
tions under this Coverage Part.  

 2. Duties In The Event Of Occurrence, Offense, 
Claim Or Suit  

 a. You must see to it that we are notified as soon 
as practicable of an "occurrence" or an offense 
which may result in a claim. To the extent pos-
sible, notice should include:  

 (1) How, when and where the "occurrence" or 
offense took place;  

 (2) The names and addresses of any injured 
persons and witnesses; and  
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 (3) The nature and location of any injury or 
damage arising out of the "occurrence" or 
offense.  

 b. If a claim is made or "suit" is brought against 
any insured, you must:  

 (1) Immediately record the specifics of the 
claim or "suit" and the date received; and  

 (2) Notify us as soon as practicable.  
You must see to it that we receive written no-
tice of the claim or "suit" as soon as practica-
ble.  

 c. You and any other involved insured must:  
 (1) Immediately send us copies of any de-

mands, notices, summonses or legal pa-
pers received in connection with the claim 
or "suit";  

 (2) Authorize us to obtain records and other 
information;  

 (3) Cooperate with us in the investigation or 
settlement of the claim or defense against 
the "suit"; and  

 (4) Assist us, upon our request, in the en-
forcement of any right against any person 
or organization which may be liable to the 
insured because of injury or damage to 
which this insurance may also apply.  

 d. No insured will, except at that insured's own 
cost, voluntarily make a payment, assume any 
obligation, or incur any expense, other than for 
first aid, without our consent.  

 3. Legal Action Against Us  
No person or organization has a right under this 
Coverage Part:  

 a. To join us as a party or otherwise bring us into 
a "suit" asking for damages from an insured; or  

 b. To sue us on this Coverage Part unless all of 
its terms have been fully complied with.  

A person or organization may sue us to recover on 
an agreed settlement or on a final judgment 
against an insured; but we will not be liable for 
damages that are not payable under the terms of 
this Coverage Part or that are in excess of the ap-
plicable limit of insurance. An agreed settlement 
means a settlement and release of liability signed 
by us, the insured and the claimant or the claim-
ant's legal representative.  

 4. Other Insurance  
If other valid and collectible insurance is available 
to the insured for a loss we cover under Coverag-
es A or B of this Coverage Part, our obligations 
are limited as follows:  

 a. Primary Insurance  
This insurance is primary except when Para-
graph b. below applies. If this insurance is pri-
mary, our obligations are not affected unless 
any of the other insurance is also primary. 
Then, we will share with all that other insur-
ance by the method described in Paragraph c. 
below.  

 b. Excess Insurance  
 (1) This insurance is excess over:  
 (a) Any of the other insurance, whether 

primary, excess, contingent or on any 
other basis:  

 (i) That is Fire, Extended Coverage, 
Builder's Risk, Installation Risk or 
similar coverage for "your work";  

 (ii) That is Fire insurance for premises 
rented to you or temporarily occu-
pied by you with permission of the 
owner;  

 (iii) That is insurance purchased by you 
to cover your liability as a tenant for 
"property damage" to premises rent-
ed to you or temporarily occupied by 
you with permission of the owner; or 

 (iv) If the loss arises out of the mainte-
nance or use of aircraft, "autos" or 
watercraft to the extent not subject to 
Exclusion g. of Section I – Coverage 
A – Bodily Injury And Property Dam-
age Liability.  

 (b) Any other primary insurance available to 
you covering liability for damages aris-
ing out of the premises or operations, or 
the products and completed operations, 
for which you have been added as an 
additional insured by attachment of an 
endorsement. 

 (2) When this insurance is excess, we will have 
no duty under Coverages A or B to defend 
the insured against any "suit" if any other 
insurer has a duty to defend the insured 
against that "suit". If no other insurer de-
fends, we will undertake to do so, but we 
will be entitled to the insured's rights 
against all those other insurers.  
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 (3) When this insurance is excess over other 
insurance, we will pay only our share of the 
amount of the loss, if any, that exceeds the 
sum of: 

 (a) The total amount that all such other 
insurance would pay for the loss in the 
absence of this insurance; and  

 (b) The total of all deductible and self-
insured amounts under all that other in-
surance. 

 (4) We will share the remaining loss, if any, 
with any other insurance that is not de-
scribed in this Excess Insurance provision 
and was not bought specifically to apply in 
excess of the Limits of Insurance shown in 
the Declarations of this Coverage Part.  

 c. Method Of Sharing  
If all of the other insurance permits contribution 
by equal shares, we will follow this method al-
so. Under this approach each insurer contrib-
utes equal amounts until it has paid its applica-
ble limit of insurance or none of the loss 
remains, whichever comes first.  
If any of the other insurance does not permit 
contribution by equal shares, we will contribute 
by limits. Under this method, each insurer's 
share is based on the ratio of its applicable lim-
it of insurance to the total applicable limits of 
insurance of all insurers.  

 5. Premium Audit  
 a. We will compute all premiums for this Cover-

age Part in accordance with our rules and 
rates.  

 b. Premium shown in this Coverage Part as ad-
vance premium is a deposit premium only. At 
the close of each audit period we will compute 
the earned premium for that period and send 
notice to the first Named Insured. The due date 
for audit and retrospective premiums is the 
date shown as the due date on the bill. If the 
sum of the advance and audit premiums paid 
for the policy period is greater than the earned 
premium, we will return the excess to the first 
Named Insured.  

 c. The first Named Insured must keep records of 
the information we need for premium computa-
tion, and send us copies at such times as we 
may request.  

 6. Representations  
By accepting this policy, you agree:  

 a. The statements in the Declarations are accu-
rate and complete;  

 b. Those statements are based upon representa-
tions you made to us; and  

 c. We have issued this policy in reliance upon 
your representations.  

 7. Separation Of Insureds  
Except with respect to the Limits of Insurance, and 
any rights or duties specifically assigned in this 
Coverage Part to the first Named Insured, this in-
surance applies:  

 a. As if each Named Insured were the only 
Named Insured; and  

 b. Separately to each insured against whom claim 
is made or "suit" is brought.  

 8. Transfer Of Rights Of Recovery Against Others 
To Us  
If the insured has rights to recover all or part of 
any payment we have made under this Coverage 
Part, those rights are transferred to us. The in-
sured must do nothing after loss to impair them. At 
our request, the insured will bring "suit" or transfer 
those rights to us and help us enforce them.  

 9. When We Do Not Renew  
If we decide not to renew this Coverage Part, we 
will mail or deliver to the first Named Insured 
shown in the Declarations written notice of the 
nonrenewal not less than 30 days before the expi-
ration date.  
If notice is mailed, proof of mailing will be sufficient 
proof of notice.  

SECTION V – DEFINITIONS  
 1. "Advertisement" means a notice that is broadcast 

or published to the general public or specific mar-
ket segments about your goods, products or ser-
vices for the purpose of attracting customers or 
supporters. For the purposes of this definition: 

 a. Notices that are published include material 
placed on the Internet or on similar electronic 
means of communication; and 

 b. Regarding web-sites, only that part of a web-
site that is about your goods, products or ser-
vices for the purposes of attracting customers 
or supporters is considered an advertisement. 

 2. "Auto" means: 
 a. A land motor vehicle, trailer or semitrailer de-

signed for travel on public roads, including any 
attached machinery or equipment; or 

 b. Any other land vehicle that is subject to a com-
pulsory or financial responsibility law or other 
motor vehicle insurance law in the state where 
it is licensed or principally garaged. 

However, "auto" does not include "mobile equip-
ment".  
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 3. "Bodily injury" means bodily injury, sickness or 
disease sustained by a person, including death re-
sulting from any of these at any time.  

 4. "Coverage territory" means:  
 a. The United States of America (including its 

territories and possessions), Puerto Rico and 
Canada;  

 b. International waters or airspace, but only if the 
injury or damage occurs in the course of travel 
or transportation between any places included 
in Paragraph a. above; or  

 c. All other parts of the world if the injury or dam-
age arises out of:  

 (1) Goods or products made or sold by you in 
the territory described in Paragraph a. 
above; 

 (2) The activities of a person whose home is in 
the territory described in Paragraph a. 
above, but is away for a short time on your 
business; or  

 (3) "Personal and advertising injury" offenses 
that take place through the Internet or simi-
lar electronic means of communication 

provided the insured's responsibility to pay dam-
ages is determined in a "suit" on the merits, in the 
territory described in Paragraph a. above or in a 
settlement we agree to.  

 5. "Employee" includes a "leased worker". "Employ-
ee" does not include a "temporary worker".  

 6. "Executive officer" means a person holding any of 
the officer positions created by your charter, con-
stitution, by-laws or any other similar governing 
document.  

 7. "Hostile fire" means one which becomes uncon-
trollable or breaks out from where it was intended 
to be. 

 8. "Impaired property" means tangible property, other 
than "your product" or "your work", that cannot be 
used or is less useful because:  

 a. It incorporates "your product" or "your work" 
that is known or thought to be defective, defi-
cient, inadequate or dangerous; or  

 b. You have failed to fulfill the terms of a contract 
or agreement;  

if such property can be restored to use by the re-
pair, replacement, adjustment or removal of "your 
product" or "your work" or your fulfilling the terms 
of the contract or agreement. 

 9. "Insured contract" means:  
 a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, 

that portion of the contract for a lease of prem-
ises that indemnifies any person or organiza-
tion for damage by fire to premises while rent-
ed to you or temporarily occupied by you with 
permission of the owner is not an "insured con-
tract";  

 b. A sidetrack agreement;  
 c. Any easement or license agreement, except in 

connection with construction or demolition op-
erations on or within 50 feet of a railroad;  

 d. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to 
indemnify a municipality, except in connection 
with work for a municipality;  

 e. An elevator maintenance agreement;  
 f. That part of any other contract or agreement 

pertaining to your business (including an in-
demnification of a municipality in connection 
with work performed for a municipality) under 
which you assume the tort liability of another 
party to pay for "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" to a third person or organization. Tort 
liability means a liability that would be imposed 
by law in the absence of any contract or 
agreement.  
Paragraph f. does not include that part of any 
contract or agreement:  

 (1) That indemnifies a railroad for "bodily injury" 
or "property damage" arising out of con-
struction or demolition operations, within 50 
feet of any railroad property and affecting 
any railroad bridge or trestle, tracks, road-
beds, tunnel, underpass or crossing;  

 (2) That indemnifies an architect, engineer or 
surveyor for injury or damage arising out of:  

 (a) Preparing, approving, or failing to pre-
pare or approve, maps, shop drawings, 
opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, 
change orders or drawings and specifi-
cations; or  

 (b) Giving directions or instructions, or 
failing to give them, if that is the primary 
cause of the injury or damage; or  

 (3) Under which the insured, if an architect, 
engineer or surveyor, assumes liability for 
an injury or damage arising out of the in-
sured's rendering or failure to render pro-
fessional services, including those listed in 
(2) above and supervisory, inspection, ar-
chitectural or engineering activities.  
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10. "Leased worker" means a person leased to you by 
a labor leasing firm under an agreement between 
you and the labor leasing firm, to perform duties 
related to the conduct of your business. "Leased 
worker" does not include a "temporary worker".  

11. "Loading or unloading" means the handling of 
property:  

 a. After it is moved from the place where it is 
accepted for movement into or onto an aircraft, 
watercraft or "auto";  

 b. While it is in or on an aircraft, watercraft or 
"auto"; or  

 c. While it is being moved from an aircraft, water-
craft or "auto" to the place where it is finally de-
livered;  

but "loading or unloading" does not include the 
movement of property by means of a mechanical 
device, other than a hand truck, that is not at-
tached to the aircraft, watercraft or "auto".  

12. "Mobile equipment" means any of the following 
types of land vehicles, including any attached ma-
chinery or equipment:  

 a. Bulldozers, farm machinery, forklifts and other 
vehicles designed for use principally off public 
roads;  

 b. Vehicles maintained for use solely on or next to 
premises you own or rent;  

 c. Vehicles that travel on crawler treads;  
 d. Vehicles, whether self-propelled or not, main-

tained primarily to provide mobility to perma-
nently mounted:  

 (1) Power cranes, shovels, loaders, diggers or 
drills; or  

 (2) Road construction or resurfacing equipment 
such as graders, scrapers or rollers;  

 e. Vehicles not described in Paragraph a., b., c. 
or d. above that are not self-propelled and are 
maintained primarily to provide mobility to per-
manently attached equipment of the following 
types:  

 (1) Air compressors, pumps and generators, 
including spraying, welding, building clean-
ing, geophysical exploration, lighting and 
well servicing equipment; or  

 (2) Cherry pickers and similar devices used to 
raise or lower workers;  

 f. Vehicles not described in Paragraph a., b., c. 
or d. above maintained primarily for purposes 
other than the transportation of persons or car-
go.  

However, self-propelled vehicles with the fol-
lowing types of permanently attached equip-
ment are not "mobile equipment" but will be 
considered "autos":  

 (1) Equipment designed primarily for:  
 (a) Snow removal;  
 (b) Road maintenance, but not construction 

or resurfacing; or  
 (c) Street cleaning;  
 (2) Cherry pickers and similar devices mounted 

on automobile or truck chassis and used to 
raise or lower workers; and  

 (3) Air compressors, pumps and generators, 
including spraying, welding, building clean-
ing, geophysical exploration, lighting and 
well servicing equipment. 

However, "mobile equipment" does not include 
any land vehicles that are subject to a compulsory 
or financial responsibility law or other motor vehi-
cle insurance law in the state where it is licensed 
or principally garaged. Land vehicles subject to a 
compulsory or financial responsibility law or other 
motor vehicle insurance law are considered "au-
tos". 

13. "Occurrence" means an accident, including con-
tinuous or repeated exposure to substantially the 
same general harmful conditions.  

14. "Personal and advertising injury" means injury, 
including consequential "bodily injury", arising out 
of one or more of the following offenses:  

 a. False arrest, detention or imprisonment;  
 b. Malicious prosecution;  
 c. The wrongful eviction from, wrongful entry into, 

or invasion of the right of private occupancy of 
a room, dwelling or premises that a person oc-
cupies, committed by or on behalf of its owner, 
landlord or lessor;  

 d. Oral or written publication, in any manner, of 
material that slanders or libels a person or or-
ganization or disparages a person's or organi-
zation's goods, products or services; 

 e. Oral or written publication, in any manner, of 
material that violates a person's right of priva-
cy;  

 f. The use of another's advertising idea in your 
"advertisement"; or 

 g. Infringing upon another's copyright, trade dress 
or slogan in your "advertisement".  
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15. "Pollutants" mean any solid, liquid, gaseous or 
thermal irritant or contaminant, including smoke, 
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals and 
waste. Waste includes materials to be recycled, 
reconditioned or reclaimed. 

16. "Products-completed operations hazard":  
 a. Includes all "bodily injury" and "property dam-

age" occurring away from premises you own or 
rent and arising out of "your product" or "your 
work" except:  

 (1) Products that are still in your physical pos-
session; or  

 (2) Work that has not yet been completed or 
abandoned. However, "your work" will be 
deemed completed at the earliest of the fol-
lowing times:  

 (a) When all of the work called for in your 
contract has been completed.  

 (b) When all of the work to be done at the 
job site has been completed if your con-
tract calls for work at more than one job 
site.  

 (c) When that part of the work done at a job 
site has been put to its intended use by 
any person or organization other than 
another contractor or subcontractor 
working on the same project.  

Work that may need service, maintenance, 
correction, repair or replacement, but which 
is otherwise complete, will be treated as 
completed.  

 b. Does not include "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" arising out of:  

 (1) The transportation of property, unless the 
injury or damage arises out of a condition in 
or on a vehicle not owned or operated by 
you, and that condition was created by the 
"loading or unloading" of that vehicle by any 
insured;  

 (2) The existence of tools, uninstalled equip-
ment or abandoned or unused materials; or  

 (3) Products or operations for which the classi-
fication, listed in the Declarations or in a 
policy schedule, states that products-
completed operations are subject to the 
General Aggregate Limit.  

17. "Property damage" means:  
 a. Physical injury to tangible property, including 

all resulting loss of use of that property. All 
such loss of use shall be deemed to occur at 
the time of the physical injury that caused it; or  

 b. Loss of use of tangible property that is not 
physically injured. All such loss of use shall be 
deemed to occur at the time of the "occur-
rence" that caused it.  

For the purposes of this insurance, electronic data 
is not tangible property. 
As used in this definition, electronic data means 
information, facts or programs stored as or on, 
created or used on, or transmitted to or from com-
puter software, including systems and applications 
software, hard or floppy disks, CD-ROMS, tapes, 
drives, cells, data processing devices or any other 
media which are used with electronically controlled 
equipment. 

18. "Suit" means a civil proceeding in which damages 
because of "bodily injury", "property damage" or 
"personal and advertising injury" to which this in-
surance applies are alleged. "Suit" includes:  

 a. An arbitration proceeding in which such dam-
ages are claimed and to which the insured 
must submit or does submit with our consent; 
or  

 b. Any other alternative dispute resolution pro-
ceeding in which such damages are claimed 
and to which the insured submits with our con-
sent.  

19. "Temporary worker" means a person who is fur-
nished to you to substitute for a permanent "em-
ployee" on leave or to meet seasonal or short-term 
workload conditions.  

20. "Volunteer worker" means a person who is not 
your "employee", and who donates his or her work 
and acts at the direction of and within the scope of 
duties determined by you, and is not paid a fee, 
salary or other compensation by you or anyone 
else for their work performed for you. 

21. "Your product":  
 a. Means:  
 (1) Any goods or products, other than real 

property, manufactured, sold, handled, dis-
tributed or disposed of by:  

 (a) You;  
 (b) Others trading under your name; or  
 (c) A person or organization whose busi-

ness or assets you have acquired; and  
 (2) Containers (other than vehicles), materials, 

parts or equipment furnished in connection 
with such goods or products.  

 b. Includes: 
 (1) Warranties or representations made at any 

time with respect to the fitness, quality, du-
rability, performance or use of "your prod-
uct"; and 



Page 16 of 16 © ISO Properties, Inc., 2006  CG 00 01 12 07 � 
 

 (2) The providing of or failure to provide warn-
ings or instructions.  

 c. Does not include vending machines or other 
property rented to or located for the use of oth-
ers but not sold.  

22. "Your work":  
 a. Means:  
 (1) Work or operations performed by you or on 

your behalf; and  
 (2) Materials, parts or equipment furnished in 

connection with such work or operations.  
 b. Includes: 
 (1) Warranties or representations made at any 

time with respect to the fitness, quality, du-
rability, performance or use of "your work", 
and  

 (2) The providing of or failure to provide warn-
ings or instructions. 
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RECORDING AND DISTRIBUTION OF MATERIAL OR  
INFORMATION IN VIOLATION OF LAW EXCLUSION 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 
A. Exclusion q. of Paragraph 2. Exclusions of Sec-

tion I – Coverage A – Bodily Injury And Prop-
erty Damage Liability is replaced by the follow-
ing: 

 2. Exclusions  
This insurance does not apply to: 

 q. Recording And Distribution Of Material 
Or Information In Violation Of Law 
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising 
directly or indirectly out of any action or 
omission that violates or is alleged to vio-
late: 

 (1) The Telephone Consumer Protection 
Act (TCPA), including any amendment 
of or addition to such law;  

 (2) The CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, including 
any amendment of or addition to such 
law;  

 (3) The Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), 
and any amendment of or addition to 
such law, including the Fair and Accu-
rate Credit Transaction Act (FACTA); or 

 (4) Any federal, state or local statute, ordi-
nance or regulation, other than the 
TCPA, CAN-SPAM Act of 2003 or 
FCRA and their amendments and addi-
tions, that addresses, prohibits, or limits 
the printing, dissemination, disposal, 
collecting, recording, sending, transmit-
ting, communicating or distribution of 
material or information. 

B. Exclusion p. of Paragraph 2. Exclusions of Sec-
tion I – Coverage B – Personal And Advertising 
Injury Liability is replaced by the following: 

 2. Exclusions 
This insurance does not apply to:  

 p. Recording And Distribution Of Material 
Or Information In Violation Of Law 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising di-
rectly or indirectly out of any action or omis-
sion that violates or is alleged to violate: 

 (1) The Telephone Consumer Protection 
Act (TCPA), including any amendment 
of or addition to such law;  

 (2) The CAN-SPAM Act of 2003, including 
any amendment of or addition to such 
law;  

 (3) The Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), 
and any amendment of or addition to 
such law, including the Fair and Accu-
rate Credit Transaction Act (FACTA); or 

 (4) Any federal, state or local statute, ordi-
nance or regulation, other than the 
TCPA, CAN-SPAM Act of 2003 or 
FCRA and their amendments and addi-
tions, that addresses, prohibits, or limits 
the printing, dissemination, disposal, 
collecting, recording, sending, transmit-
ting, communicating or distribution of 
material or information. 
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED PERSON OR ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

   COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE
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Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to include
as an additional insured the person(s) or organization(s) 
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability 
for "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and 
advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by your 
acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting 
on your behalf:

A.

However:
The insurance afforded to such additional insured 
only applies to the extent permitted by law; and

1.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the insurance 
afforded to such additional insured will not be 
broader than that which you are required by the 
contract or agreement to provide for such additional 
insured.

2.

With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section III - Limits Of Insurance:

B.

Required by the contract or agreement; or1.

Available under the applicable Limits of 
Insurance shown in the Declarations;

2.

whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance:

This endorsement shall not increase the applicable 
Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

In the performance of your ongoing operations; or1.

In connection with your premises owned by or 
rented to you.

2.
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Exclusion – Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or 
Personal Information And  

Data-Related Liability – Limited Bodily Injury Exception 
Not Included 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 
A. Exclusion 2.p. of Section I – Coverage A – 

Bodily Injury And Property Damage Liability is 
replaced by the following:  

 2. Exclusions  
This insurance does not apply to:  

 p. Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or 
Personal Information And Data-related 
Liability 
Damages arising out of:  

 (1) Any access to or disclosure of any 
person's or organization's confidential or 
personal information, including patents, 
trade secrets, processing methods, 
customer lists, financial information, 
credit card information, health 
information or any other type of 
nonpublic information; or  

 (2) The loss of, loss of use of, damage to, 
corruption of, inability to access, or 
inability to manipulate electronic data.  

This exclusion applies even if damages are 
claimed for notification costs, credit 
monitoring expenses, forensic expenses, 
public relations expenses or any other loss, 
cost or expense incurred by you or others 
arising out of that which is described in 
Paragraph (1) or (2) above. 
As used in this exclusion, electronic data 
means information, facts or programs 
stored as or on, created or used on, or 
transmitted to or from computer software, 
including systems and applications 
software, hard or floppy disks, CD-ROMs, 
tapes, drives, cells, data processing 
devices or any other media which are used 
with electronically controlled equipment. 

B. The following is added to Paragraph 2. 
Exclusions of Section I – Coverage B – 
Personal And Advertising Injury Liability:  

 2. Exclusions  
This insurance does not apply to:  
Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or 
Personal Information 
"Personal and advertising injury" arising out of 
any access to or disclosure of any person's or 
organization's confidential or personal 
information, including patents, trade secrets, 
processing methods, customer lists, financial 
information, credit card information, health 
information or any other type of nonpublic 
information. 
This exclusion applies even if damages are 
claimed for notification costs, credit monitoring 
expenses, forensic expenses, public relations 
expenses or any other loss, cost or expense 
incurred by you or others arising out of any 
access to or disclosure of any person's or 
organization's confidential or personal 
information. 
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EXCLUSION – NEW ENTITIES 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 
Paragraph 3. of Section II – Who Is An Insured 
does not apply. 
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THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 
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CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY LIMITATION 
  
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART  

 
The definition of "insured contract" in the DEFINI-
TIONS Section is replaced by the following:  
"Insured contract" means:  
 a. A contract for a lease of premises. However, that 

portion of the contract for a lease of premises that 
indemnifies any person or organization for damage 
by fire to premises while rented to you or temporar-
ily occupied by you with permission of the owner is 
not an "insured contract";  

 b. A sidetrack agreement;  
 c. Any easement or license agreement, except in 

connection with construction or demolition opera-
tions on or within 50 feet of a railroad;  

 d. An obligation, as required by ordinance, to indem-
nify a municipality, except in connection with work 
for a municipality;  

 e. An elevator maintenance agreement.  



 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
 CG 21 47 12 07 
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EMPLOYMENT-RELATED PRACTICES EXCLUSION 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

 
A. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2., 

Exclusions of Section I – Coverage A – Bodily 
Injury And Property Damage Liability:  
This insurance does not apply to:  
"Bodily injury" to:  

 (1) A person arising out of any:  
 (a) Refusal to employ that person;  
 (b) Termination of that person's employment; 

or  
 (c) Employment-related practices, policies, 

acts or omissions, such as coercion, demo-
tion, evaluation, reassignment, discipline, 
defamation, harassment, humiliation, dis-
crimination or malicious prosecution di-
rected at that person; or  

 (2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of 
that person as a consequence of "bodily injury" 
to that person at whom any of the employment-
related practices described in Paragraphs (a), 
(b), or (c) above is directed.  

This exclusion applies: 
 (1) Whether the injury-causing event described in 

Paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above occurs before 
employment, during employment or after em-
ployment of that person; 

 (2) Whether the insured may be liable as an em-
ployer or in any other capacity; and  

 (3) To any obligation to share damages with or 
repay someone else who must pay damages 
because of the injury. 

B. The following exclusion is added to Paragraph 2., 
Exclusions of Section I – Coverage B – Per-
sonal And Advertising Injury Liability:  
This insurance does not apply to:  
"Personal and advertising injury" to:  

 (1) A person arising out of any:  
 (a) Refusal to employ that person;  
 (b) Termination of that person's employment; 

or  
 (c) Employment-related practices, policies, 

acts or omissions, such as coercion, demo-
tion, evaluation, reassignment, discipline, 
defamation, harassment, humiliation, dis-
crimination or malicious prosecution di-
rected at that person; or  

 (2) The spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of 
that person as a consequence of "personal and 
advertising injury" to that person at whom any 
of the employment-related practices described 
in Paragraphs (a), (b), or (c) above is directed.  

This exclusion applies:  
 (1) Whether the injury-causing event described in 

Paragraphs (a), (b) or (c) above occurs before 
employment, during employment or after em-
ployment of that person; 

 (2) Whether the insured may be liable as an em-
ployer or in any other capacity; and  

 (3) To any obligation to share damages with or 
repay someone else who must pay damages 
because of the injury.  
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COLLEGES OR SCHOOLS (LIMITED FORM) 
 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:  

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART  

 
With respect to the operation of any college or school 
by you or on your behalf, the following provisions 
apply:  
A. With respect to the transportation of students, 

Exclusion g. of Paragraph 2. Exclusions of 
Section I – Coverage A – Bodily Injury And 
Property Damage Liability is replaced by the 
following:  

 2. Exclusions 
This insurance does not apply to:  

 g. "Bodily injury" or "property damage" arising 
out of the ownership, maintenance, 
operation, use, "loading or unloading" or 
entrustment to others of any aircraft, "auto" 
or watercraft that is owned, operated or 
hired by any insured. For the purpose of 
this exclusion, the word hired includes any 
contract to furnish transportation of your 
students to and from schools.  
This exclusion applies even if the claims 
against any insured allege negligence or 
other wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring, 
employment, training or monitoring of 
others by that insured, if the "occurrence" 
which caused the "bodily injury" or "property 
damage" involved the ownership, 
maintenance, use or entrustment to others 
of any aircraft, "auto" or watercraft that is 
owned, operated or hired by any insured. 

B. The following exclusions are added to Section I – 
Coverage A – Bodily Injury And Property 
Damage Liability and Section I – Coverage B – 
Personal And Advertising Injury Liability:  

 1. If the college or school owns or operates an 
infirmary with facilities for lodging and 
treatment or a public clinic or hospital, this 
insurance does not apply to "bodily injury", 
"property damage", or "personal and 
advertising injury" caused by:  

 a. The rendering of or failure to render:  
 (1) Medical, surgical, dental, X-ray or 

nursing service, treatment, advice or 
instruction, or the related furnishing of 
food or beverages;  

 (2) Any health or therapeutic service, 
treatment, advice or instruction; or  

 (3) Any service, treatment, advice or 
instruction for the purpose of 
appearance or skin enhancement, hair 
removal or replacement or personal 
grooming.  

 b. The furnishing or dispensing of drugs or 
medical, dental or surgical supplies or 
appliances; or  

 c. The handling or treatment of dead bodies, 
including autopsies, organ donation or other 
procedures.  

This exclusion applies even if the claims 
against any insured allege negligence or other 
wrongdoing in the supervision, hiring, 
employment, training or monitoring of others by 
that insured, if the "occurrence" which caused 
the "bodily injury" or "property damage", or the 
offense which caused the "personal and 
advertising injury", involved that which is 
described in Paragraph a., b. or c. 

 2. This insurance does not apply to "bodily injury" 
to any person while practicing for or 
participating in any sports or athletic contest or 
exhibition if there is no direct management, 
organization or supervision of such sports or 
athletic contest or exhibition by any insured. 

C. The following exclusion is added to Section I – 
Coverage C – Medical Payments:  
We will not pay expenses for "bodily injury" to your 
student.  

D. Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an insured any of the following but only 
with respect to their duties in connection with the 
positions described below:  

 1. Any of your trustees or members of your Board 
of Governors if you are a private charitable or 
educational institution;  

 2. Any of your board members or commissioners 
if you are a public board or commission; or  

 3. Any student teachers teaching as part of their 
educational requirements.  
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COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST
OTHERS TO US

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Copyright, Insurance Services Office, Inc.,  2008CG 24 04 05 09

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

The following is added to Paragraph 8. Transfer Of 
Rights of Recovery Against Others To Us of 
Section IV - Conditions:

We waive any right of recovery we may have 
against the person or organization shown in the 
Schedule above because of payments we make for 
injury or damage arising out of your ongoing 
operations or "your work" done under a contract 
with that person or organization and included in the 
"products-completed operations hazard". This 
waiver applies only to the person or organization 
shown in the Schedule above.
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A STOCK COMPANY 
 

A BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY COMPANY 
 
 

1190 Devon Park Drive 
Wayne, PA 19087-2191 

CUSTOMER SERVICE:  888-523-5545 –  USLI.COM 

 

INSURANCE 

POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This policy jacket together with the policy declarations, 
coverage forms and endorsements, if any, complete 

this policy. 
 

The enclosed declarations designates the issuing 
company.
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INSURANCE POLICY 
 

 

Read your policy carefully! 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
In Witness Whereof, the company has caused this Policy to be executed and attested.  Where required by law, 
this Policy shall not be valid unless countersigned by a duly authorized representative of the company. 
 
Secretary   President 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 
 

CLASSIFICATION LIMITATION ENDORSEMENT 
 
 

Coverage under this contract is strictly limited to the classification(s) and code(s) listed 
on the policy Declarations page.   
 
No coverage is provided for any classification(s) and code(s) not specifically listed on the 
Declarations page of this policy. 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a 
part of your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another 
effective date is shown. 
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This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 
 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS EXCLUSION 
 

It is agreed that this policy shall not apply to “bodily injury”, “property damage”, or “personal 
and advertising injury” arising out of the operations performed for any insured by any 
independent contractor(s) and/or subcontractor(s) or acts or omissions of any insured in the 
selection, retention or supervision of any independent contractor(s) and/or subcontractor(s). 
 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 



L 472 (07-08)  Page 1 of 1 

UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
COMMERIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 

EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 
 

 
EXCLUSION - INJURY TO PERFORMERS OR ENTERTAINERS 

 
 
 
This insurance does not apply to: 
 
(i) “bodily injury” or “personal and advertising injury” to any  performer or entertainer for 

which any insured may be held liable in any capacity; 
 
(ii) any obligation of the insured to indemnify or contribute with another because of damages 

arising out of the “bodily injury” or “personal and advertising injury” as a consequence of 
(i) above; or 

 
(iii) “bodily injury” or “personal and advertising injury” sustained by the spouse, child, parent, 

brother or sister of a performer or entertainer of any insured as a consequence of “bodily 
injury” or “personal and advertising injury”  to such performer or entertainer. 

 
This exclusion applies to all claims and “suits” by any person or organization for damages 
because of such “bodily injury” or “personal and advertising injury” including damages for care 
and loss of services. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 

BODILY INJURY EXCLUSION - ALL EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEER 
WORKERS, TEMPORARY WORKERS, CASUAL LABORERS,  

CONTRACTORS, AND SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
Section I – Coverages, Coverage A Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability, 2. 
Exclusions, e. Employer’s Liability is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

e. Employer’s Liability 
(1) “Bodily injury” to any “employee”, “volunteer worker”, “temporary worker” or 

“casual laborer” arising out of or in the course of: 
(a) Employment by any insured; or 
(b) Performing duties related to the conduct of any insured’s business; 

(2) “Bodily injury” to any contractor, subcontractor or any “employee”, “volunteer 
worker”, “temporary worker” or “casual laborer” of any contractor or subcontractor 
arising out of or in the course of the rendering or performing services of any kind or 
nature whatsoever by such contractor, subcontractor or “employee”, “volunteer 
worker”, “temporary worker” or “casual laborer” of such contractor or subcontractor 
for which any insured may become liable in any capacity; or 

(3) Any obligation of any insured to indemnify or contribute with another because of 
damages arising out of such “bodily injury”; or 

(4) “Bodily injury” sustained by the spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of any 
“employee”, “volunteer worker”, “temporary worker” or “casual laborer” of any 
insured, or of a contractor, subcontractor, or of any “employee”, “volunteer worker”, 
“temporary worker” or “casual laborer” of any contractor or subcontractor as a 
consequence of any injury to any person as set forth in (1) and (2) above. 

This exclusion applies to all claims and “suits” by any person or organization for 
damages because of such “bodily injury”, including damages for care and loss of services 
and any claim under which any insured may be held liable under any Workers’ 
Compensation law. 
“Casual laborer” means any person providing work or materials to any insured for 
compensation of any type. 

 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 

EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 
 
 

EXCLUSION – PARTICIPATION IN ATHLETIC ACTIVITY, PHYSICAL 
ACTIVITY OR SPORTS 

 
 

This insurance does not apply to: 
 

1. “Bodily injury”, “property damage”, “personal and advertising injury” or medical 
payments to or for participants arising out of or resulting from practice, instruction, 
participation, demonstration or any athletic activity, physical activity or sport; including 
but not limited to activity in preparation for or following such activity or sport.  

2. “Bodily injury”, “property damage” or “personal and advertising injury” sustained by the 
spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of such participant(s) as a consequence of “bodily 
injury”, “property damage” or “personal and advertising injury” to such participant(s). 

3. Any claims or “suits” by any person or organization for damages because of such “bodily 
injury”, “property damage” or “personal and advertising injury” including damages for 
care and loss of services. 

 
This exclusion shall apply whether or not the athletic activity, physical activity or sport is 
performed in a class, competition, exhibition, game, practice or other setting. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
BUSINESSOWNERS COVERAGE FORM 

COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 
EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 

 
 
 

ABSOLUTE PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY EXCLUSION 
 
 

This policy does not insure against loss or expense, including but not limited to the cost 
of defense, arising out of or resulting from, directly or indirectly, the rendering of or 
failure to render professional services of any kind, or any error or omission, malpractice 
or mistake in the rendering of professional services of any kind, committed or alleged to 
have been committed by or on behalf of any insured. 
 
This exclusion applies to all loss sustained by any person, including emotional distress, 
whether alleged, threatened or actual including but not limited to negligence or other 
wrongdoing with respect to: 
 

a. Hiring, placement, employment, training, supervision or retention of a person 
for whom any Insured is or ever was legally responsible; or 

b. Investigation or reporting to the proper authorities, or failure to so report; or  
c. The failure to protect any person while that person was in the Insured’s care, 

custody or control. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a 
part of your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another 
effective date is shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 
EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 

 
CERTAIN ANIMAL EXCLUSION 

 
This insurance does not apply to “bodily injury”, “property damage”, “personal and advertising 
injury”, or Medical Payments rising out of, directly, indirectly or in consequence of any of the 
following: 

1) Dogs or hybrids of the following types: 
a) American Staffordshire Terriers, American Pit Bull Terrier, or Staffordshire Bull 

Terriers, all commonly known as Pit Bulls; 
b) Doberman Pinschers; 
c) Rottweilers; 
d) Chows; 
e) Bull Mastiffs; 
f) German Shepherds; 
g) Any mixed breed animal which includes one or more of the breeds listed above; 
h) Any trained attack or guard dog; 
i) Any fighting dog or dog bred for fighting; 
j) Any non-licensed dog. 

2) Any mixed breed or wild animal or reptile, native or exotic, including but not limited to 
wolves, coyotes, foxes, alligators, iguanas, turtles and snakes. 

3) Any saddle or riding animals, including but not limited to horses, ponies, donkeys, mules, 
camels, elephants, ostriches, and llamas. 

4) Any animal not otherwise excluded in 1., 2. or 3. above that is known to be, or that 
should have reasonably been expected to be, harmful, dangerous or injurious to others.  
This includes any animal with a prior history of causing “bodily injury”. 

5) Any farm animal not otherwise excluded in 1), 2) or 3) above. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

 
 

ABSOLUTE EXCLUSION FOR POLLUTION, ORGANIC PATHOGEN, 
SILICA, ASBESTOS AND LEAD WITH A HOSTILE FIRE EXCEPTION 

 
SECTION I – COVERAGES, COVERAGE A. BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY 
DAMAGE LIABILITY, Paragraph 2. Exclusions, f. Pollution is deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following: 
 

f. Pollution, Organic Pathogen, Silica, Asbestos and Lead  
(1) “Bodily injury” or “property damage”; or 
(2) Diminishing or lessening in value of property or for damages from the taking, use or 

acquisition or interference with the rights of others in property or air space; or 
(3) Loss, cost or expense, including but not limited to payment for investigation or 

defense, fines and penalties, arising out of any governmental or any private party 
action, that an insured or any other party test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, 
mitigate, treat, detoxify or neutralize or in any way respond to or assess the actual or 
alleged effects of “pollutants”, “organic pathogens”, “silica”, asbestos, or lead; 

 
arising directly, indirectly, in concurrence with or in any sequence out of the actual, 
alleged or threatened presence of or exposure to, ingestion, inhalation, absorption, contact 
with discharge, dispersal, seepage, release or escape of “pollutants”, “organic pathogens”, 
“silica”, asbestos, or lead, whether or not any of the foregoing are (1) sudden, accidental 
or gradual in nature; (2) intentional; or (3) expected or intended from the standpoint of 
the insured. 
 
This exclusion applies even if the “pollutant”, “organic pathogen”, “silica”, asbestos, or 
lead has a function in, or is used by you in your business, operations, premises, site or 
location. 
 
This exclusion does not apply to "bodily injury" or "property damage" arising out of heat, 
smoke or fumes from a "hostile fire" unless that "hostile fire" occurred or originated: 

(1) At any premises, site or location which is or was at any time used by or for any 
insured or others for the handling, storage, disposal, processing or treatment of 
waste; or 

(2) At any premises, site or location on which any insured or any contractors or 
subcontractors working directly or indirectly on any insured's behalf are 
performing operations to test for, monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, 
detoxify, neutralize or in any way respond to, or assess the effects of, "pollutants". 
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This exclusion does not apply to “bodily injury” or “property damage” arising from the 
consumption of food products intended for human consumption. 
 
“Pollutants” means any solid, liquid, gaseous or thermal irritant or contaminant, including 
but not limited to smoke, vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals, toxic materials, 
“volatile organic compound” and gases therefrom, radon, combustion byproducts and 
“waste.” 
 
“Silica” means silica in any form and any of its derivatives, including but not limited to 
silica dust, silicon dioxide, crystalline silica, quartz, or non-crystalline (amorphous) 
silica. 
 
“Volatile organic compound” means any compound which discharges organic gases as it 
decomposes or evaporates, examples of which include but are not limited to 
formaldehyde, pesticides, adhesives, construction materials made with organic chemicals, 
solvents, paint, varnish and cleaning products. 
 
“Waste” means any property intended to be disposed, recycled, reused or reclaimed by 
the owner or user thereof. 
 
“Organic pathogen” means any organic irritant or contaminant, including but not limited 
to mold, fungus, bacteria or virus, including but not limited to their byproduct such as 
mycotoxin, mildew, or biogenic aerosol. 

 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 

AMENDMENT OF PREMIUM AUDIT CONDITIONS 
 
SECTION IV, paragraph 5. Premium Audit, is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
the following: 
 
5. Premium Audit 
 

a. We will compute all premiums for this Coverage Part in accordance with our 
underwriting guides, rules and rates. 

 
b. We may examine and audit your books and records to compute the total earned premium 

at any time during the policy period or after the expiration date of a policy issued by the 
Company.  At the close of each audit period we may compute the earned premium for the 
policy period.  If the total earned premium for the policy period is less than the advance 
premium, we will refund the difference, subject to the minimium premium, to the first 
Named Insured.  If the total earned premium for the policy period as determined by an 
audit is greater than the advance premium, then additional Audit Premium is due and 
payable as provided herein.  The Premium for this policy may be amended during the 
current policy term based on the results of an audit of an expired/prior term.  This may 
result in additional premium due to the Company for coverage under this policy. 

 
c. On the first policy issued to the Named Insured, the Company may examine and audit 

your books and records for policy period(s) prior to the effective date of our policy. 
 
d. The first Named Insured must keep current and accurate books and records and provide 

copies of such information needed for premium computation as our auditing 
representatives or we may request from time to time.    

 
e. Failure of the first Named Insured to cooperate with an audit at the expiration date may 

result in an Estimated Audit Premium being applied to this policy and will result in 
cancellation of any renewal policy issued by the Company.  Failure to cooperate with a 
current term policy audit may result in cancellation of this policy and retention of any 
unearned premium.  If, subsequent thereto, the first Named Insured cooperates with the 
audit as requested, earned premium for the policy period will be calculated in accordance 
with the terms of this Endorsement.  

 
f. Audit Premium or Estimated Audit Premium is due and payable on notice to the first 

Named Insured.  Failure to pay premium, including any Audit Premium and Estimated 
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Audit Premium, may result in the cancellation of this policy and/or any renewal policy 
issued by the Company. 
 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

LIQUOR LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 

EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 
 

EVENT VENDOR/EXHIBITOR & CONTRACTOR - EXCLUSION 
 

This insurance does not apply to: 
1) Any claim, demand or “suit” arising out of the activities or operations of a person or entity 

participating as a vendor, exhibitor, performer or other capacity in an event hosted, sponsored 
or coordinated by an insured. 

2) Any claim, demand or “suit” arising out of the operations performed for any insured by any 
contractor or independent contractor or acts or omissions of any insured in the selection and 
retention of any contractor or independent contractor or acts or omissions of any insured in 
connection with the general supervision of such operations. 

This exclusion does not apply to any claim, demand or “suit” arising out of the activities or 
operations of an insured participating as a vendor, exhibitor or other capacity in an event not 
hosted, sponsored or coordinated by the insured. 
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 

MOLESTATION OR ABUSE INSURANCE 
(Defense Outside Limits) 

 
It is agreed that there is no coverage for “molestation or abuse” under this policy except as 

provided in this endorsement. 
 

LIMITS OF INSURANCE 
EACH CLAIM $  
AGGREGATE $  

(If no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the Declarations as 
applicable to this endorsement.) 

 
The following Coverage M – MOLESTATION OR ABUSE INSURANCE, is added to 
SECTION I – COVERAGES: 

1. Insuring Agreement 
a. We will pay those sums you become legally obligated to pay as damages because of 

any “molestation or abuse” to which this insurance applies.  We will have the right 
and duty to defend you against any “suit” seeking those damages.  However, we will 
have no duty to defend you against any “suit” seeking damages to which this 
insurance does not apply.  We may at our discretion investigate and settle any claim 
or “suit” that may result.  But: 
(1) The amount we will pay for damages is limited as described in LIMITS OF 

INSURANCE of this endorsement; and 
(2) When we have used up the limits described for COVERAGE M by paying 

settlements or judgments, we will have no further right or duty to defend any 
claims or suits under this endorsement, whether pending at that time or started 
afterwards. 

b. This insurance applies to damages from “molestation or abuse” only if: 
(1) The “molestation or abuse” takes place in the “coverage territory” and; 
(2) The “molestation or abuse” first occurs during the policy period and;   
(3) The “molestation or abuse” to which this insurance applies and for which the 

claim is made:  (a) occurred to a person while that person was involved or 
participating in a program, service, event or other activity sponsored, organized, 
operated, managed or otherwise directed by any Named Insured and; (b) while the 
person was in any Named Insured’s care, custody or control or; (c) was in the 
care, custody or control of one or more of any Named Insured’s “employees” with 
the Named Insured’s knowledge and consent. 

c. Multiple acts of “molestation or abuse” of one or more persons committed by any one 
person or multiple acts of “molestation or abuse” of one or more persons committed 
by more than one person acting in concert, shall be deemed to be one occurrence of 
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“molestation or abuse” and to have first occurred at the time of the earliest 
“molestation or abuse”; 

No other obligation or liability to pay sums or perform acts or services is covered unless 
explicitly provided for under SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENTS – COVERAGE M.   

2. Exclusions 
This insurance does not apply to: 
a. any person who committed or is alleged to have committed any actual or alleged 

“molestation or abuse”. 
b. liability of others assumed by you under any contract or agreement either oral or in 

writing unless specifically endorsed hereon; 
c. any obligation for which you or any carrier as your insurer may be held liable under 

workmen’s compensation, unemployment compensation, disability benefits law, 
employers liability, stop gap liability or under any similar law, whether based on 
statute, regulation or judicial determination;  

d. any loss or claim either directly or indirectly arising from your activities as an officer 
or director of any corporation, organization, company or business that is not the 
Named Insured; 

e. any claim for punitive or exemplary damages; 
f. any claim arising out of “molestation or abuse” by any one person or more than one 

person acting in concert which first occurs prior to the inception of this policy even if 
such “molestation or abuse” continues into this policy period. 
 

SECTION I – COVERAGES; SUPPLEMENTARY PAYMENTS – COVERAGES A & B 
is deleted in its entirety and is replaced with the following, but only with respect to 
COVERAGE M – MOLESTATION OR ABUSE INSURANCE: 

SUPPLEMENTAL PAYMENTS – COVERAGE M 
We will pay, with respect to any claim we investigate or settle, or any “suit” against you we 
defend: 

a. Prejudgment interest awarded against the insured on that part of the judgment we pay.  
If we make an offer to pay the applicable limit of insurance, we will not pay any 
prejudgment interest based on that period of time after the offer. 

b. All interest on the full amount of any judgment that accrues after entry of judgment 
and before we have paid, offered to pay, or deposited in court the part of the judgment 
that is within the applicable limits of insurance. 

c. All expenses we incur. 
d. The cost of bonds to release attachments, but only for bond amounts within the 

applicable limit of insurance. We do not have to furnish these bonds. 
e. All reasonable expenses incurred by the insured at our request to assist us in the 

investigation or defense of the claim or “suit”, including actual loss of earnings up to 
$250 a day because of time off from work. 

f. All costs taxed against the insured in the “suit”.  These payments will not reduce the 
limits of insurance.  
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SECTION II – WHO IS AN INSURED is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following but only with respect to COVERAGE M –MOLESTATION OR ABUSE 
INSURANCE: 

1. If you are designated in the Declarations as: 
a. An individual, you and your spouse are insureds, but only with respect to the conduct 

of the business or program, service, event or other activity of the Named Insured. 
b. A partnership or joint venture, you are an insured.  Your members, your partner, and 

their spouses are also insureds, but only with respect to the conduct of the business or 
program, service, event or other activity of the Named Insured. 

c. A limited liability company, you are an insured.  Your members are also insureds, but 
only with respect to the conduct of the business or program, service, event or other 
activity of the Named Insured.  Your managers are insureds, but only with respect to 
their duties as your managers. 

d. An organization other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company, 
you are an insured.  Your “executive officers” and directors are insureds, but only 
with respect to their duties as your officers or directors.   

e. A trust, you are an insured.  Your trustees are also insureds, but only with respect to 
their duties as trustees. 

2. Your “employees” other than either your “executive officers” (if you are an organization 
other than a partnership, joint venture or limited liability company) or your managers (if 
you are a limited liability company) are also insureds, but only for acts within the scope 
of their employment by you or while performing duties related to the conduct of the 
business or program, service, event or other activity of the Named Insured or “volunteer 
workers” only while performing duties related to the conduct of the business or program, 
service, event or other activity of the Named Insured. 

 
SECTION III – LIMITS OF INSURANCE is amended with the following addition: 

8. Regardless of the number of insureds and/or Limits of Liability under other coverage 
parts, coverage forms or endorsements under this policy, our liability is limited as 
follows: 
a. The limit of insurance stated in the LIMITS OF INSURANCE for COVERAGE M 

as applicable to “each claim” is the limit of our liability for the sum of: 
(1) All damages arising out of or resulting from any incident or a series of incidents 

of “molestation or abuse” by any one person.  Multiple acts of “molestation or 
abuse” of one or more persons committed by any one person or multiple acts of 
“molestation or abuse” of one or more persons committed by more than one 
person acting in concert, shall be deemed to be one “molestation or abuse”. 

b. The limit of insurance stated in the LIMITS OF INSURANCE for COVERAGE M 
as “aggregate” is the total limit of our liability under this coverage for all damages 
under this endorsement. 
 

The conditions 1. though 9. in SECTION IV – COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CONDITIONS apply to COVERAGE M as well. 
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SECTION V – DEFINITIONS, 18. “Suit”, is replaced by the following, but only with respect 
to COVERAGE M-MOLESTATION OR ABUSE INSURANCE: 

“Suit” means a civil proceeding in which damages to which this insurance applies are 
alleged.  “Suit” includes: 
a. An arbitration proceeding in which such damages are claimed and to which the insured 

must submit or does submit with our consent; or 
b. Any other alternative dispute resolution proceeding in which such damages are claimed 

and to which the insured submits with our consent. 
 

SECTION V – DEFINITIONS is amended by the addition of the following but only for the 
purposes of this endorsement: 

“Molestation or Abuse” means sexual or physical injury or abuse of any person.  
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 
 

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT 
 
Section II – Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an insured any person, entity or 
organization that is: 

1. A franchisor under a franchise agreement with the Named Insured as franchisee relating 
to “your work”; or 

2. A licensor under a license agreement with the Named Insured as licensee relating to 
“your work”; or 

3. A co-owner with the Named Insured in premises used for “your work”; or 
4. A majority owner with a controlling interest in the Named Insured but only with respect 

to liability arising out of such owner’s (i) financial or operational control of the Named 
Insured; or (ii) ownership, maintenance or use of premises leased or occupied by the 
Named Insured for purposes of “your work”; or 

5. A mortgagee, assignee or receiver of the Named Insured relating to “your work”; or 
6. A lessor, or an agent of a lessor, under a lease agreement with the Named Insured as 

lessee relating to “your work”; or 
7. A grantor of a permit to the Named Insured as permitee relating to “your work”. 

However, if the grantor of a permit is a federal, state or local government or political 
subdivision, there is coverage under this endorsement only for liability arising from: 
a. The existence, maintenance, repair, construction, erection or removal of advertising 

signs, awnings, canopies, cellar entrances, coal holes, driveways, manholes, 
marquees, hoist away openings, sidewalk vaults, street banners or decorations and 
similar exposures; or 

b. The construction, erection or removal of elevators; or 
c. The ownership, maintenance or use of any elevators covered by this insurance; or 

8. A lessor of equipment leased to the Named Insured relating to “your work"; or 
9. A contributor, benefactor, or supporter who provides financial assistance to the Named 

Insured in connection with “your work”; 
but only to the extent the Named Insured is required to add such person, entity or 
organization as an additional insured to this policy under a written contract, written permit or 
written agreement relating to “your work”. 
Such person, entity or organization is an insured only with respect to liability for “bodily 
injury”, “property damage” or “personal and advertising injury” that is caused, in whole or in 
part by your acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf in 
connection with “your work” while such written contract, written permit or written 
agreement is in effect. 
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EXCLUSIONS 
There is no coverage under this endorsement for loss or expense, including but not limited to 
the cost of defense for “bodily injury”, “property damage” or “personal and advertising 
injury”: 
1. That occurs after all of “your work”, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in 

connection with “your work” and performed under a written contract, written permit or 
written agreement has ended; or 
When that portion of “your work” out of which the “bodily injury”, “property damage” or 
“personal and advertising injury” arises and performed under a written contract, written 
permit or written agreement has been put to its intended use by any person(s) or 
organization(s); 
whichever occurs first. 

2. Arising directly or indirectly from construction or demolition operations of any kind 
performed by you. 

3. Caused or alleged to be caused by the sole negligence of an additional insured under this 
endorsement.  

4. Arising out of “your work” performed for a federal, state or local government or political 
subdivision under a written permit. 

5. Included within the “products-completed operations hazard”. 
 
CONDITIONS 

Coverage provided by this endorsement will be excess over any insurance available to any 
additional insured under this endorsement unless a written contract, written permit or written 
agreement specifically requires that coverage under this endorsement is primary. 

 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 



L 767 NPP (11-11)  Page 1 of 1 

UNITED STATES LIABILITY INSURANCE GROUP 
WAYNE, PENNSYLVANIA 

 
This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

 
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

COMMERCIAL UMBRELLA POLICY 
EXCESS LIABILITY POLICY 

 
EXCLUSION – BLEACHER COLLAPSE 

 
 
It is agreed: 
 

This insurance does not apply to “bodily injury”, “property damage”, “personal and 
advertising injury’ or Medical Payments arising out of, directly, indirectly or in 
consequence of any bleacher collapse, whether or not such collapse is partial or total 
collapse. 

 
 

 
All other terms and conditions of this policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a 
part of your policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another 
effective date is shown. 
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This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM 

 

AMENDMENT OF LIQUOR LIABILITY EXCLUSION 
 

It is agreed: 
 
SECTION I – COVERAGES; COVERAGE A BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY 
DAMAGE LIABILITY; 2. Exclusions; c. Liquor Liability is deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following:  
 

c.  Liquor Liability 
"Bodily injury" or "property damage" for which any insured may be held liable by reason 
of:  
(1) Causing or contributing to the intoxication of any person;  
(2) The furnishing of alcoholic beverages to a person under the legal drinking age or 

under the influence of alcohol; or  
(3) Actual or alleged violation of any statute, ordinance or regulation relating to the sale, 

gift, distribution or use of alcoholic beverages. 
 
This exclusion applies even if the claims against any insured allege negligence or other 
wrongdoing in:  

(a) The supervision, hiring, employment, training or monitoring of others by that 
insured;  or  

(b)  Providing or failing to provide transportation with respect to any person that may 
be under the influence of alcohol;  

if the "occurrence" which caused the "bodily injury" or "property damage", arises or 
results, directly or indirectly from Paragraph (1), or  (2) or (3) above.  

 
However, this exclusion applies only if: 
(1) An insured is in the business of manufacturing, distributing, selling, serving or 

furnishing alcoholic beverages; or  
(2) An insured sells, serves or furnishes alcoholic beverages in exchange for a charge, fee 

or donation of any kind; or  
(3) An insured permits a person to bring alcoholic beverages for consumption on any 

insured’s premises or at any insured’s event in exchange for a charge, fee or donation 
of any kind. 

 
 
 

All other terms and conditions of this policy remain the same. This endorsement is a part of your 
policy and takes effect on the effective date of your policy unless another effective date is shown. 
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This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY POLICY 

 

FLORIDA STATE AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT 
 
To be attached to and form a part of all Non Profit Management Liability Policies written 
in the state of Florida. 
 
It is hereby agreed that the following sections are amended and supersede any provision to the 
contrary: 
 
The General Terms and Conditions, Section VIII. CHANGES IN EXPOSURE, “Takeover of the 
Named Insured”, Item 3. is deleted and replaced by the following: 
 
Right to Purchase 3. The Named Insured shall have the right to 

purchase an Extended Reporting Period, subject to 
Section II. EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD 
herein, to report Claims arising out of Wrongful 
Acts occurring prior to the effective date of any 
Takeover. 

 
It is further agreed that the any reference to “Retention” in the General Terms and Conditions, 
Directors and Officers Coverage Part, Employment Practices Coverage Part, or Fiduciary 
Liability Coverage Part shall be replaced by “Deductible”  
 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is a part of 
your Policy and takes effect on the effective date of your Policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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Non-Profit Management Liability Policy          Directors and Officers Coverage Part 

 
In consideration of payment of the premium and subject to the Policy Declarations, General 
Terms and Conditions, and the limitations, conditions, provisions and all other terms of this 
Coverage Part, the Company and the Insureds agree as follows: 
 
Words that are in bold have special meaning and are defined in Section III. DEFINITIONS of 
this Coverage Part, or in Section I. DEFINITIONS of the General Terms and Conditions, 
incorporated in or attached to this Coverage Part, as applicable.  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

I.  INSURING AGREEMENTS 
 

A.  Individual Insured – Non-
Indemnified Coverage  

 

The Company will pay, on behalf of an Individual 
Insured, Loss and Defense Costs resulting from a 
Claim first made against an Individual Insured during 
the Policy Period, or Extended Reporting Period, if 
applicable, to the extent such Individual Insured is not 
indemnified by the Organization for such Loss and 
Defense Costs. 
 

B.  Individual Insured –  
Indemnified Coverage 

The Company will pay, on behalf of the Organization, 
Loss and Defense Costs resulting from a Claim first 
made against an Individual Insured during the Policy 
Period, or Extended Reporting Period, if applicable, but 
only to the extent the Organization indemnifies such 
Individual Insured for such Loss and Defense Costs as 
permitted or required by law. 
 

C.  Organization Coverage The Company will pay, on behalf of the Organization, 

Loss and Defense Costs resulting from a Claim first 

made against the Organization during the Policy 

Period, or the Extended Reporting Period, if applicable. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
II. INDIVIDUAL INSURED – NON-INDEMNIFIED COVERAGE ADDITIONAL LIMIT 

 
“Dedicated Limit – Insuring 
Agreement A” 
 

 
The Company shall pay an additional limit of liability, 
not to exceed an aggregate of $1,000,000 per Policy 
Period, solely for Loss covered under Section I. 
INSURING AGREEMENT, Subsection A. Individual 
Insured Non-Indemnified Coverage. This additional 
limit of liability shall be paid only after the applicable 
Limit of Liability for Individual Insured – Non-
Indemnified Coverage of the Directors & Officers 
Liability Coverage Part shown in the Policy 
Declarations is completely exhausted by payment of 
Loss. 
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______________________________________________________________________________ 
III. DEFINITIONS 

  
Claim means any: 

 
1. written demand for monetary damages or non-

monetary relief, including injunctive relief; 
2. civil proceeding commenced by service of a 

complaint or similar pleading; 
3. criminal proceeding commenced by the return of 

an indictment; 
4. administrative or regulatory proceeding 

commenced by the filing of a formal written 
notice of charges, notice of violations, notice of 
investigation, cease and desist or similar action; 

5. arbitration, mediation or other alternative dispute 
resolution proceeding in which the Insured is 
obligated to participate  if the Insured agrees to 
participate with the Company’s prior written 
consent; or 

6. other proceeding initiated before any 
governmental body which is authorized to render 
an enforceable judgment, order for monetary 
damages or other relief; 
 
received by, or brought or initiated against any 
Insured alleging a Wrongful Act, including any 
appeal therefrom.   
 
Claim also means any: 
 

7. written request, first received by an Insured to 
toll or waive a statute of limitations relating to a 
potential Claim as described in subparagraphs 1. 
through 6. above. 

 

A Claim shall be deemed made on the earliest of the 
date of service upon, or receipt by, any Insured of a 
potential Claim as described in subparagraphs 1. 
through 7. above. 
 

Defense Costs means: 
 

1. reasonable and necessary legal fees and expenses 
incurred by the Company, or by any attorney 
designated by the Company to defend the 
Insured; and 



DO 100 (05-17)   Page 3 of 13 

2. all other fees, costs, costs of attachment or 
similar bonds (without any obligation on the 
Company’s part to apply for or furnish such 
bonds); 
 

resulting from the investigation, adjustment, defense 
and appeal of a Claim. Defense Costs does not 
include Loss or the Insured’s salaries, wages, 
overhead or benefits expenses. 

  
 
Employed Attorney Services 
 

 
means legal services provided by any Individual 
Insured, but only to the extent that such services are 
performed directly to the Organization and in the 
Individual Insured’s capacity as an Employee of the 
Organization. 
 
Any services rendered by an Individual Insured for any 
party other than the Organization shall not constitute 
Employed Attorney Services. 
 

Employee means any natural person whose labor or service is 
engaged and directed by the Organization while 
performing duties related to the conduct of the 
Organization’s business and includes leased, part-time, 
seasonal and temporary workers, independent 
contractors, volunteers and interns. 

Executive means any natural persons who are directors, trustees, 
officers, managing members, advisory board members 
or committee members or any equivalent position of the 
Organization. 

 
Excess Benefit Transaction 

 
means a transaction as defined in Internal Revenue 
Code, Title 26 §4958 (c)(1). 

 
Excess Benefit Transaction  
Excise Tax 

 
means any excise tax imposed by the Internal Revenue 
Service, pursuant to Section 4958(a)(2) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C. § 4958(a)(2), against an 
Individual Insured who participated as an 
Organization Manager in connection with an Excess 
Benefit Transaction.  
 

Individual Insured means any past, present or future: 
 

1. Executive; 
2. Employee; or 
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3. the estates, heirs, legal representatives or assigns 
of 1. and 2., above in the event of their death, 
incapacity or bankruptcy. 

  
Loss means the amount the Insured becomes legally 

obligated to pay as a result of a Claim, including: 
 

1. damages, settlements and judgments; 
2. pre-judgment and post judgment interest; 
3. punitive or exemplary damages to the extent such 

damages are insurable under applicable law, 
statute or regulation; 

4. the multiplied portion of any multiple damage 
award to the extent such damages are insurable 
under applicable law, statute or regulation; and 

5. any ten percent (10%) Excess Benefit 
Transaction Excise Tax assessed by the Internal 
Revenue Service against any Individual 
Insured, subject to a $100,000 maximum 
sublimit of liability per Policy Period for Loss 
and Defense Costs, combined provided, however 
that indemnification by the Organization for 
such taxes is not expressly prohibited in the 
bylaws, certificate of incorporation or other 
governing documents of the Organization. This 
sublimit of liability is part of and not in addition 
to the applicable Directors and Officers Limit of 
Liability as set forth on the Policy Declarations. 

 
For the purpose of determining the insurability of 
damages in items 3. and 4. above, the laws of the 
jurisdiction most favorable to the insurability of such 
damages shall control; provided that such 
jurisdiction has a substantial relationship to the 
relevant Insured or to the Claim giving rise to the 
damages. 
 

However, Loss does not include: 
 

1. fines, penalties, sanctions and forfeitures; 
2. taxes, except for any ten percent (10%) Excess 

Benefit Transaction Excise Tax as outlined in 
subparagraph 5. above of this definition of 
“Loss”, or as otherwise provided by 
endorsement; 

3. any amount uninsurable under the law pursuant 
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to which this Policy is construed; 
4. cost of compliance with any order for, grant of or 

agreement to provide non-monetary or injunctive 
relief; 

5. any unpaid salary, wages, commissions, 
severance, bonus or incentive compensation that 
is due or alleged to be due to any person; or  

6. any amount for which an Individual Insured is 
absolved from payment by reason of any 
covenant, agreement or court order.  

  
Organization Manager means a person or persons described in Internal Revenue 

Code, Title 26 §4958(f). 

Outside Entity means any not-for-profit organization that qualifies as 
such under Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986 (as amended), that is not an Insured. 
 

Outside Capacity means the service, other than Employed Attorney 
Services, of an Individual Insured while acting in the 
capacity of director, officer, trustee, managing member 
or any equivalent position of an Outside Entity, but 
only if such service is provided on behalf of the Outside 
Entity with the specific knowledge, request, consent or 
direction of the Named Insured. 

 
Personal Injury Wrongful Act 

 
means any actual or alleged false arrest, wrongful 
detention, malicious prosecution, invasion of privacy, 
wrongful entry or eviction, libel, slander or defamation. 
 

Pollutants 
 
 

means any solid, liquid, gaseous, bacterial, fungal, 
electromagnetic, thermal or other substance, smoke, 
vapor, soot, fumes, acids, alkalis, chemicals, toxic 
materials, ‘Volatile Organic Compound’, ‘Organic 
Pathogen’, ‘Silica’, asbestos, lead and gases therefrom, 
radon, combustion byproducts, noise and ‘Waste’. 
Specific examples include, but are not limited to diesel, 
kerosene, and other fuel oils, carbon monoxide, and 
other exhaust gases, mineral spirits and other solvents, 
tetrachloroethylene, perchloroethylene (PERC), 
trichloroethylene (TCE), methylene chloroform, and 
other dry cleaning chemicals, chlorofluorocarbons,  
chlorinated hydrocarbons, adhesives, pesticides, 
insecticides, and all substances specifically listed, 
identified, or described by one or more of the following 
references:  
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1. Comprehensive  Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA) 
Priority List Hazardous Substances (1997 and all 
subsequent editions); or 

2. Agency for Toxic Substances And Disease 
Registry ToxFAQs™; or 

3. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency EMCI 
Chemical References Complete Index. 

 
For the purposes of this definition; 
 

1. ‘Volatile Organic Compound’ means any 
compound which discharges organic gases as it 
decomposes or evaporates, examples of which 
include but are not limited to formaldehyde, 
pesticides, adhesives, construction materials 
made with organic chemicals, solvents, paint 
varnish and cleaning products. 

2. ‘Organic Pathogen’ means any organic irritant or 
contaminant, including but not limited to mold, 
fungus, bacteria or virus, including but not 
limited to their byproduct such as mycotoxin, 
mildew, or biogenic aerosol. 

3. ‘Silica’ means silica in any form and any of its 
derivatives, including but not limited to silica 
dust, silicon dioxide, crystalline silica, quartz, or 
non-crystalline (amorphous) silica. 

4. ‘Waste’ means any property intended to be 
disposed, recycled, reused or reclaimed by the 
owner or user thereof. 

 
Publisher Wrongful Act means any infringement of copyright, trademark, 

unauthorized use of title, or plagiarism or 
misappropriation of ideas. 

  
Wrongful Act 
 
 
 

means any: 
 

1.   actual or alleged act, error, omission, 
misstatement, misleading statement, neglect, or 
breach of duties; 

2.   Personal Injury Wrongful Act; 
3.   Publisher Wrongful Act; or  
4.   Employed Attorney Services 

 
committed or allegedly committed by: 
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a. the Organization; 
b. any Individual Insured, arising solely from 

duties conducted on behalf of the 
Organization or asserted against an 
Individual Insured because of 1. above; or 

c. any Individual Insured while acting in an 
Outside Capacity. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
IV. EXCLUSIONS 
 

A. The Company shall not be liable to make payment for Loss or Defense Costs in connection 
with any Claim made against the Insured arising out of, directly or indirectly resulting from, 
in consequence of, or in any way involving any actual or alleged: 

 
Conduct 
 

1.   deliberately fraudulent act, omission, criminal 
act, or  willful violation of any statute or 
regulation by any Insured; or 

2.   any Insured having gained any profit, 
remuneration or other advantage to which such 
Insured was not legally entitled;  

 
provided that this exclusion will not apply to Defense 
Costs incurred until: 
 

a. a final, non-appealable adjudication in any 
underlying proceeding or action establishes 
such conduct; or 

b. the Insured has admitted, stipulated or 
pleaded no contest to such conduct; 

  
Bodily Injury/Property  
Damage 

1. bodily injury, assault, battery, sickness, disease, 
death, mental anguish, humiliation or emotional 
distress of any person; or  

2. damage to or destruction of any tangible property 
including any resulting loss of use thereof;  

 
provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any 
mental anguish, humiliation or emotional distress 
asserted in an otherwise covered Claim alleging a 
Personal Injury Wrongful Act. 

 
Employee Benefits 

 
pension, profit sharing, welfare benefit or other 
employee benefit program established in whole or in 
part for the benefit of any Individual Insured, or based 
upon, arising out of or in any way involving the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (or 
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any amendments thereof or regulations promulgated 
there under) or similar provisions of any federal, state 
or local statutory law or common law; 

  
Insured vs Insured Claim brought by or on behalf of any Insured; 

provided that this exclusion shall not apply to: 
 

1. any derivative action on behalf of, or in the name 
or right of the Organization, if such action is 
brought and maintained independent of and 
without the solicitation, assistance, participation 
or intervention of any Insured;  

2. any Claim in the form of a cross claim, third 
party claim or other claim for contribution or 
indemnity by any Individual Insured which is 
part of or results directly from a Claim which is 
not otherwise excluded under this Policy;  

3. any Claim brought or maintained by or on behalf 
of a bankruptcy or insolvency trustee, examiner, 
liquidator, receiver, rehabilitator, or creditors 
committee for an Organization; or 

4. any Claim brought and maintained by or on 
behalf of any former Executive, but only if such 
Claim does not arise out of, directly or indirectly 
result from, is in consequence of, or in any way 
involves any Wrongful Act, responsibilities, 
actions or failure to act by any Insured during 
the tenure of service of such former Executive. 
 

Employment Practices refusal to employ, termination of employment, or 
employment related coercion, demotion, evaluation, 
reassignment, discipline, workplace conditions, false 
imprisonment, defamation, harassment, humiliation, or 
discrimination of employment, or other employment-
related practices, policies, acts or omissions or sexual 
harassment by any Insured against any person(s) or 
entity; or negligence involving any of the foregoing; 
 
it being understood that this exclusion applies whether 
the Insured may be held liable as an employer or in any 
other capacity and to any obligation to contribute with 
or indemnify another with respect to such Claim; 
 

Discrimination discrimination, including but not limited to 
discrimination based on religion, race, creed, color, sex, 
age, marital status, sexual preference, pregnancy, 
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handicap or disability; 
 

Outside Entity vs. Insured Claim made by or on behalf of an Outside Entity or 

one or more of the Outside Entity’s directors, officers, 

trustees, managing members or any equivalent position 

against an Individual Insured acting in an Outside 

Capacity, provided, however that this exclusion shall 

not apply to:  

1. any Claim brought derivatively on behalf of the 

Outside Entity, independently and without the 

direct solicitation, participation, intervention or 

assistance of the Outside Entity or any Insured 

in an Outside Capacity; 

2. any Claim in the form of a cross claim, third 

party claim or other claim for contribution or 

indemnity by an Insured acting in an Outside 

Capacity and which is part of or results directly 

from a Claim which is not otherwise excluded 

under this Policy; and 

3. any Claim brought or maintained by or on behalf 

of a bankruptcy or insolvency trustee, examiner, 

liquidator, receiver, rehabilitator, or creditors 

committee for an Outside Entity against an 

Insured acting in an Outside Capacity for such 

Outside Entity.  

  
Pollution  1. discharge, emission, release, seepage, migration, 

dispersal or escape of Pollutants or any threat 
thereof, including nuclear reaction, radiation or 
contamination; or 

2. treatment, removal or disposal of any Pollutants; 
3. regulation, order, direction or request to test for, 

monitor, clean up, remove, contain, treat, 
detoxify or neutralize any Pollutants; or any 
voluntary decision to do so; or 

4. actual or alleged property damage including loss 
of use, bodily injury, sickness, disease or death of 
any person, or financial loss to an Organization 
or Outside Entity, their security holders, or their 
creditors resulting from any of the 
aforementioned matters in 1., 2., or 3. above of 
this Exclusion. 



DO 100 (05-17)   Page 10 of 13 

 
Prior or Pending Litigation 

 
litigation, demand, claim, arbitration, decree, judgment, 
proceeding, or investigation against any Insured, which 
was pending on or prior to the Prior or Pending 
Litigation date referenced on the Policy Declarations, or 
any such action based on the same or essentially the 
same fact, circumstance, matter, situation, transaction 
or event underlying or alleged therein; 
 

Prior Notice 1. fact, circumstance, matter, situation, transaction, 
event, or Wrongful Act that, before the effective 
date of this Policy, was the subject of any notice 
given under any similar policy of insurance; or 

2. other fact, circumstance, matter, situation, 
transaction, event, or Wrongful Act whenever 
occurring, which together with a fact, 
circumstance, matter, situation, transaction, 
event, or Wrongful Act described in 
subparagraph 1. above, would constitute 
Interrelated Wrongful Acts; 

 
Prior Wrongful Acts of Subsidiaries 
 

1. Wrongful Act committed by an Individual 
Insured of any Subsidiary, or by such 
Subsidiary, occurring before the date such entity 
became a Subsidiary; or 

2. other fact, circumstance, matter, situation, 
transaction, event, or Wrongful Act whenever 
occurring, which together with a fact, 
circumstance, matter, situation, transaction, 
event, or Wrongful Act described in 
subparagraph 1. above, would constitute 
Interrelated Wrongful Acts; 

 
Professional Services rendering or failure to render legal (except Employed 

Attorney Services), medical, psychological, counseling 
services or referrals, if the Claim is brought by or on 
behalf of any individual and/or entity for whom such 
services were, now are, or shall be performed; 
 
provided that this exclusion shall not apply to that part 
of a Claim against an Individual Insured which 
alleges that the Individual Insured, in his or her 
capacity as such, failed to supervise those who 
performed such services. 
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B.  The Company shall not be liable to make payment for Loss or Defense Costs in connection 

with any Claim made against the Insured for actual or alleged: 

Contract liability of the Insured under any express contract or 
agreement to which an Organization is a party, 
provided that this exclusion shall not apply to: 
 

1.  the extent that such Organization would have 
been liable in the absence of such contract or 
agreement; and 

2. any Claim against an Individual Insured. 
 
No Wrongful Act of one or more Insureds shall be imputed to any other Insured for the 
purpose of determining the applicability of any of the above exclusions in Section A. or B. 
above. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

V. ORDER OF PAYMENTS 
 

 
 

In the event of Loss arising from a Claim for which payment 
is concurrently due under Insuring Agreement A., Individual 
Insured - Non-Indemnified Coverage, and one or more of the 
other Insuring Agreements of this Coverage Part, the 
Company shall: 
 

1. first pay Loss for which coverage is provided under 
Insuring Agreement A., Individual Insured - Non-
Indemnified Coverage; then 

2. with respect to whatever remaining amount of the 
Limit of Liability is available after payment above, 
pay such Loss for which coverage is provided under 
any other Insuring Agreement. 

 
Except as otherwise provided above, the Company may pay 
covered Loss as it becomes due under this Coverage Part 
without regard to the potential for other future payment 
obligations under this Coverage Part. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
VI. LIFETIME OCCURRENCE REPORTING PROVISION 

 
 
 

A. If this Policy is cancelled or not renewed by the 
Named Insured for any reason other than being sold, 
acquired, or declaring bankruptcy, each Individual 
Insured who did not serve as such at the time of the 
cancellation or non-renewal, shall be provided with an 
unlimited extension of time to report any Claim first 
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made against such Individual Insured after the 
effective date of such cancellation or non-renewal, 
subject to the following conditions:  

 
1. the Claim results from a Wrongful Act committed 

by the Individual Insured before the effective 
date of cancellation or non-renewal; and 

2. the Wrongful Act was actually or allegedly 
committed during a Policy Period of a Policy 
issued by the Company; and 

3. such Individual Insured was serving in such 
capacity during the Policy Period of a Policy 
issued by the Company; and 

4. no Directors & Officers Liability policy, or similar 
policy providing essentially the same type of 
coverage, or extended reporting period, is in effect 
at the time the Claim is first made against such 
Individual Insured; and 

5. the Claim is not otherwise excluded by the Policy 
issued by the Company in effect at the time the 
Wrongful Act actually or allegedly occurred; such 
Policy shall be the Policy under which coverage is 
applicable including all terms, conditions, limits, 
retentions, and endorsements therein. 

6. the Company will have written continuous 
coverage for Named Insured from the effective 
date of the first Policy the Company issued to the 
date of cancellation or non-renewal of this Policy. 

 
B.  The LIFETIME OCCURRENCE REPORTING 

PROVISION described herein shall not apply to any 
Claim made against any Individual Insured caused 
by, arising or resulting, directly or indirectly from or 
in consequence of the Individual Insured’s serving in 
an Outside Capacity for an Outside Entity.  

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
VII. TIMELY NOTICE AND RESOLUTION INCENTIVE  
  

Retention Forgiveness In the event of a Claim, the Company shall waive the 

applicable retention under this Coverage Part, up to a 

maximum of  $10,000, if each of the following conditions 

are met: 

1. The Claim is reported to the Company within 

thirty (30) days of first receipt by an Insured; and 

2. The Company successfully negotiates a 
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settlement of the Claim within the Limits of 

Liability of this Coverage Part; and 

3. The Insured consents to the settlement of the 

Claim without condition within thirty (30) days 

after notice of the settlement is provided to the 

Insured by the Company; and 

4. Settlement of the Claim is finalized by the 

Company within ninety (90) days of the Claim 

being first reported to the Company.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
VIII. OUTSIDE DIRECTORSHIP PROVISION 

 
In the event a Claim is made against any Individual 
Insured arising out of their service as a director, officer, 
trustee, managing member or any equivalent positions of 
an Outside Entity, coverage afforded under this Policy 
shall be excess of any indemnification provided by the 
Outside Entity and any insurance provided to the 
Outside Entity which covers its directors, trustees, 
officers, managing members or any equivalent position.  
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Non-Profit Management Liability Policy         Employment Practices Coverage Part 

In consideration of payment of the premium and subject to the Policy Declarations, General 
Terms and Conditions, and the limitations, conditions, provisions and all other terms of this 
Coverage Part, the Company and the Insureds agree as follows: 
 
Words that are in bold have special meaning and are defined in Section II. DEFINITIONS of this 
Coverage Part, or in Section I. DEFINITIONS of the General Terms and Conditions, 
incorporated in or attached to this Coverage Part, as applicable. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

I.  INSURING AGREEMENTS 
 
 

The Company will pay on behalf of an Insured, Loss 
and Defense Costs resulting from a Claim first made 
against an Insured during the Policy Period or during 
any Extended Reporting Period, if applicable, by or on 
behalf of: 
 

A.  Employment Practices Liability any Employee or applicant for employment for a 
Wrongful Employment Act; or 
 

B.  Third Party Liability any natural person, other than an Employee, for a 
Wrongful Third Party Act. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
II. DEFINITIONS 

 
Claim 

 
means any: 
 

1. written notice received by an Insured that any 
person or entity intends to hold such Insured 
responsible for a Wrongful Act, including a written 
demand for monetary or non-monetary relief, 
including injunctive relief; 

2. civil proceeding commenced by the service of a 
complaint or similar pleading; 

3. formal civil, administrative or regulatory proceeding 
or formal civil, administrative or regulatory 
investigation, including any such proceeding 
brought by or in association with the Equal 
Employment Opportunity Commission or any 
similar federal, state or local agency with 
jurisdiction over an Organization’s employment 
practices; 

4. arbitration or mediation proceeding commenced by 
receipt of a demand for arbitration, demand for 
mediation or similar document; or 

5. Notice of Violation or Order to Show Cause or 
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written demand for monetary relief or injunctive 
relief, commenced by the receipt by an Insured of 
such Notice, Order or written demand, issued by the 
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs; 
 
received by, or brought or initiated against any 
Insured alleging a Wrongful Act, including any 
appeal therefrom.   
 
Claim also means any: 

6. written request, first received by an Insured to toll 
or waive a statute of limitations relating to a 
potential Claim as described in subparagraphs 1. 
through 5. above. 

 
A Claim shall be deemed made on the earliest of the date of 
service upon, or receipt by, any Insured of a potential 
Claim as described in subparagraphs 1. through 6. above. 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Claim shall not include any 
labor dispute or grievance proceeding, arbitration or other 
proceeding brought against any Insured pursuant to a 
collective bargaining agreement. 

 
Confidential Employee 
Information 

 
means any non-public, personally identifiable information 
regarding an Employee, collected, stored or transmitted by 
an Organization, for the purpose of establishing or 
maintaining an employment relationship.  

 
Defense Costs 

 
means: 

1. reasonable and necessary legal fees and expenses 
incurred by the Company, or by any attorney 
designated by the Company to defend the Insured; 
and 

2. all other fees, costs, costs of attachment or similar 
bonds (without any obligation on the Company’s 
part to apply for or furnish such bonds); 
 

resulting from the investigation,  adjustment, defense and 
appeal of a Claim. Defense Costs does not include Loss or 
salaries, wages, overhead, benefits expenses of any 
Individual Insured. 

  
Employee means any natural person whose labor or service is engaged 

and directed by the Organization while performing duties 
related to the conduct of the Organization’s business and 



DO 101 (05-17)   Page 3 of 10 
 

includes leased, part-time, seasonal and temporary workers, 
independent contractors, volunteers and interns. 

Employee Benefits means perquisites, fringe benefits, deferred compensation or 
payments (including insurance premiums) in connection 
with an employee benefit plan, and any other payment to or 
for the benefit of an Employee arising out of the 
employment relationship. Employee Benefits shall not 
include salary, wages, commissions, or non-deferred cash 
incentive compensation.  
 

ERISA or any similar act means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974, as amended, or any similar common or statutory law 
of the United States, Canada or their states, territories or 
provinces or any other jurisdiction anywhere in the world.  
 

Executive 
 
 
 
 

means any natural persons who serve as directors, trustees, 
officers, managing members, advisory board members or 
committee members or any equivalent position of the 
Organization. 
 

Fair Labor Standards Act 
Violation 

shall mean any actual or alleged violation of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, any amendments thereto or the provisions of 
any similar federal, state or local law regulating minimum 
wage, working hours, overtime, child labor, record keeping 
and other matters regulated under the federal Fair Labor 
Standards Act, including misrepresentation under these 
laws. Fair Labor Standards Act Violation does not mean 
any actual or alleged violation of the Equal Pay Act, any 
amendments thereto or the provisions of any similar federal, 
state or local law. 

 
Harassment means:  

1. sexual harassment including unwelcome sexual 
advances, requests for sexual favors or other verbal 
or physical conduct of a sexual nature that are made 
a condition of employment, are used as a basis for 
employment decisions, or create a work 
environment that is hostile, intimidating or offensive 
or that otherwise interferes with performance; or 

2. other workplace harassment, including workplace 
bullying, which creates a work environment that is 
hostile, intimidating or offensive or that otherwise 
interferes with performance. 

Individual Insured means any past, present or future: 
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1. Executive; 
2. Employee; or 
3. the estates, heirs, legal representatives or assigns of 

1. and 2. above in the event of their death, incapacity 
or bankruptcy. 
 

Loss means the amount the Insured becomes legally obligated to 
pay as a result of a Claim, including: 

1. damages, settlements, and judgments; 
2. front pay and back pay; 
3. pre-judgment and post judgment interest; 
4. liquidated damages awarded by a court pursuant to a 

violation of the Equal Pay Act, the Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act and the Family 
Medical Leave Act, all as amended, or any rules or 
regulations promulgated thereunder, or similar 
provisions of any federal, state or local law, statute 
or regulation; 

5. punitive or exemplary damages to the extent such 
damages are insurable under applicable law, statute 
or regulation; 

6. the multiplied portion of any multiple damage award 
to the extent such damages are insurable under 
applicable law, statute or regulation; and 

7. attorney’s fees awarded by a court against an 
Insured to a person or entity bringing a Claim or 
agreed to by the Company, in writing, in connection 
with a settlement; 
 

For the purpose of determining the insurability of 4., 5., or 
6. above the laws of the jurisdiction most favorable to the 
insurability of such damages shall control; provided that 
such jurisdiction has a substantial relationship to the 
relevant Insured or to the Claim giving rise to the 
damages. 
 
However, Loss does not include: 

1. the cost of compliance with any order for, grant of, 
or agreement to provide non-monetary or injunctive 
relief;  

2. costs associated with providing any accommodation 
for persons with disabilities or any other status 
which is protected under any applicable federal, state 
or local statutory or common law, including but not 
limited to the Americans with Disabilities Act, the 
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Civil Rights Act of 1964, or any amendments to or 
rules or regulations promulgated thereunder;  

3. any amounts uninsurable under the law pursuant to 
which this Coverage Part is construed;  

4. civil or criminal fines, penalties, taxes, sanctions or 
forfeitures imposed on an Insured whether pursuant 
to law, statute, regulation or court rule;  

5. future salary, wages, commissions or Employee 
Benefits of a person bringing a Claim who has been 
or shall be hired, promoted or reinstated to 
employment pursuant to a settlement, order, or other 
resolution of a Claim;  

6. salary, wages, commissions, Employee Benefits, 
bonus or incentive compensation or other monetary 
payments which constitute severance payments or 
payments pursuant to a notice period;  

7. Employee Benefits due or to become due or the 
equivalent value of such Employee Benefits, except 
with respect to any Claim for wrongful termination; 
or  

8. any amount for which an Individual Insured is 
absolved from payment by reason of any covenant, 
agreement or court order.  

 
Retaliation means retaliatory treatment against an Employee because 

of: 
 

1. the exercise of or attempt to exercise an Employee’s 
rights under law or for otherwise engaging in any 
legally protected activity; 

2. refusing to violate any law or opposing any unlawful 
practice; 

3. having cooperated in a proceeding or investigation 
(including an internal investigation by an 
Organization’s human resources department or 
legal department) into alleged unlawful activity by 
an Insured; 

4. disclosing or threatening to disclose to a superior or 
any governmental agency any alleged violations of 
law by an Insured and/or the Organization; 

5. filing any claim against the Organization under any 
federal, state or local whistleblower law including 
Federal False Claims Act, or Sarbanes-Oxley; or 

6. Employee strikes or slowdowns. 
  
Wrongful Act means any Wrongful Employment Act or Wrongful 
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 Third Party Act.  
  
Wrongful Employment Act 
 
 
 

means any actual or alleged: 
1. violation of any federal, state or local laws (whether 

statutory or common) prohibiting discrimination in 
employment based on a person’s race, color, 
religion, creed, genetic information, age, gender or 
gender identity, disability, marital status, national 
origin, pregnancy, HIV status, sexual orientation or 
preference, any protected military status, or any 
other status that is protected pursuant to any such 
laws;  

2. Harassment;  
3. Retaliation; 
4. wrongful: termination, dismissal or discharge of 

employment, whether actual or constructive;  
5. wrongful: demotion; denial of tenure; failure or 

refusal to hire or promote; denial of seniority; failure 
to employ; or wrongful or negligent employee 
reference;  

6. wrongful employment-related: misrepresentation; 
defamation, humiliation, libel or slander; negligent 
evaluation; wrongful discipline; wrongful 
deprivation of career opportunity; negligent 
retention, supervision, hiring or training; emotional 
distress, mental anguish, invasion of privacy or false 
imprisonment;  
but only when alleged as part of a Claim for an act 
described in 1. through 5. above; 

7. wrongful failure to adopt or enforce consistent 
employment-related corporate workplace policies 
and procedures arising from 1. through 6. above; 

8. breach of any express or implied contract, including 
any contract arising out of any personnel manual, 
employee handbook, policy statement or other 
representation; or 

9. unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential 
Employee Information; 

 
committed or allegedly committed by an 
Organization or by an Individual Insured while 
acting in his or her capacity as such by any means 
including the internet, social media, email, or 
telecommunications systems. 

 
Wrongful Third Party Act 

 
means any actual or alleged: 
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1.   discrimination based on race, color, religion, creed, 
genetic information, age, gender or gender identity, 
disability, marital status, national origin, pregnancy, 
HIV status, sexual orientation or preference, any 
military protected status, or any other status that is 
protected pursuant to any federal, state or local 
statutory or common law;  

2.   harassment of either a sexual nature or other 
unwelcome conduct; or 

3.   violation of civil rights relating to such 
discrimination or harassment;  

 
against any natural person, other than an Employee, 
committed or allegedly committed by an Organization or 
by an Individual Insured while acting in his or her 
capacity as such, by any means including the internet, social 
media or email, or telecommunication systems. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 
III. EXCLUSIONS 

                                                      
A. The Company shall not be liable to make payment for Loss or Defense Costs in connection 

with any Claim made against the Insured for: 
 
Bodily Injury/ Property Damage 
 

any actual or alleged bodily injury, sickness, disease or 
death of any person, or damage to or destruction of any 
tangible property including any resulting loss of use; 
provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any 
mental anguish, emotional distress, invasion of privacy, 
humiliation, libel, slander or defamation asserted in an 
otherwise covered Claim alleging a Wrongful Act. 
 

Violation of Law any actual or alleged violation of: 
1. ERISA or any similar act (except Section 510 

of ERISA), or any other federal, state or local 
statutory or common law anywhere in the world 
governing any employee benefit program, policy, 
plan or arrangement of any type, including but 
not limited to laws governing retirement or 
pension benefit programs, welfare plans, 
insurance plans, employee stock options, 
employee stock ownership plans, employee stock 
purchase plans or deferred compensation 
programs;  

2. the Consolidated Omnibus Budget 
Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA), as 
amended or any other similar federal, state or 



DO 101 (05-17)   Page 8 of 10 
 

local statutory or regulatory law or common law 
anywhere in the world;  

3. any law governing workers’ compensation, 
unemployment insurance, social security, 
disability benefits or any other similar federal, 
state or local statutory or regulatory law or 
common law anywhere in the world; 

4. the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 
(OSHA), as amended, or any other federal, state 
or local statutory or regulatory law or common 
law anywhere in the world governing workplace 
safety and health; 

5. the Workers’ Adjustment and Retraining 
Notification Act, Public Law 100-379 (1988), as 
amended, or any other federal, state or local 
statutory or regulatory law or common law 
anywhere in the world governing an employer’s 
obligation to notify or bargain with others in 
advance of any facility closing or mass layoff; or 

6. the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, or 
any other federal, state or local statutory or 
regulatory law or common law anywhere in the 
world governing employees’ rights and 
employers’ duties with respect to unions, 
bargaining, strikes, boycotts, picketing, lockouts 
or collective activities; 
 
however, the foregoing shall not apply to any 
Claim alleging Retaliation (including any 
Claim alleging retaliation in violation of Section 
510 of ERISA) or wrongful termination of 
employment whether actual or constructive, 
because of an Employee’s exercise of a right 
pursuant to any such laws. 

 
B. The Company shall not be liable to make payment for Loss or Defense Costs (except where 

otherwise noted) in connection with any Claim made against an Insured arising out of, 
directly or indirectly resulting from or in consequence of, or in any way involving any actual 
or alleged: 

 
  
Prior or Pending Litigation litigation, demand, claim, arbitration, decree, judgment, 

proceeding, or investigation against any Insured, which 
was pending on or prior to the Prior or Pending 
Litigation date referenced on the Policy Declarations, or 
any such action based on the same or essentially the 
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same fact, circumstance, matter, situation, transaction or 
event underlying or alleged therein; 
 

Prior Notice 1. fact, circumstance, matter, situation, transaction, 
event, or Wrongful Act that, before the effective 
date of this Policy, was the subject of any notice 
given under any similar policy of insurance; or 

2. other fact, circumstance, matter, situation, 
transaction, event, or Wrongful Act whenever 
occurring, which together with a fact, 
circumstance, matter, situation, transaction, 
event, or Wrongful Act described in 
subparagraph 1. above, would constitute 
Interrelated Wrongful Acts; 

 
Prior Wrongful Acts of Subsidiaries 1. Wrongful Act committed by an Individual 

Insured of any Subsidiary, or by such 
Subsidiary, occurring before the date such 
entity became a Subsidiary; or 

2. other fact, circumstance, matter, situation, 
transaction, event, or Wrongful Act whenever 
occurring, which together with a fact, 
circumstance, matter, situation, transaction, 
event, or Wrongful Act described in 
subparagraph 1. above, would constitute 
Interrelated Wrongful Acts; 

 

     
Wage and Hour  Fair Labor Standards Act Violation 
 
Breach of Employment Contract 

 
breach of any express employment contract or express 
employment agreement; provided that this exclusion 
shall not apply to: 

1. Loss to the extent an Insured would have been 
liable for such Loss in the absence of such 
contract or agreement; or 

2. Defense Costs. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

LIFE  IV. LIFETIME OCCURRENCE REPORTING PROVISION 

 
 

A. If this Policy is cancelled or not renewed by the 
Named Insured for any reason other than being 
sold, acquired, or declaring bankruptcy, each 
director or officer who did not serve as such at 
the time of the cancellation or non-renewal, shall 
be provided with an unlimited extension of time 
to report any Claim first made against such 
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director or officer after the effective date of such 
cancellation or non-renewal, subject to the 
following conditions:  
 

1. the Claim results from a Wrongful Act 
committed by the director or officer before the 
effective date of cancellation or non-renewal; 
and 

2. the Wrongful Act was actually or allegedly 
committed during a Policy Period of a Policy 
issued by the Company; and 

3. such director or officer was serving in such 
capacity during the Policy Period of a Policy 
issued by the Company; and 

4. no Directors & Officers Liability policy, or 
similar policy providing essentially the same 
type of coverage, or extended reporting period, 
is in effect at the time the Claim is first made 
against such director or officer; and 

5. the Claim is not otherwise excluded by the 
Policy issued by the Company in effect at the 
time the Wrongful Act actually or allegedly 
occurred; such Policy shall be the Policy under 
which coverage is applicable including all 
terms, conditions, limits, retentions, and 
endorsements therein. 

6.  the Company will have written continuous 
coverage for Named Insured from the effective 
date of the first Policy the Company issued to 
the date of cancellation or non-renewal of this 
Policy. 
 

B.   The LIFETIME OCCURRENCE REPORTING 
PROVISION described herein shall not apply to 
any Claim made against any director or officer 
caused by, arising or resulting, directly or indirectly  
from or in consequence of the director or officer  
serving in an Outside Capacity for an Outside 
Entity. 
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This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY POLICY 

 

SEXUAL ABUSE EXCLUSION 
 
It is hereby agreed that the Directors and Officers Coverage Part, Section IV. EXCLUSIONS, 
Subsection A. is amended by the addition of the following: 
 
Abuse/Molestation sexual misconduct, sexual molestation, or physical or 

mental abuse of any person. 
 
It is also agreed that the Employment Practices Liability Coverage Part, Section II. 
DEFINITIONS, is amended by the addition of the following: 
 
Child Molestation means sexual misconduct, sexual molestation, or 

physical or mental abuse of any ‘Child’.  For the 
purposes of this definition: 
 
‘Child’ shall mean any natural person who was under 
eighteen (18) years of age at the time an act of Child 
Molestation is first committed. 
 

It is also agreed that the Employment Practices Liability Coverage Part, Section II. 
DEFINITIONS, “Wrongful Third Party Act” is amended by the addition of the following: 
 
 This definition does not mean Child Molestation. 

 
It is further agreed that the Employment Practices Liability Coverage Part, Section III. 
EXCLUSIONS, Subsection B. is amended by the addition of the following: 
 
Child Molestation Child Molestation, including any actual or alleged 

negligence in the hiring, supervision, training, screening 
or management of a person alleged to have committed 
an act of Child Molestation as well as any actual or 
alleged failure to report or failure to report in a timely 
manner any such act. 

 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is part of 
your Policy and takes effect on the effective date of your Policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY POLICY 

 

DATA & SECURITY+ ENDORSEMENT 
 
It is hereby agreed: 
 
Unless otherwise stated herein, the terms, conditions, exclusions and other limitations set forth in 
this endorsement are solely applicable to coverage afforded by this endorsement. This 
endorsement is part of and subject to the provisions of the Policy to which it is attached. 
 
I. SCHEDULE OF ADDITIONAL COVERAGES AND LIMITS 
 
The following is a summary of coverages and Limits of Liability provided by this 
endorsement. 
 
COVERAGE      LIMIT OF LIABILITY 
 
A. Data Breach Expense     $50,000 each claim 

$50,000 in the aggregate 
 
B. Identity Theft Expense     $50,000 each claim 

$50,000 in the aggregate 
 
C. Workplace Violence Act Expense    $50,000 each claim 

$50,000 in the aggregate 
 
D. Kidnapping Expense     $50,000 each claim 

$50,000 in the aggregate 
 
The maximum aggregate per Policy Period for A. through D. above shall be $200,000 in the 
aggregate. 
 
No retentions shall apply to the sublimits shown above. 
 
II. COVERAGES: 
 

A. Data Breach Expense 
The Company will pay on behalf of the Organization up to the Data Breach Expense 
Limit of Liability stated in the schedule above, for reasonable and necessary expenses in 
items 1. through 6. below:  
1. Development of a plan to assist the Organization in responding to a Data Breach; 
2. Data analysis or forensic investigation to assess the scope of a Data Breach; 
3. The development, printing and mailing of legally required notification letters to those 

affected by a Data Breach; 
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4. Development of a website link for use by the Organization in communicating with 
persons affected by a Data Breach after legally required notification letters are sent; 

5. Development of a customer relationship management system for use by the 
Organization in communicating with persons affected by a Data Breach after 
legally required notification letters are sent; 

6. Public relations services or crisis management services retained by the Organization 
to mitigate the adverse affect on the Organization’s reputation  resulting from a Data 
Breach that becomes public and only after legally required notification letters are 
sent. 

 
incurred by the Organization as a result of a Data Breach. The Data Breach must be first 
occur, be discovered by an Insured, and reported to the Company during the Policy Period 
but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the Data Breach is first discovered by an 
Insured. The expenses below must be incurred within one (1) year of the reporting of such 
Data Breach: 
 
The Organization must first report the Data Breach to the Company and use a service 
provider of the Company’s choice prior to incurring any of the above costs.  

 
B. Identity Theft Expense 
 

The Company will pay on behalf of a director or officer of the Organization up to the 
Identity Theft Expense Limit of Liability stated in the schedule above, for expenses, 
services or fees noted in items 1. through 3. below: 

1. Credit monitoring services provided by a vendor of the Company’s choice for the 
affected director or officer for up to one year following an Identity Theft; 

2.  Additional application fees paid by a director or officer whose loan(s) were rejected 
based on incorrect credit information resulting from an Identity Theft; 

3. Notary fees, certified and overnight mail expenses paid by a director or officer in 
connection with reporting an Identity Theft to financial institutions, credit bureaus 
and agencies and law enforcement authorities. 

 
incurred by such director or officer after he or she has become a victim of Identity Theft. 
The Identity Theft must first occur, be first discovered by an Insured, and reported to the 
Company during the Policy Period but in no event later than sixty (60) days after the 
Identity Theft is first discovered by an Insured.  The expenses above must be incurred 
within one (1) year of the reporting of such Identity Theft: 
 
Any director or officer of the Organization who is a victim of Identity Theft must first 
report the Identity Theft to the Company and use a service provider of the Company’s 
choice prior to incurring any of the above expenses, services or fees. 

 
C. Workplace Violence Act Expense 

The Company will reimburse the Organization, up to the Workplace Violence Act 
Expense Limit of Liability stated in the schedule above, for the following reasonable costs 
paid by the Organization for a period of thirty (30) days following, and as a result of, a 
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Workplace Violence Act: 
1. Counseling services rendered to Employees and persons on the Organization’s 

Premises directly affected by a Workplace Violence Act. The counseling services 
must be rendered by a licensed, professional counselor of the Organization’s choice. 

2. Services rendered by an independent public relations consultant of the 
Organization’s choice for the purpose of mitigating the adverse affect of a 
Workplace Violence Act on the Organization. 

 
To be covered, the Workplace Violence Act must occur during the Policy Period and be 
reported to the Company during the Policy Period but in no event later than sixty (60) 
days after the occurrence. 

 
D. Kidnapping Expense 

The Company will reimburse the Organization, up to the Kidnapping Expense Limit of 
Liability stated in the schedule above, for the following reasonable costs paid by the 
Organization as a result of a Kidnapping: 

1. Retaining an independent negotiator or consultant to facilitate the release of a 
Kidnapping victim.  Nothing herein shall obligate the Company to recommend, 
select, retain or arrange for the retention of such independent negotiator or consultant; 

2. Interest on a loan obtained by the Organization to pay expenses covered under this 
endorsement that is incurred as a result of a Kidnapping. However, there is no 
coverage for interest accruing prior to thirty (30) days preceding the date of such 
payment or subsequent to the date the Company pays any portion of a Kidnapping 
Expense or for expenses not covered under this endorsement; 

3. Travel and accommodations incurred by the Organization in direct response to the 
Kidnapping. Nothing herein shall obligate the Company to recommend, select, or 
arrange for such travel and accommodations; 

4. A reward up to $10,000 paid by the Organization to an informant for information 
which leads to the arrest and conviction of the person(s) responsible for the 
Kidnapping; 

5. The current base salary paid to a director or officer of the Organization for the 
director or officer’s work on behalf of the Organization, who is a victim of a 
Kidnapping subject to the following: 
a. salary reimbursement shall commence on the thirty-first (31st) consecutive day 

after a Kidnapping; 
b. salary reimbursement shall end when the director or officer is released; or is 

confirmed dead; or one hundred and twenty (120) days after the director or 
Officer is last confirmed to be alive; or twelve (12) months after the date of the 
Kidnapping, or when the Kidnapping Expense Limit of Liability has been 
exhausted by payments made by the Company, whichever occurs first. 
There is no coverage for Kidnapping Expense resulting from a Kidnapping 
planned, carried out or participated in, directly or indirectly, by any person who is 
or was a member of the victim’s family or the Organization. 

 
The Kidnapping must occur and be reported to the Company during the Policy Period but 
in no event later than sixty (60) days after the occurrence. 
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III. ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 
 
It is hereby agreed that the Directors and Officers Coverage Part, Section III. DEFINITIONS, is 
amended by the addition of the following definitions: 
 
Data Breach means the misappropriation or public disclosure, by 

electronic or non-electronic means, by the Organization 
and without the knowledge of, consent, or acquiescence 
of the president, member of the board of directors or any 
executive officer, of an individual(s) Personally 
Identifiable Information in the Organization’s care, 
custody and control without the authorization or 
permission of the owner of such information. 

 
Identity Theft Means: 

1. the act of obtaining Personally Identifiable 
Information belonging to a director or officer of 
the Organization without that person’s 
authorization, consent or permission; and 

2. the use of Personally Identifiable Information 
so obtained to make or attempt to make 
transactions or purchases by fraudulently 
assuming that person’s identity. 

 
Identity Theft does not mean any of the above 
committed directly or indirectly by a director or 
officer of the Organization, or by a family member of 
any  director or officer. 
 
There is no coverage for any Identity Theft Expense 
unless Personally Identifiable Information 
that is obtained without authorization, consent or 
permission is used to make or attempt to make 
purchases or conduct transactions by fraudulently 
assuming the identity of a director or officer of the 
Organization. 

 
Kidnapping means an actual or alleged wrongful abduction and 

involuntary restraint of a director or officer of the 
Organization, by one or more persons acting 
individually or collectively in which monetary or non-
monetary demands are made to the Organization to 
obtain the director’s or officer’s release. 
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Personally Identifiable 
Information 

means: 
1. information concerning an individual(s) that 

would be considered “non-public information” 
within the meaning of Title V of the Gramm-
Leach Bliley Act of 1999 (as amended) and its 
implementing regulations including but not 
limited to Social Security numbers or account 
numbers correlated with names and addresses 
which is in an Insured’s care, custody and 
control; and 

2. personal information as defined in any U.S. 
federal, state or local privacy protection law 
governing the control and use of an individual’s 
personal and confidential information, including 
any regulations promulgated thereunder; and 

3. protected health information as defined by the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 
Act of 1996 (Public Law 104-191) (“HIPPA”) or 
the Health Information Technology for 
Economic and Clinical Health Act of 2009 
(“HITECH”) (Public Law 111- 5), as amended, 
and any regulations promulgated thereto. 
Personally Identifiable Information does not 
mean information that is available to the public 
which does not include otherwise protected 
personal information. 

 
 
Premises means buildings, facilities or properties leased or owned 

by the Organization in conducting its operations. 
 
Workplace Violence Act means an actual use of unlawful deadly force, or 

the threatened use of unlawful deadly force involving 
the display of a lethal weapon, occurring on the 
Organization’s Premises and directed at an Individual 
Insured, or other persons on the Premises of the 
Organization. 

 
 
IV. LIMITS OF LIABILITY AND RETENTION 
 

1. The maximum Limit of Liability for any expenses provided by this endorsement shall be 
in addition to the Limits of Liability as set forth in the Policy Declarations for the 
Directors and Officers Coverage Part.  

2. Any one incident, interrelated incidents or series of similar or related incidents for which 
coverage is provided under this endorsement shall be treated as one incident subject to 
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the maximum Limit of Liability available under this endorsement at the time the 
incident(s) is first reported to the Company regardless of whether the incident(s) 
continues and expenses are incurred by the Organization in any subsequent Policy 
Period(s). 

 
V. ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS 
 
It is hereby agreed that the Directors and Officers Coverage Part, Section IV. EXCLUSIONS, is 
amended by the addition of the following: 
 
Data Breach Related 1. Expense reimbursement resulting in any 

Insured gaining any profit, remuneration 
or advantage to which the Insured is not 
legally entitled; 

2. expenses incurred by any Subsidiary of 
an Organization occurring prior to the 
date that such entity became a Subsidiary 
or incurred at any time that such entity is 
not a Subsidiary; 

3. expenses arising from any incident(s) of 
which any Insured had notice before the 
inception date of this Policy; or any fact, 
circumstance, event, situation or incident 
which before the inception date of this 
Policy was the subject of any notice under 
any other similar policy of insurance or 
any future claims for expenses under this 
Policy based upon such pending or prior 
notice; 

4. The portion of any expenses covered 
under this endorsement that is also 
covered under any other coverage part of 
this Policy; 

5. Reissuance of credit or debit cards or any 
other expense not shown in Section II, 
COVERAGES, sub-section A, Data 
Breach Expense. 

  

VI. COVERAGE LIMITATIONS 
 
The following terms, conditions and exclusions in the General Terms and Conditions and the  
Directors and Officers Coverage Part do not apply to this endorsement: 

1. General Terms and Conditions 
a. Section II. EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD 
b. Section XI. SPOUSAL AND DOMESTIC PARTNER EXTENSION 
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2. Directors and Officers Coverage Part 
a. Section IV. EXCLUSIONS, Subsection A. “Bodily Injury/Property Damage” 
b. Section VI. LIFETIME OCCURRENCE REPORTING PROVISION 
c. Section VIII. OUTSIDE DIRECTORSHIP PROVISION 

 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is part of 
your Policy and takes effect on the effective date of your Policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY POLICY 
 

FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT ENDORSEMENT 
DEFENSE COSTS ONLY COVERAGE 

 
It is hereby agreed that the Employment Practices Coverage Part, Section I. INSURING 
AGREEMENTS, is deleted and replaced by the following: 
________________________________________________________________________ 

I.  INSURING AGREEMENTS 
 
 
 

1. The Company will pay on behalf of an 
Insured, Loss and Defense Costs resulting 
from a Claim first made against an Insured 
during the Policy Period or during any 
Extended Reporting Period, if applicable, by 
or on behalf of: 

 
A.  Employment Practices 

Liability 
any Employee or applicant for employment for a 
Wrongful Employment Act; or 
 

B.  Third Party Liability any natural person, other than an Employee, for a 
Wrongful Third Party Act. 

 
 

 
2. The Company will pay on behalf of an 

Insured, Defense Costs resulting from a 
Claim first made against an Insured during 
the Policy Period or during any Extended 
Reporting Period, if applicable, by or on 
behalf of: 

 
C.  Fair Labor Standards Act 

Defense Costs Coverage 
any Employee for a Fair Labor Standards Act 
Violation; provided that this Insuring Agreement C. 
is subject to a maximum sublimit of liability of 
$100,000 solely for Defense Costs. This Defense 
Costs only sublimit is part of, not in addition to, and 
shall erode the applicable Employment Practices 
Limit of Liability as set forth on the Policy 
Declarations, and is subject to applicable Retention 
for this Coverage Part, or $5,000, whichever is 
larger. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
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It is hereby agreed that the Employment Practices Coverage Part, Section III. 
EXCLUSIONS, Subsection B. “Wage and Hour” is deleted and replaced by the 
following: 
 
Wage and Hour  Fair Labor Standards Act Violation, provided that 

this exclusion shall not apply to the $100,000 
sublimit for Defense Costs only as set forth in 
Insuring Agreement C. of this Coverage Part. 

 
It is also agreed that the Employment Practices Coverage Part, Section II., 
DEFINITIONS, Wrongful Act is deleted and replaced by the following: 
 
Wrongful Act 
 

means any Wrongful Employment Act, any Fair 
Labor Standards Act Violation, or any Wrongful 
Third Party Act.  

 
 
 
All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is 
part of your Policy and takes effect on the effective date of your Policy unless another 
effective date is shown. 
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This Endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 
 

NON PROFIT MANAGEMENT LIABILITY POLICY 

 

AMENDMENT OF PRIOR OR PENDING LITIGATION EXCLUSION 
 
It is hereby agreed that the Directors and Officers Coverage Part, Section IV. EXCLUSIONS, 
Subsection A. “Prior or Pending Litigation” is deleted and replaced by the following: 
 
Prior or Pending Litigation Any litigation, demand, claim, arbitration, decree, 

judgment, proceeding, or investigation against any 
Insured, or any such action based upon the same or 
essentially the same facts, circumstances, matters, 
situations, transactions or events underlying or 
alleged therein which was pending on or prior to the 
effective date of this Policy; 
 
provided that, if this Policy is a renewal of a Policy 
previously issued by the Company in a continuous 
succession of Policies with no lapses in coverage, 
the effective date of this Policy will mean the 
effective date of the first Policy issued by the 
Company in such succession of Policies. 
 

It is also agreed that the Employment Practices Coverage Part (if purchased), Section III. 
EXCLUSIONS, Subsection B. “Prior or Pending Litigation” is deleted and replaced by the 
following: 
 
Prior or Pending Litigation Any litigation, demand, claim, arbitration, decree, 

judgment, proceeding, or investigation against any 
Insured, or any such action based upon the same or 
essentially the same facts, circumstances, matters, 
situations, transactions or events underlying or 
alleged therein which was pending on or prior to the 
effective date of this Policy; 
 
provided that, if this Policy is a renewal of a Policy 
previously issued by the Company in a continuous 
succession of Policies with no lapses in coverage, 
the effective date of this Policy will mean the 
effective date of the first Policy issued by the 
Company in such succession of Policies. 
 

It is also agreed that the Fiduciary Liability Coverage Part (if purchased), Section III. 
EXCLUSIONS, Subsection B. “Prior or Pending Litigation” is deleted and replaced by the 
following: 
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Prior or Pending Litigation Any litigation, demand, claim, arbitration, decree, 
judgment, proceeding, or investigation against any 
Insured, or any such action based upon the same or 
essentially the same facts, circumstances, matters, 
situations, transactions or events underlying or 
alleged therein which was pending on or prior to the 
effective date of this Policy; 
 
provided that, if this Policy is a renewal of a Policy 
previously issued by the Company in a continuous 
succession of Policies with no lapses in coverage, 
the effective date of this Policy will mean the 
effective date of the first Policy issued by the 
Company in such succession of Policies. 
 

 
 
All other terms and conditions of this Policy remain unchanged.  This endorsement is part of 
your Policy and takes effect on the effective date of your Policy unless another effective date is 
shown. 
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Non-Profit Management Liability Policy         General Terms and Conditions 

In consideration of the payment of the premium and reliance upon all statements made and 
information furnished to the Company, including the statements made in the Application and 
subject to all the provisions of this Policy, the Company and the Insureds agree as follows: 
 
NOTICE: This is a Claims Made Policy.  This means the Company will cover only those 
Claims first made against the Insured during the Policy Period or, where applicable, the 
Extended Reporting Period. 
  
If any provision in these General Terms and Conditions is inconsistent or in conflict with the 
terms and conditions of any Coverage Part, the terms and conditions of such Coverage Part 
shall control for the purposes of that Coverage Part. 
 
Any bolded term in a Coverage Part that is defined in these General Terms and Conditions shall 
have the meaning set forth in these General Terms and Conditions. Any bolded term in a 
Coverage Part that is defined in that Coverage Part shall have the meaning set forth in such 
Coverage Part.  
 
The descriptions in the headings and subheadings of this Policy are solely for convenience and 
form no part of the terms and conditions of coverage, and do not serve to express, confirm, alter 
or provide coverage. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

I. DEFINITIONS 
 
Application 

 
means: 
 

1. an application and any materials submitted for this 
Policy; and 

2. an application and any materials submitted for all 
previous Policies issued by the Company providing 
uninterrupted coverage. 

 
The content of 1. and 2. above are incorporated by reference 
in this Policy as if physically attached hereto. 
 

Claim shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 
Part. 
 

Company means the insurance company identified in the Policy 
Declarations. 
 

Coverage Part means individually or collectively, as applicable, the 
purchased coverage parts as set forth in the Policy 
Declarations as included and attached to and made a part of 
this Policy. 
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Defense Costs 
 
 
Domestic Partner 
 

shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 
Part. 
 
means any natural person qualifying as a domestic partner 
under the provision of any applicable federal, state or local 
laws.  

  
Employee shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 

Part. 
 
Financial Impairment 

 
means: 
 

1. the appointment by any federal or state official, agency 
or court of any receiver, conservator, liquidator, trustee, 
rehabilitator, creditors committee or similar official to 
take control of, supervise, manage or liquidate the 
Organization and provided that the court or other 
judicial or administrative body overseeing the 
receivership, conservatorship, liquidation, 
rehabilitation, bankruptcy or equivalent proceeding has 
denied a request by the Organization to indemnify an 
Individual Insured for a Loss; or 

2. the Organization becoming a debtor in possession 
under the United States bankruptcy law or the 
equivalent of a debtor in possession under the law of 
any other country.    
 

Insured means any Organization and any Individual Insured. 
 

Individual Insured 
 
 
Interrelated Wrongful Acts 

shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 
Part. 
 
means any Wrongful Acts based upon, arising from, or in 
consequence of the same or related facts, circumstances, 
situations, transactions or events, or that are logically or 
causally connected by reason of any common or related series 
of facts, circumstances, situations, transactions or events. 

 
Loss 

 
shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 
Part. 

 
Management Control 

 
means: 
 

1. control of more than fifty percent (50%) of the voting 
rights representing the right to appoint, elect, or 
designate the majority of the board of directors, board 
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of trustees, or board of managers; or 
2. control of exactly fifty percent (50%) of the voting 

rights representing the right to appoint, elect, or 
designate the majority of the board of directors, board 
of trustees, or board of managers; and pursuant to a 
written contract solely controls the management and 
operations of such entity. 

 
Named Insured 
 

means the entity named in Item 1. of the Policy Declarations. 
 

Organization  means: 
 

1. the Named Insured and any Subsidiary; and 
2. any entity as debtor in possession under United States 

bankruptcy law or equivalent status under the law of 
any other jurisdiction. 
 

Plan shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 
Part.  

Policy means collectively the Policy Declarations, General Terms 
and Conditions, applicable Coverage Parts, applicable 
endorsements, and the Application. 
 

Policy Period means the period of time from the effective date and time of 
this Policy to the date and time of expiration as shown in the 
Policy Declarations, or its earlier cancellation or termination 
date. If the length of the Policy Period is the same as the 
Policy Year, the terms Policy Period and Policy Year are 
used interchangeably herein. 
 

Policy Year means the period of one (1) year following the effective date 
of the Policy Period or any subsequent one-year anniversary 
thereof; or 
 
In the event the Policy expires less than one (1) year following 
the effective date of the Policy Period; or more than one (1) 
year but less than two (2) years following the effective date of 
the Policy Period; then Policy Year shall mean any such 
period. 
    

Subsidiary 
 

means:  

1. any not-for-profit entity in which the Named Insured 

has Management Control directly or indirectly 

through one or more Subsidiaries on or before the 
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effective date of this Policy; and is disclosed as a 

Subsidiary in an Application to the Company; or 

2. any other entity added as a Subsidiary by written 

endorsement to this Policy. 

Takeover 
 

means: 
 

1. the acquisition by another entity or person or group of 
entities or persons acting in concert of: 
a. the Management Control of the Named Insured; 

or 
b. the acquisition of more than fifty percent ( 50%) of 

the total consolidated assets of the Named Insured 
as of the date of the Named Insured’s most recent 
consolidated financial statements prior to such 
acquisition;  

2. the merger of the Named Insured into another entity 
such that the Named Insured is not the surviving 
entity;  

3. the consolidation of the Named Insured with another 
entity; or 

4. the loss, forfeiture, or suspension of the Named 
Insured’s tax exempt status. 

 
Wrongful Act shall have the meaning as defined in the applicable Coverage 

Part. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

II. EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD 
  
Right to Purchase If the Policy expires, is cancelled or not renewed for any 

reason other than non-payment of premium, then the 
Named Insured shall have the right to purchase an 
Extended Reporting Period to report to the Company, as 
soon as practicable prior to the expiration date of the 
purchased Extended Reporting Period, any Claim against 
an Insured.  
 
An Extended Reporting Period shall only apply to 
Claims arising from a Wrongful Act which was actually 
or allegedly committed before the date of expiration, 
cancellation or non-renewal of this Policy, or prior to the 
effective date of any Takeover.  For the purpose of this 
clause, the offer of renewal terms and conditions or 
premiums by the Company different from those in effect 
prior to renewal shall not constitute a refusal to renew.  
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Options 
 
 
 
 
 

The additional premium for the Extended Reporting 
Period shall be a percentage of the total annual premium 
as shown in the Policy Declarations.  The Named 
Insured may elect any one of the following options: 

 
1. Twelve (12) month period - 30% of the annual 

premium; 
2. Twenty Four (24) month period - 75% of the 

annual premium; or 
3. Thirty Six (36) month period - 120% of the annual 

premium. 
 

The Extended Reporting Period begins on the expiration 
date of the Policy, or if cancelled or non-renewed, the 
effective date of such cancellation or non-renewal of the 
Policy. 
 

Payment & Notice to the 
Company 

As a condition precedent to the right to purchase an 
Extended Reporting Period, the total earned premium for 
this Policy must have been paid to the Company. Any 
premium paid with respect to an Extended Reporting 
Period shall be deemed fully earned as of the first day of 
the Extended Reporting Period.  The right to elect the 
Extended Reporting Period will terminate unless written 
notice of such election, together with payment of the 
additional premium as set forth above, is received by the 
Company within sixty (60) days of the effective date of 
the expiration, nonrenewal or cancellation of this Policy. 

 
Extended Reporting Period 
Limits 
& Other Insurance 

 
The Extended Reporting Period will not provide a new, 
separate or additional Limit of Liability.  The remainder 
of the Limit of Liability applicable to the Policy Year in 
effect as of the effective date of the expiration, 
cancellation, or non-renewal is the maximum Limit of 
Liability for all Claims reported during the Extended 
Reporting Period. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
III. DEFENSE & SETTLEMENT 

 
Duty To Defend 

 
The Company shall have the right and duty to 
defend any Claim covered by this Policy even if the 
allegations are groundless, false or fraudulent.  The 
Company shall have the right to appoint counsel of 
its choice with respect to such Claim.  The 
Company’s obligation to defend any Claim or pay 
any Loss or Defense Costs shall be completely 
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fulfilled and extinguished if the applicable Limit of 
Liability has been exhausted by payment of Loss. 
 

Consent to Settle The Company, as it deems necessary, has the right 
to investigate, adjust, defend, appeal and, with the 
consent of the Insured, negotiate the settlement of 
any Claim whether within or in excess of the 
Retention. If the Insured refuses to consent to a 
settlement recommended by the Company, the 
Company’s obligation to the Insured for Loss and 
Defense Costs attributable to such Claim shall be 
limited to: 
 

a.   The amount of the covered Loss in excess 
of the Retention which the Company 
would have paid in settlement at the time 
the Insured first refused to settle; plus 

b.   covered Defense Costs incurred up to the 
date the Insured first refused to settle; 
plus 

c.   eighty percent (80%) of covered Loss and 
Defense Costs in excess of the first 
settlement amount recommended by the 
Company to which the Insured did not 
consent. 

 
It is understood that payment of a., b. and c. above 
is the limit of the Company’s liability under this 
Policy for any Claim in which the Insured fails or 
refuses to consent to the Company’s settlement 
recommendation, subject at all times to Section IX. 
LIMITS OF LIABILITY and Section X. 
RETENTIONS AND PRESUMPTIVE 
INDEMNIFICATION of these General Terms and 
Conditions. The remaining twenty percent (20%) of 
Loss and Defense Costs in excess of the amount 
referenced in a. and b. above shall be the obligation 
of the Insured. 
 
In no event shall the Company be obligated to pay 
any Loss or Defense Costs after the applicable 
Limit of Liability shown in the Policy Declarations 
has been exhausted by payment of Loss.  
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Consent of the Company 

 
The Insured shall not demand or agree to 
arbitration of any Claim without the Company’s 
written consent. The Insured shall not, except at 
personal cost, make any offer or payment, admit any 
liability, settle any Claim, assume any obligation, or 
incur any expense without the Company’s written 
consent. 
 

Cooperation  
 

The Insured agrees to cooperate with the Company 
with respect to all Claims, and provide such 
assistance and information as the Company may 
reasonably request. Upon the Company’s request, 
the Insured shall submit to examination and 
interrogation by the Company’s representative, 
under oath if required, and shall attend hearings, 
depositions, trials and shall assist in the conduct of 
suits, including but not limited to effecting 
settlement, securing and giving evidence, obtaining 
the attendance of witnesses, giving written 
statements to the Company’s representatives and 
meeting with such representatives for the purpose of 
investigation and/or defense, all of the above 
without charge to the Company. The Insured 
further agrees not to take any action which may 
increase the Insured’s or the Company’s exposure 
under this Policy.  

 
Papers/Documents 
 

      
The Insured shall execute all papers required and 
shall do everything that may be necessary to secure 
and preserve any rights of indemnity, contribution 
or apportionment which the Insured or the 
Company may have, including the completion of 
such documents as are necessary to enable the 
Company to bring suit in the Insured’s name, and 
shall provide all other assistance and cooperation 
which the Company may reasonably require. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
IV. ALLOCATION OF DEFENSE COSTS 

  
 If a Claim is made against an Insured for both Loss that 

is covered by this Policy and loss that is not covered by 
this Policy, the Company will pay as follows: 
 

1. One hundred percent (100%) of Defense Costs on 
account of such Claim; and 
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2. all remaining loss from such Claim shall be 
apportioned between covered Loss and uncovered 
loss based on the relative legal exposures of the 
parties to such matters. 

3. Items 1. and 2. above of this Section IV. shall not 
apply to any Insured for whom coverage is 
excluded pursuant to Section VII. 
REPRESENTATIONS AND SEVERABILITY. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
V. NOTICE AND CLAIM REPORTING PROVISIONS 

  
Notice hereunder shall be given in writing to the 
Company. If mailed, the date of mailing of such notice 
shall constitute the date that such notice was given and 
proof of mailing shall be sufficient proof of notice. 
 

Written Notice of a Claim 1. As a condition precedent to exercising any right to 
coverage under this Policy, the Insured shall give 
to the Company written notice of a Claim as soon 
as practicable after any Chief Executive Officer, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, 
Chairperson, Executive Director, Human Resources 
Manager, In-House General Counsel, Managing 
Member or Fiduciary of any Plan becomes aware of 
such Claim, however: 
a. if the Policy expires, is cancelled or is non-

renewed and no Extended Reporting Period is 
purchased, no later than ninety (90) days after 
the expiration date or the effective date of such 
cancellation or non-renewal; or    

b. if an Extended Reporting Period is purchased, 
no later than the last day of the Extended 
Reporting Period. 

 
However, if the Policy is cancelled for non-payment of 
premium, notice shall be provided by the Insured to the 
Company no later than the effective date of cancellation. 
 

2.   Coverage for a Claim reported to the Company 
during the automatic 90 day period noted in 1. a. 
above shall only apply if the Claim is first made 
prior to the date of the Policy expiration, 
cancellation, or non-renewal. 
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Written Notice of a 
Circumstance 

1. If during the Policy Period, or any applicable 
Extended Reporting Period, the Insured becomes 
aware of circumstances which could give rise to a 
Claim and gives written notice of such 
circumstances to the Company as soon as 
practicable during the Policy Period, or Extended 
Reporting Period if applicable, in which the 
Insured first becomes aware of such circumstances, 
then any Claim subsequently arising from such 
circumstances shall be deemed made against the 
Insured during the Policy Year in which such 
circumstances were first reported to the Company. 
Such subsequent Claim must be reported to the 
Company in accordance with this Section V. 
NOTICE AND CLAIM REPORTING 
PROVISIONS, “Written Notice of Claim” above.  

2. When reporting a circumstance to the Company, an 
Insured shall give the names of any potential 
claimant; a description of the specific circumstances 
that could give rise to a Claim; the identity of the 
specific Insureds allegedly involved in such 
circumstance; the nature of the potential damages 
(monetary and non-monetary); and the specifics as 
to how the Insureds first became aware of such 
circumstance.  

 
Interrelated Claims More than one Claim involving the same Wrongful Act 

or Interrelated Wrongful Acts shall be considered as one 
Claim which shall be deemed made on the earlier of:  
 

1. the date on which the earliest Claim was first made; 
or  

2. the first date valid notice was given by the Insured 
to the Company, in accordance with applicable 
reporting provisions, under this Policy or under any 
prior policy, of any Wrongful Act or any fact, 
circumstance, situation, transaction or event which 
underlies such Claim.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
VI. CANCELLATION OR NON-RENEWAL 

 
Cancellation by the Insured 

 
This Policy may be cancelled by the Named Insured 
by either surrender thereof to the Company at its 
address stated in the Policy Declarations or by mailing 
to the Company written notice requesting cancellation 
and in either case stating when thereafter such 
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cancellation shall be effective. Earned premium shall 
be computed pro rata at the time cancellation is 
effected or as soon as practicable thereafter. 

  
Cancellation By the  
Company 

The Company may cancel this Policy only in the 
event of the Insured’s failure to pay the premium 
when due. The Company will mail to the Named 
Insured, written notice stating when cancellation shall 
take effect. The effective date of such cancellation 
shall not be less than twenty (20) days after the date of 
mailing. Earned premium shall be computed pro rata at 
the time cancellation is effected or as soon as 
practicable thereafter. 
 

Non-Renewal 
 
 
 
 

In the event the Company non-renews this Policy, the 
Company shall mail to the Named Insured, not less 
than sixty (60) days prior to the end of the Policy 
Period, written notice of non-renewal. Such notice 
shall be binding on all Insureds. 
 

Delivery of Notice The Company shall mail notice of cancellation or non-
renewal with a certificate of mailing stating the 
effective date of cancellation or non-renewal which 
shall become the end of the Policy Period. Mailing of 
such notice shall be sufficient notice of cancellation or 
non-renewal. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
VII. REPRESENTATIONS AND SEVERABILITY 

 
Representations 

 
The Insured represents that the particulars and 
statements contained in the Application are true and 
agree that:  
 

1.  those particulars and statements are the basis of 
this Policy and are to be considered as 
incorporated into and constituting a part of the 
Policy; 

2.   those particulars and statements are material to the 
acceptance of the risk assumed by the Company; 
and  

3.   the Policy is issued in reliance upon the truth of 
such representations. 

 
Severability of Application An Application for coverage shall be construed as a 

separate Application for coverage by each Individual 
Insured. With respect to the particulars and statements 
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contained in the Application, no fact pertaining to or 
knowledge possessed by any Individual Insured shall 
be imputed to any other Individual Insured for the 
purpose of determining if coverage is available. 
 
In the event that such Application contains any 
misrepresentations which materially affects either the 
acceptance of the risk or the hazard assumed by the 
Company under this Policy, then no coverage shall be 
afforded for any Claim based upon, arising out of, 
related to or in consequence of any such 
misrepresentation with respect to: 
 

1. any Individual Insured who knew of such 
misrepresentations or knew of the facts or 
circumstances relating to such misrepresentations, 
or any Organization to the extent it indemnifies 
any such Individual Insured. Such knowledge 
possessed by such Individual Insured shall not 
be imputed to any other Individual Insured; or 

2. any Organization if any past or present Chief 
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Operating Officer, Chairperson, Executive 
Director, Human Resources Manager, In-House 
General Counsel, Managing Member or Fiduciary 
of any Plan or any equivalent position of the 
Named Insured, or the signer of the Application, 
knew of such misrepresentations or knew of the 
facts or circumstances relating to such 
misrepresentations. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
VIII. CHANGES IN EXPOSURE 

 
Creation, Acquisition of  
or  Merger with Another 
Entity 

 
1. If, after the effective date of this Policy: 

a. the Organization creates, acquires, 
consolidates or merges with another nonprofit 
entity incorporated under the laws of a 
jurisdiction within the territorial United 
States, (hereafter referred to as “other entity”) 
such that the Organization is the surviving 
entity, and if as a result of such creation, 
acquisition, consolidation or merger, the other 
entity becomes a Subsidiary of the 
Organization, then coverage shall be 
provided for the other entity as an Insured 
solely for Wrongful Acts committed or 
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allegedly committed after the effective date of 
such creation, acquisition, consolidation or 
merger.  The Insured shall disclose full 
particulars of such a change to the Company 
as soon as practicable but not later than the 
expiration date of the Policy Year, or 
effective date of cancellation or non-renewal 
of this Policy. 

b. However, if at the time of an event described 
in Paragraph 1, a., above: 
i. the assets of the other entity exceed thirty 

five percent (35%) of the total assets of 
the Organization as reflected in the 
Organization’s  most recent annual 
financial statements; or 

ii. if the Employment Practices Liability 
Coverage Part is attached to this Policy, 
the total number of employees of the 
other entity exceeds thirty five (35%) of 
the total number of Employees of the 
Organization immediately prior to such 
event, then: 

 
the Named Insured shall provide to the 
Company written notice of  such 
creation, acquisition, consolidation or 
merger, containing full details thereof, as 
soon as practicable but within sixty (60) 
days of such event. The Company, at its 
sole discretion, may require additional 
premium and may alter the terms, 
conditions or limitations of coverage. 
The Company reserves the right to 
refuse any extension of coverage to such 
entity. 

2. If, after the effective date of this Policy, the 
Organization creates, acquires, consolidates or 
merges with a for-profit entity, or any entity 
incorporated outside of the territorial United 
States, such that the Organization is the 
surviving entity, and if as a result of such 
creation, acquisition, consolidation or merger, 
such for-profit or foreign entity becomes a 
Subsidiary of the Organization, then: 

 
the Named Insured shall provide to the 
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Company written notice of  such creation, 
acquisition, consolidation or merger, containing 
full details thereof, as soon as practicable but 
within sixty (60) days of such event. The 
Company, at its sole discretion, may require 
additional premium and may alter the terms, 
conditions or limitations of coverage. The 
Company reserves the right to refuse any 
extension of coverage to such entity. 

 
Cessation of Subsidiaries If during the Policy Period any Subsidiary ceases to be 

a Subsidiary, then coverage under this Policy shall 

continue for such Subsidiary and its Individual 

Insureds until the expiration of this Policy or the last 

Policy in an uninterrupted series of policies issued by 

the Company, but solely for Claims arising out of 

Wrongful Acts committed or allegedly committed by 

such Subsidiary or its Individual Insureds while such 

Subsidiary was a Subsidiary and prior to the effective 

date of such cessation. There shall be no coverage for 

Claims arising out of actual or alleged Wrongful Acts 

occurring on or after the effective date of cessation. 

Takeover of the  
Named Insured 

In the event of a Takeover of the Named Insured:  

1. coverage under this Policy shall continue until 

the earlier of: 

a. the expiration of the Policy Year; or 
b. if the Policy is cancelled or non-renewed, the 

effective date of cancellation or non-renewal; 
 

but only with respect to Claims arising out of 
Wrongful Acts that occurred or allegedly 
occurred prior to the effective date of the 
Takeover. There shall be no coverage for 
Claims arising out of actual or alleged 
Wrongful Acts occurring on or after the date 
of Takeover; 

 
2. the Named Insured shall give the Company 

written notice of the Takeover as soon as 
practicable, but not later than sixty (60) days after 
the effective date of the Takeover; and 

3. the premium for the Policy Year in which the 
Takeover occurred shall be deemed to be fully 
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earned.  The Named Insured shall have the right 
to purchase an Extended Reporting Period, 
subject to Section II. EXTENDED REPORTING 
PERIOD herein, to report Claims arising out of 
Wrongful Acts occurring prior to the effective 
date of any Takeover. 

 
Merger, Sale, Transfer or 
Termination of a Plan 

If after the inception date of the Fiduciary Liability 
Coverage Part, or the date the Fiduciary Liability 
Coverage Endorsement is added to this Policy: 
 

1. the sponsorship of a Plan is transferred so that an 
Organization is no longer the sole employer 
sponsor of such Plan; 

2. a Plan is merged with another plan for which 
coverage is not afforded under the Fiduciary 
Liability Coverage Part; 

3. a Plan is terminated or sold; or 
4. the Pension Benefit Guaranty Corporation 

(PBGC) becomes the Trustee of a Plan; 
 

then: 
 

a. in the case of paragraphs 1., 2. and 3. above, 
the Fiduciary Liability Coverage Part or the 
Fiduciary Liability Coverage Endorsement, as 
applicable, shall continue to apply to such 
transferred, merged, terminated or sold Plan, 
but solely for Claims based upon or arising 
out of Wrongful Acts that occurred or 
allegedly occurred prior to the date of such 
transfer, merger, termination or sale. There 
shall be no coverage for Claims arising out of 
actual or alleged Wrongful Acts occurring on 
or after the date of merger, transfer, 
termination or sale of any Plan as described 
in paragraphs 1., 2. and 3. above; or 

b. in the case of paragraph 4. above, the 
Fiduciary Liability Coverage Part or the 
Fiduciary Liability Coverage Endorsement 
shall continue to apply to such Plan for those 
who were Insureds at the time the PBGC 
became the Trustee of such Plan but solely 
for Claims based upon or arising out of 
Wrongful Acts that occurred or allegedly 
occurred prior to the date the PBGC became 
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the Trustee of such Plan. There shall be no 
coverage for Claims arising out of actual or 
alleged Wrongful Acts occurring on or after 
the date the PBGC becomes the Trustee of 
any Plan. 

 
Cancellation of the Policy If the Named Insured requests cancellation of this 

Policy as a result of a “Creation, Acquisition of or 
Merger with Another Entity”, “Cessation of 
Subsidiaries”, or “Takeover of the Named Insured”, the 
Company shall compute earned premium on a pro rata 
basis and return any unearned premium to such entity as 
of the effective date of such cancellation as long as 
notice of the event is provided to the Company as soon 
as practicable but not later than sixty (60) days after 
such event, together with such information as the 
Company may require. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
IX. LIMITS OF LIABILITY 

 
“Each Claim” 

 
The “Each Claim” Limit of Liability shown on the 
Policy Declarations is the Company’s maximum 
liability for Loss for each Claim to which the applicable 
Coverage Part applies, during each Policy Year. 

 
“In the Aggregate” 

 
The “In the Aggregate” Limit of Liability shown on the 
Policy Declarations is the Company’s maximum 
liability for Loss for all Claims to which the applicable 
Coverage Part applies, during each Policy Year. 

 
Policy Year Limits 

 
The Limits of Liability for any Policy Year may not be 
aggregated or transferred, in whole or in part, so as to 
provide any additional coverage with respect to Claims 
first made or deemed made, as provided in Section V. 
NOTICE AND CLAIM REPORTING PROVISIONS of 
these General Terms and Conditions during any other 
Policy Year.  If the applicable Limits of Liability for 
any Policy Year are exhausted, the Company’s 
obligation for that Policy Year shall be deemed 
completely fulfilled and extinguished. 

 
Extended Reporting  
Period Limits 

 
The Extended Reporting Period will not provide a new, 
separate or additional Limit of Liability.  The remainder 
of the Limit of Liability applicable to the Policy Year in 
effect as of the date of expiration, cancellation, or non-
renewal is the maximum Limit of Liability for all 
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Claims reported during the Extended Reporting Period. 
 
Defense Costs 

 
Defense Costs shall be in addition to the Limits of 
Liability for each Coverage Part purchased as shown 
on the Policy Declarations, unless as otherwise provided 
within that Coverage Part or by endorsement. 

 
Interrelated Claims 

 
More than one Claim involving the same Wrongful Act 
or Interrelated Wrongful Acts shall be considered as 
one Claim pursuant to Section V. NOTICE AND 
CLAIM REPORTING PROVISIONS, “Interrelated 
Claims” and shall be subject to the Limit of Liability in 
effect when the Claim was first made. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
X.        RETENTIONS AND PRESUMPTIVE INDEMNIFICATION 
 

Retentions Retentions set forth in the Policy Declarations for each 
Coverage Part shall apply per Claim per Policy Year 
under each respective Coverage Part. 
 
If more than one Retention applies to any one Claim 
then each applicable Retention shall be applied to the 
applicable part of such Claim, but the sum of such 
Retentions shall not exceed the highest of such 
applicable Retentions. 
 
Claims shall be subject to the Retention applicable to 
the Policy Year during which the Claims are first made 
as provided in Section V. NOTICE AND CLAIM 
REPORTING PROVISIONS. 
 
Except as otherwise provided by Section VII. TIMELY 
NOTICE AND RESOLUTION INCENTIVE of the 
Directors and Officers Coverage Part: 
 

1. the Company shall be liable to pay only Loss and 
Defense Costs in excess of the applicable 
Retention for the Coverage Part to which the 
Claim applies; 

2. the Company shall have no obligation to pay any 
part or all of such Retention on the Insured’s 
behalf; and 

3. if the Company, at its sole discretion, elects to 
pay any part of or all of such Retention, the 
Insured agrees to repay such amounts to the 
Company upon demand. 
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Presumptive Indemnification Regardless of whether Loss or Defense Costs resulting 

from any Claim against an Individual Insured is 
actually indemnified by the Organization, the 
applicable Retention set forth in the Policy Declarations 
shall apply to any Loss and Defense Costs if 
indemnification of the Individual Insured by the 
Organization is legally permissible. The certificate of 
incorporation, charter, articles of association or other 
organizational documents of the Organization, 
including by-laws and resolutions, will be deemed to 
have been adopted or amended to provide 
indemnification to the Individual Insured to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 
 
However, if an Individual Insured is not indemnified 
for Loss or Defense Costs solely by reason of: 
 

1. Financial Impairment; or 
2. a good faith determination by the Organization 

that such indemnification is not permitted by 
common or statutory law; then 

 
an Individual Insured’s Retention for this Coverage 
Part shall be amended to $0.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XI. SPOUSAL AND DOMESTIC PARTNER EXTENSION 

  
If a Claim against an Individual Insured includes a 
Claim against the lawful spouse or Domestic Partner 
of such Individual Insured solely by reason of: 
 

1. such spousal or Domestic Partner status;  or 
2. such spouse’s or Domestic Partner’s ownership 

interest in property or assets that are sought as 
recovery for Wrongful Acts; then 

 
any Loss which such spouse or Domestic Partner 
becomes legally obligated to pay on account of such 
Claim shall be deemed Loss which the Individual 
Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as a result of 
the Claim. 
 
This extension of coverage shall not apply to the extent a 
Claim alleges any Wrongful Act, error, omission, 
misstatement, misleading statement or neglect or breach 
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of duties by such spouse or Domestic Partner. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

XII.     SUBROGATION 
 

 In the event of payment under this Policy, the Company 
shall be subrogated to the Insureds’ rights of recovery. 
The Insured shall do everything necessary to secure 
such rights, including the execution of such documents 
necessary to enable the Company to effectively bring 
suit in the name of any Company.  
 
In no event, however, shall the Company exercise its 
rights to subrogation against an Individual Insured 
under this Policy unless such Individual Insured:  
 

1. has been convicted of a deliberate criminal act; or  
2. has been determined by a final adjudication 

adverse to the Individual Insured to have 
committed a deliberate fraudulent act, or to have 
obtained any profit, advantage or remuneration to 
which such Individual Insured was not legally 
entitled. 

  
In the event the Company shall for any reason pay 
indemnifiable Loss on behalf of an Individual Insured, 
the Company shall have the contractual right hereunder 
to recover from the Organization or any Subsidiary the 
amount of such Loss equal to the amount of the 
Retention not satisfied by the Organization or any 
Subsidiary and shall be subrogated to rights of the 
Individual Insureds hereunder. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XIII. CHANGES 
 

 Notice to any agent or knowledge by any agent shall not 
affect a waiver or change in any part of this Policy or 
stop the Company from asserting any right under the 
terms of this Policy, nor shall the terms of this Policy be 
waived or changed except by an endorsement, issued by 
the Company to form a part of this Policy.   

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XIV. AUTHORIZATION CLAUSE AND NOTICES 

  
By acceptance of this Policy, the Insured agrees that the 
Named Insured shall act on behalf of all Insureds with 
respect to: 
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1. the payment of premiums or the receipt of any 
return premiums that may become due under the 
Policy; 

2. the cancellation or non-renewal of this Policy; 
3. the effecting of any changes to the Policy or 

purchasing of an Extended Reporting Period; or 
4. the giving and receiving of all notices and 

correspondence. 
 
Any notice given to the Named Insured by the 
Company pursuant to Section VI. CANCELLATION 
OR NON-RENEWAL shall be deemed to be notice to 
all Insureds. 

______________________________________________________________________________
  

XV. ASSIGNMENT 
 

 Assignment of interest under this Policy shall not bind 
the Company until the Company’s consent is endorsed 
hereon. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XVI. OTHER INSURANCE 
 

 This Policy is excess of other valid and collectable 
insurance, unless such other insurance is specifically 
written to be in excess of this Policy. For purposes of 
this provision, “other valid and collectable insurance” 
means insurance provided by an entity or organization 
other than the Company.  
 
When it is determined that both this insurance and other 
insurance or self-insurance apply to any Claim on the 
same basis, whether primary,  excess or contingent, the 
Company shall not be liable under this Policy for a 
greater proportion of the Loss and Defense Costs than 
the applicable Limit of Liability under the Policy for 
such Loss and Defense Costs bears to the total 
applicable Limit of Liability of all valid and collectible 
insurance against such Claims. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XVII. TERMS OF POLICY 
            CONFORMED TO  

STATUTE 
 
 

 
Terms of this Policy which are in conflict with the 
statutes of the state or territory wherein this Policy is 
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issued are hereby amended to conform to such statutes. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XVIII. ACTION AGAINST THE COMPANY 

 
         Compliance 

 
No action shall lie against the Company unless, as a condition 
precedent thereto, there has been full compliance with all of 
the terms of this Policy, and until the amount of the Insured’s 
obligation to pay shall have been finally determined either by 
judgment against the Insured after actual trial or by the 
Insured’s written agreement, the claimant or the claimant’s 
legal representative, and the Company. 
 

         Rights to Recover Any person or the legal representatives thereof who has 
secured such judgment or written agreement shall thereafter be 
entitled to recover under this Policy to the extent of the 
insurance afforded by this Policy. No person or entity shall 
have any right under this Policy to join the Company as a 
party to any action against the Insured to determine the 
Insured’s liability, nor shall the Company be impleaded by 
the Insured or the Insured’s legal representatives. 
Bankruptcy or insolvency of the Insured or the Insured’s 
successors in interest shall not relieve the Company of its 
obligations hereunder. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XIX. POLICY TERRITORY   
 

 This Policy shall apply worldwide. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XX.  COORDINATION OF COVERAGE 
 

 Subject always to the applicable Limit of Liability, should two 
or more Coverage Parts apply to the same Claim, the 
Company will not pay more than the actual Loss incurred by 
the Insureds. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 XXI. ACCEPTANCE   
 

 This Policy embodies all agreements existing between the 
parties hereunder or any of their agents relating to this 
insurance. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
XXII. LIBERALIZATION   

  
If within forty-five (45) days of binding this Policy, the 
Company broadens coverage under any Coverage Part 
or the General Terms & Conditions attached to this 
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Policy, and; 
 

1. such broadened coverage applies to policies in the 
state or territory in which this Policy is written; 

2. the effective date of the policies which are to 
receive the broadened coverage is after the 
effective date of this Policy; and 

3. there is no additional premium charged for such 
broadened coverage; 

 
then the Company shall apply the broadened coverage 
to this Policy as applicable for no additional premium, 
but only for a Wrongful Act which first occurs after the 
effective date of such broadened coverage. 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
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UNITED STATES LIABILITY 

INSURANCE GROUP 
 

A STOCK COMPANY 
 

A BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY COMPANY 
 
 

1190 Devon Park Drive 
Wayne, PA 19087-2191 

CUSTOMER SERVICE:  888-523-5545 –  USLI.COM 

 

INSURANCE 

POLICY 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This policy jacket together with the policy declarations, 
coverage forms and endorsements, if any, complete 

this policy. 
 

The enclosed declarations designates the issuing 
company.
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INSURANCE POLICY 
 

 

Read your policy carefully! 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
In Witness Whereof, the company has caused this Policy to be executed and attested.  Where required by law, 
this Policy shall not be valid unless countersigned by a duly authorized representative of the company. 
 
Secretary   President 
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Pinellas	Community	Founda1on
Pinellas	CARES	Nonprofit	Partnership	Fund	Grant	Applica1on

DO	NOT	ADD	ANY	LINE	ITEMS	TO	THIS	BUDGET	SUMMARY.	IF	YOU	ARE	UNSURE	OF	
WHERE	A	COST	BELONGS,	PLEASE	CONTACT	PCF	STAFF.

Organiza(on	Name:	In	Touch	With	Communi(es	Around	The	World,	Inc.	dab:	Arts	Conservatory	for	Teens

Project	Name:	ACT	OUT	of	COVID19	-	COVID	Project-Behavioral	Health	Component

FROM	(date):	November	16,	2020		TO	(date):	December	30,	2020

Budget	Category/Line	Item Program	Budget	-	Total Pinellas	CARES	Grant

Personnel	(salaries,	wages,	benefits,	payroll	taxes,	4me	alloca4on	
on	the	project	for	all	personnel	involved	in	program) 4774 4774

Equipment	(computers,	furniture,	etc.,	less	than	$3,000	per	item)
7287 7287

Supplies	(office	materials,	program	related	purchases,	program	
necessi4es	to	deliver	services,	etc.) 0 0

Occupancy	(property	rent,	mortgage,	u(li(es,	telephone,	internet,	

etc.	assigned	as	program	expenses) 0 0

Local	Travel	(mileage,	tolls,	parking	for	regular	local	travel,	rental/

leasing	cost	of	transporta(on) 0 0

Training	(staff	development,	conferences,	long	distance	travel)
0 0

Design,	Prin(ng,	Marke(ng	&	Postage	(for	direct	program	

related	services	only) 1400 1400

Capital	(Buildings,	vehicles,	equipment	$3,000	or	more	per	item.	
The	purchase	of	capital	must	represent	the	lower	cost	op4on	for	the	
period	during	which	the	purchased	asset	would	be	used	for	COVID-
response	ac4vi4es)	 0 0

Purchased	Services	(consultants,	legal,	accoun4ng	services,	
logis4cal	partner	costs,	technology	enhancements,	computer	
soMware	licensing/agreements) 57,737.00 57,737.00

TOTAL
71198 71198

1



Pinellas Community Foundation PCF CARES Application  
BUDGET NARRATIVE FORM 
  
Organization Name: In Touch With Communities Around The World, Inc. dba: Arts Conservatory for Teens 

Project Name: (ACT COVID) Project (Behavioral Health Component)  

From: November 16, 2020 To December 30, 2020  
 

Personnel (salaries, wages, benefits, payroll taxes, time allocation, and a brief description of the responsibilities               
on the project for all personnel involved in the program) 
 
The Arts Conservatory for Teens’ mission is to educate, empower, and enrich the lives of youth and teens to                   
foster healthy, productive, and responsible citizens. For eight years, we have provided equitable access to               
underprivileged teens’ in our community through in-person services. Annually, ACT impacts 2,500 youth and              
teens by providing outreach in schools, recreation centers, youth detention centers, low-income neighborhoods,             
communities of color, and residents with language barriers. Amid COVID-19, our students and families              
experienced unprecedented psychological and emotional stress.  
 

In late 2019, the board at ACT voted to fund full time positions, and part time contractors in addition to our typical                      
operating expenses, and we were on track to pay all projected annual expenses, and then the COVID pandemic                  
occurred. The impact of COVID has challenged the organization in every aspect of its operation - demanding                 
more time for our staff and unforeseen expansion of our capacity. At the beginning of March, all in-person                  
programming ceased due to lockdowns and social distancing guidelines. We immediately adapted by re-engaging              
our consultants to provide support, guidance, and operational support to our team.  
 
Our team immediately focused on pivoting to an online virtual platform, to expand our services to ensure that all of                    
our students continued access to arts enrichment classes and therapeutic intervention programming. Our pivot              
included specialized digital outreach and communication, staff training for virtual instructions, online virtual             
platforms technology for classes and streaming special events for our students’ showcases and exhibits, video               
recordings for tutorials to accommodate students’ schedules due to the new school schedules and website               
redesign to effectively engage our spanish speaking population we serve. One of the primary focuses in our                 
transition from in-person to online was to ensure that we did not compromise the social-emotional wellness,                
mindfulness, and community connection of our programming to the youth and teens we serve. The outreach and                 
education we have provided our community has helped us to garner support from the community. Within 30-days                 
of the COVID-19 outbreak, we were able to re-engage 100 students through our newly implemented online virtual                 
platform. Support from the community was tremendous, ACT received support from Foundation for a Healthy,               
Creative Pinellas, and donors. We have acquired $16,000 in funding to transition our vital services to a digital                  
platform. Soon ACT was offering online virtual workshops and opportunities for engagement to students              
throughout Pinellas County.  
 

Since the COVID-19 outbreak in March 2020, we require support to expand and continue providing meaningful 
social-emotional wellness programming and behavioral health initiatives for our target populations, as well as 
deliver the different components of this individual project, we estimate the following costs: 
 

Personnel: 
$3,750 to pay the Executive Director. As a result time had to transition to the COVID_19 response efforts. THe                   
Executive Director’s Salary is $75,000 annually. This amount represents 5% of the Executive Director salary.               
Annual salary of $75,000 This amount is calculated at 11 hours a week @ $40 per hour = $1,875 per month for 2                       
months.  
 
$512 to pay for Assistant Program Coordinator. Amid COVID-19, Assistant Program Coordinator duties have              
expanded to managing virtual engagement with both students and parents, that includes assisting with student               
recruitment and retention, family engagement, program planning, including weekly activities and workshops, and             
efficient use of staff time. This position will work closely with the Project Coordinator to coordinate and clearly                  



communicate with instructors, families, LPOs, and the leadership team. As a result time had to transition to                 
(program) Show full time salary and breakdown. This amount is calculated at 4 hours a week @ $16 per hour =                     
$256 per month for 2 months. 
 
$512 to pay the Administrative Assistant. Amid COVID-19 our Administrative Assistant duties have increased and               
now include managing multi- online virtual databases purchased due to COVID, parent daily engagement              
announcements via email and text messaging, outgoing calls, additional scheduling, and additional fiduciary             
support roles and responsibilities due to COVID-19. This amount is calculated at 4 hours a week @ $16 per hour                    
= $256 per month for 2 months. 
 

Equipment 
$7,197.00 to purchase (3) Macbooks laptop computers dedicated for students without technology to participate in               
the online programming and engage with therapists and artistic instructors. Due to the technology requirements of                
arts programming software, Macbook is the industry standard. This will be purchased directly from Apple on their                 
website. 3 laptops @ $2,399 = $7,197 
 
$90 to pay (5) USB headsets with a noise-canceling microphone for youth participants to utilize during (12)                 
sessions and (2) assessments. Since youth are already experiencing so many distractions and diversions from               
their normal state due to COVID, the intent of the headsets is to eliminate additional detractions during sessions,                  
for both participants, and others who may be in the same room during Behavioral Health sessions. This will be                   
purchased at Best Buy. 3 headsets @ $30 = 90 
 

Supplies:  
None 
 
Occupancy: 
None 

 
Local Travel: 
None 
 
Design, Printing, Marketing & Postage: 
1,400 to pay for outreach materials to participants dealing with awareness of operations, Weekly Challenger               
Advertisement, website updates, web landing pages, Facebook promotions, Instagram promotions, etc. Amount is             
calculated at $550 per announcement x 2 = $1,100 - Awareness ad placed in Weekly Challenger Newspaper and                  
$300 for 5,000 Fliers.  
 

Capital:  
None 
 
Purchase Services 
$125 to pay for the General Liability insurance premium for the expansion of the Behavioral Health Component to                  
the Project, and for the addition of Pinellas Community Foundation to the Policy. The annual premium cost for GL                   
insurance is $750. If paid monthly, the premium would be $62.50 (12 months @ $62.50 = $750).  
 
$298 to pay for Zoom Licensed Membership for 2 months. Due to COVID-19, the majority of (ACT COVID) virtual                   
sessions will mostly be conducted through Zoom or Microsoft Team. In order not to have restrictions on the                  
number or virtual attendees or participants, it is highly recommended that a User Licensed be purchased at a                  
minimum monthly fee of $149.00. ($149.00 @ 2 months) = $298.00 
 
$4,500 to pay for New Vision Behavioral Health Inc, is an existing program partner of the organization, and a                   
community based-minority owned and operated business of licensed clinicians, with extensive knowledge,            
understanding, and expertise in dealing with the youth population. New Vision Behavioral Health Inc will facilitate,                
as a Licensed Mental Health Counselor (LMHC), Students will engage in (6) 1.50 hours virtual therapeutic group                 



intervention sessions, (2) one hour youth assessments, one on one counseling sessions on a need basis, and                 
virtual chat sessions with other youth participants and the therapist. This amount is based on 7.5 hours a week @                    
$75 per hour = $2,250 per month for 2 months.  
 
$4,500 to pay for BE THAT, LLC is a program partner of the organization, and a community-based-minority                 
owned and operated business, with extensive knowledge, understanding, and expertise in gender-specific            
empowerment and mental health programming. BE THAT, LLC will facilitate gender specific workshops because              
at this age girls demonstrate higher levels of stress because of puberty. The gender specific component provides                 
a more comforting environment where they can express themselves, without judgment, on how COVID-19 has               
impacted their lives. How they are dealing with the effects of physical distancing, the feelings of isolation or                  
detachment from family and friends. Duties include: (6) virtual-1.5 hours weekly sessions with participants. This               
amount is based on 7.5 hours a week @ $75 per hour = $2,250 per month for 2 months.  
 
$3,000 to pay for a ZOOM video conferencing specialist: Prior to COVID-19, the ACT organization conducted                
business and day to day operations from a totally different approach. Funding is being requested to hire a ZOOM                   
video conferencing specialist who will provide technology setup, technical support, and training on virtual              
meetings through Zoom to youth, LCSW, and project partners. Duties include: zoom virtual sessions setting up,                
problem-solving, overseeing/monitoring virtual breakout rooms, sharing of screens, operating screen          
visuals/documents, computers and/or software management, and other supportive and technical services. This            
amount is based on 7.5 hours a week @ $50 per hour = $1,500 per month for 2 months.  
 
$10,650 to pay a Communications and Outreach Specialist. This consultant position is needed in order to prepare                 
updates on the project initiatives for the audiences, with the press, to create informational flyers for the instructors                  
and students and to take information from the staff and parlay it into consumable data for the public. In addition,                    
the Communications and Outreach Specialist duties include project promotion, online awareness campaigns,            
digital promotions and graphic design. This amount is based on 7.5 hours a week @ $50 per hour = $1,500 per                     
month for 8 months.  
 
$2,564 to pay for website expansion bi-lingual outreach, effective communication and online virtual engagement              
amid COVID-19. Because we are delivering a digital medium, the organization’s digital footprint and web               
presence is extremely important. Registration, tracking and surveys, study guides and updates about the project               
will be accessible on our website. This is a temporary position and only needed because of this project and our                    
response to the COVID pandemic. This amount is based on a flat fee of $2,564 for services rendered.  
 
$3,800 to pay for Videographer for website and awareness materials design for bilingual students. Because we                
are delivering a digital medium, the organization’s digital footprint and web presence is extremely important.               
Registration, tracking and surveys, study guides and updates about the project will be accessible on our website.                 
This is a temporary position and only needed because of this project and our response to the COVID pandemic.                   
This amount is based on a flat fee of $3,800 for services rendered.  
 
$800 to pay for Photographer for website and awareness materials design for bilingual students. Because we are                 
delivering a digital medium, the organization’s digital footprint and web presence is extremely important.              
Registration, tracking and surveys, study guides and updates about the project will be accessible on our website.                 
This is a temporary position and only needed because of this project and our response to the COVID pandemic.                   
This amount is based on a flat fee of $800 for services rendered.  
 
$27,500 to pay for as the result of COVID-19, ACT reengaged a former project coordinator of ACT to assume the                    
duties as project coordinator in order for the executive director to redirect his efforts to sustain critical operations                  
and resource needs. The Project Coordinator is responsible for overall program delivery, evaluations and              
reporting on project deliverables. This amount is based on 10 hours a week @ $75 per hour = $3,000 per month                     
for 10 months. 
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Choose your new MacBook Pro.

Have questions about buying a Mac? Chat with a Specialist.

  

Get the new MacBook Pro starting at $1199 in our Education Store. Shop �

Pay for your new Mac over 12 months at 0% APR with Apple Card. Just apply for Apple Card Monthly Installments when you check out. Learn more �

13-inch
New

16-inch
Overview macOS Tech SpecsMacBook Pro

herberta.murphy
Highlight

herberta.murphy
Highlight
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Space Gray

2.6GHz 6-Core Processor 
512GB Storage 
AMD Radeon Pro 5300M

2.6GHz 6-core 9th-generation Intel Core i7
processor

Turbo Boost up to 4.5GHz

AMD Radeon Pro 5300M with 4GB of GDDR6
memory

16GB of 2666MHz DDR4 memory

512GB of SSD storage¹

16-inch Retina display with True Tone

Magic Keyboard

Touch Bar and Touch ID

Four Thunderbolt 3 ports

$199.91/mo. for 12 mo.*
Learn how to pay monthly at 0% APR with
Apple Card Monthly Installments

or

$2,399.00

Apple Trade In

Get credit toward a new Mac when you trade in
your eligible computer Or recycle it for free*

Space Gray

2.3GHz 8-Core Processor 
1TB Storage 
AMD Radeon Pro 5500M

2.3GHz 8-core 9th-generation Intel Core i9
processor

Turbo Boost up to 4.8GHz

AMD Radeon Pro 5500M with 4GB of GDDR6
memory

16GB of 2666MHz DDR4 memory

1TB of SSD storage¹

16-inch Retina display with True Tone

Magic Keyboard

Touch Bar and Touch ID

Four Thunderbolt 3 ports

$233.25/mo. for 12 mo.*
Learn how to pay monthly at 0% APR with
Apple Card Monthly Installments

or

$2,799.00

Apple Trade In

Get credit toward a new Mac when you trade in
your eligible computer Or recycle it for free*

13-inch
New

16-inch

herberta.murphy
Highlight

herberta.murphy
Highlight

herberta.murphy
Highlight
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ACT StPete <actstpetersburg@gmail.com>

Price request on Acidflyers for Door Hangers 
1 message

no-reply@acidflyers.com <no-reply@acidflyers.com> Tue, Nov 10, 2020 at 3:47 PM
Reply-To: no-reply@acidflyers.com
To: actstpetersburg@gmail.com
Cc: zach@acidflyers.com

Here is the price request that was generated on the acidflyers.com website: 
 

Door Hangers

Size: 3.5x8.5 
Quantity: 5000 
Paper Type: 14PT Cardstock 
Coating Type: High Gloss UV1 
Colors: 4/4 - Print Both Sides 
Print Turnaround: 5 Business Days 
Scoring: No Scoring 
Perforation: No Perforation 
Rounded Corners: No Rounded Corners 
Additional Colors: No Additional Colors 
Die-Cutting: Yes Die-Cutting 
Must Be Exact Trim Size: Yes 
Adjust My Artwork: My Artwork is Print Ready 
 
Total: $418.00 
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ACT StPete <actstpetersburg@gmail.com>

Price request on Acidflyers for Flyers 
1 message

no-reply@acidflyers.com <no-reply@acidflyers.com> Tue, Nov 10, 2020 at 3:46 PM
Reply-To: no-reply@acidflyers.com
To: actstpetersburg@gmail.com
Cc: zach@acidflyers.com

Here is the price request that was generated on the acidflyers.com website: 
 

Flyers

Size: 5.5x8.5 
Quantity: 5000 
Paper Type: 14PT Cardstock 
Coating Type: High Gloss UV1 
Colors: 4/4 - Print Both Sides 
Print Turnaround: 3-5 Business Days 
Scoring: No Scoring 
Folding: No Folding 
Perforation: No Perforation 
Rounded Corners: No Rounded Corners 
Additional Colors: No Additional Colors 
Die-Cutting: No Die-Cutting
Must Be Exact Trim Size: Yes 
Adjust My Artwork: My Artwork is Print Ready 
Mailing Services: No Mailing Services 



In Touch With Communities Around The World, Inc. 
Arts Conservatory for Teens 

Executive Compensation and Benefits Plan 2020-2021 
Chief Executive Officer: Alex Harris 

Travel based on 21-day work month @ $17.86 per day 
Meals based on 21-day work month @ $33.00 per day 

Annual salary for Executive Director in southeast region averages $90,907 based on budgets $500,000 
- $999,999 and Scope of Work Category (Arts, Culture, and Humanities) Source: 2019 Nonprofit 
Organizations Top Executive Positions Salary and Special Perks Report, Bluewater Nonprofit Solutions 

Category
Scope of Work SE 

Region
Recommendation

Salary $90,907 $75,000

Car Allowance $4,500

Travel Expenses $4,500

Meals $8,316

Home Office $1,200

Cell Phone $1,800

Healthcare Benefits $4,400

Defined Contribution Plan 
4.5% of salary $3,240

Total $90,907 $102,956



Arts Conservatory for Teens 
Education | Empowerment | Enrichment  
WHAT INSPIRES YOU? 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR’S  AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made this 1st day of November 2020 by and between a provider of consultant services,                 
and ACT (Arts Conservatory for Teens), a not-for-profit 501c3 organization hereinafter referred to as ACT, a                
subsidiary of In Touch With Communities Around the World, Inc., with principal administrative offices at 111                
18th Avenue South, St. Petersburg, FL 33705. 
  
WHEREAS , BE THAT, LLC is engaged in the business of providing program services for the ACT. 
WHEREAS , ACT is interested in contracting services with BE THAT, LLC for program services. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement, BE THAT,                 
LLC and ACT agree as follows: 

SECTION I 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
The terms of this Agreement shall begin November 1, 2020, and continue until January 1, 2021. This Agreement                  
shall be renewed upon written agreement of both parties. 

SECTION II 

RESPONSIBILITIES and DELIVERABLES 
Responsibilities include supporting programming for ACT COVID-19 Response Efforts: The Art of Health &              
Wellness programs. 

The Consultant Agrees To: 
● Provide gender-specific empowerment and mental health programming for up to fifty girls ages 11-18.  
● Facilitate (6) virtual-1.5 hours weekly workshops from a curriculum-based approach designed to foster             

resiliency, develop coping skills,  and decrease the spread during the COVID19 pandemic.  
● Conduct all workshops via ACT dedicate ZOOM meeting platform. 
● Attend all weekly scheduled meetings via phone or video conferencing. 
● Adhere to and enforce ACT Instructor's Policy Manual. 
● Process and submit students’ behaviors, progress, disciplinary actions, issues, or concerns within one             

hour of the incident to ACT Administration through the use of the Administrative Notes. Instructors are                
responsible for bringing all matters or issues directly to the ACT Administration. 

SECTION III 

PAYMENT 
Compensation: (a) $4,500 (Forty-five Hundred- dollars) for full program services;  
Pay Schedule: (2) two equal payments of $2,250 (Two Thousand Two Hundred- Fifty dollars). The first                
payment of $2,250 (Two Thousand Two Hundred- Fifty dollars) will be paid as a retainer for the program                  



service upon the execution of this contract. ACT agrees to pay the second payment at the final conclusion and                   
fully executed services are rendered within 10 working days after the submission of the approved monthly                
invoice. If payment is not made by the agreed-upon dates then the Contractor has the right to discontinue                  
services until payment has been made. 

SECTION IV 

INSURANCES 
ACT agrees to maintain liability insurance with an aggregate of at least $1,000,000 personal injury coverage. 

SECTION V 

RETENTION OF RECORDS 
ACT agrees to the retention of all records pertinent to this Agreement for one (6) months after ACT makes final                    
payment hereunder instructor shall provide copies of any or all records to ACT upon request. The format shall                  
be either paper or electronic, as maintained by the Contractor.   

SECTION VI 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
ACT shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause at anytime, by giving written notice                   
by certified mail. Contracted shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause, by giving                  
written notice by certified mail to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the termination.                     
Early termination without 30 days notice must be agreed upon in writing by both parties. 

SECTION VII 

INDEMNIFICATION 
Contracted agrees to indemnify and hold ACT, its trustees, officers or employees harmless from and against any                 
and all liabilities, losses, injury and/or damages, claims, cost, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’              
fees) to persons or property (including personal and real property) incurred by ACT in connection with ACT’s                 
execution, delivery, or performance of this Agreement and resulting in whole or in part from the negligence or                  
willful misconduct of instructor. ACT agrees to indemnify and hold the instructor, its trustees, officers or                
employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities, losses, injury and/or damages, claims, cost, and                
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to persons or property (including personal and real property)              
incurred by ACT in connection with instructor’s execution, delivery, or performance of this Agreement and               
resulting in whole or in part from the negligence or willful misconduct of ACT. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first written above. 
 
  
By:_______________________________________ Date:_____________________ 
       Roneisha M. Randall, CEO 
       BE THAT, LLC     
  
By:_______________________________________ Date:_____________________ 
     Dr. Alex Harris, Chief Executive Officer & Co-Founder  

11/10/2020

11/10/2020



Arts Conservatory for Teens 
Education | Empowerment | Enrichment  
WHAT INSPIRES YOU? 

 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR’S  AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made this 1st day of November 2020 by and between a provider of consultant services,                 
and ACT (Arts Conservatory for Teens), a not-for-profit 501c3 organization hereinafter referred to as ACT, a                
subsidiary of In Touch With Communities Around the World, Inc., with principal administrative offices at 111                
18th Avenue South, St. Petersburg, FL 33705. 
  
WHEREAS , New Vision Behavioral Health Inc is engaged in the business of providing therapeutic intervention               
and mental health programming services for the ACT. 
WHEREAS , ACT is interested in contracting services with New Vision Behavioral Health Inc for therapeutic               
intervention and mental health programming services. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement, New Vision                 
Behavioral Health Inc. and ACT agree as follows: 

SECTION I 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
The terms of this Agreement shall begin November 1, 2020, and continue until January 1, 2021. This Agreement                  
shall be renewed upon written agreement of both parties. 

SECTION II 

RESPONSIBILITIES and DELIVERABLES 
Responsibilities include supporting programming for ACT COVID-19 Response Efforts: The Art of Health &              
Wellness programs. 

The Consultant Agrees To: 
● Provide therapeutic intervention and mental health programming for up to 100 youth and teens. 
● Provide therapeutic intervention workshops: six (6) 1.50 hours virtual therapeutic group intervention            

sessions, one on one counseling sessions on a need basis, virtual chat sessions with the therapist, and                 
therapeutic services to students to relieve the stress of the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

● Conduct (2) one-hour youth assessments. 
● Conduct all workshops via ACT dedicated ZOOM meeting platform. 
● Attend all weekly scheduled meetings via phone or video conferencing. 
● Adhere to and enforce ACT Instructor's Policy Manual. 
● Process and submit students’ behaviors, progress, disciplinary actions, issues, or concerns within one             

hour of the incident to ACT Administration through the use of the Administrative Notes. Instructors are                
responsible for bringing all matters or issues directly to the ACT Administration. 

SECTION III 

PAYMENT 
Compensation: (a) $4,500 (Forty-five Hundred- dollars) for full consulting services;  



Pay Schedule: (2) two equal payments of $2,250 (Two Thousand Two Hundred- Fifty dollars). The first                
payment of $2,250 (Two Thousand Two Hundred- Fifty dollars) will be paid as a retainer for the therapeutic                  
intervention and mental health programming services upon the execution of this contract. ACT agrees to pay the                 
second payment at the final conclusion and fully executed services are rendered within 10 working days after the                  
submission of the approved monthly invoice. If payment is not made by the agreed-upon dates then the                 
Contractor has the right to discontinue services until payment has been made. 

SECTION IV 

INSURANCES 
ACT agrees to maintain liability insurance with an aggregate of at least $1,000,000 personal injury coverage. 

SECTION V 

RETENTION OF RECORDS 
ACT agrees to the retention of all records pertinent to this Agreement for one (6) months after ACT makes final                    
payment hereunder instructor shall provide copies of any or all records to ACT upon request. The format shall                  
be either paper or electronic, as maintained by the Contractor.   

SECTION VI 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
ACT shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause at anytime, by giving written notice                   
by certified mail. Contractor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause, by giving                  
written notice by certified mail to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the termination.                     
Early termination without 30 days notice must be agreed upon in writing by both parties. 

SECTION VII 

INDEMNIFICATION 
Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold ACT, its trustees, officers or employees harmless from and against any                 
and all liabilities, losses, injury and/or damages, claims, cost, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’              
fees) to persons or property (including personal and real property) incurred by ACT in connection with ACT’s                 
execution, delivery, or performance of this Agreement and resulting in whole or in part from the negligence or                  
willful misconduct of instructor. ACT agrees to indemnify and hold the instructor, its trustees, officers or                
employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities, losses, injury and/or damages, claims, cost, and                
expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to persons or property (including personal and real property)              
incurred by ACT in connection with instructor’s execution, delivery, or performance of this Agreement and               
resulting in whole or in part from the negligence or willful misconduct of ACT. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first written above. 
  
By:_______________________________________ Date:_____________________ 
       Zaneta Ellison, CEO 
       New Vision Behavioral Health Inc     
  
By:_______________________________________ Date:_____________________ 
     Dr. Alex Harris, Chief Executive Officer & Co-Founder  

11/10/2020

11/10/2020



Arts Conservatory for Teens 
Education | Empowerment | Enrichment  
WHAT INSPIRES YOU? 

 

 

 

CONTRACTED CONSULTANT’S  AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made this 12th day of March 2020 by and between a provider of consultant services, and                  
ACT (Arts Conservatory for Teens), a not-for-profit 501c3 organization hereinafter referred to as ACT, a               
subsidiary of In Touch With Communities Around the World, Inc., with principal administrative offices at 111                
18th Avenue South, St. Petersburg, FL 33705. 
  
WHEREAS , Herbert A. Murphy is engaged in the business of providing consulting services for the ACT. 
WHEREAS , ACT is interested in contracting services with Herbert A. Murphy for consulting services. 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement, Herbert A.                 
Murphy and ACT agree as follows: 

SECTION I 

TERMS OF AGREEMENT 
The terms of this Agreement shall begin March 12, 2020, and continue until March 11, 2021. This Agreement                  
shall be renewed upon written agreement of both parties. 

SECTION II 

RESPONSIBILITIES and DELIVERABLES 
Responsibilities include supporting all components and capacities of the ACT COVID-19 Response Efforts:  

The Consultant Agrees To: 
● Project Coordination (Planning, Recruitment, Assessments, Monitoring, Evaluations, Reporting) 
● Fiscal Management  
● Sub-contracts Management  
● Purchasing and Procurement Management 
● MOUs and Subcontractors Agreements Management 

SECTION III 

PAYMENT 
Compensation: (a) $75.00 (Seventy-Five dollars) per hour for monthly consulting services;  
Pay Schedule: ACT agrees to pay Contracted Consultant within 10 working days after submission of approved                
monthly invoices. If payment is not made by the agreed-upon dates then the Contracted Consultant has the right                  
to discontinue services until payment has been made. 
 



SECTION IV 

INSURANCES 
ACT agrees to maintain liability insurance with an aggregate of at least $1,000,000 personal injury coverage. 

SECTION V 

RETENTION OF RECORDS 
ACT agrees to the retention of all records pertinent to this Agreement for one (6) months after ACT makes final                    
payment hereunder instructor shall provide copies of any or all records to ACT upon request. The format shall                  
be either paper or electronic, as maintained by the Contracted Consultant.   

SECTION VI 

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 
ACT shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause at anytime, by giving written notice                   
by certified mail. Contracted Consultant shall have the right to terminate this Agreement with or without cause,                 
by giving written notice by certified mail to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of the                      
termination. Early termination without 30 days notice must be agreed upon in writing by both parties. 

SECTION VII 

INDEMNIFICATION 
Contracted Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold ACT, its trustees, officers or employees harmless from and                
against any and all liabilities, losses, injury and/or damages, claims, cost, and expenses (including reasonable               
attorneys’ fees) to persons or property (including personal and real property) incurred by ACT in connection                
with ACT’s execution, delivery, or performance of this Agreement and resulting in whole or in part from the                  
negligence or willful misconduct of instructor. ACT agrees to indemnify and hold the instructor, its trustees,                
officers or employees harmless from and against any and all liabilities, losses, injury and/or damages, claims,                
cost, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) to persons or property (including personal and real               
property) incurred by ACT in connection with instructor’s execution, delivery, or performance of this              
Agreement and resulting in whole or in part from the negligence or willful misconduct of ACT. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year first written above. 
 
  
By:_______________________________________ Date:_____________________ 
       Herbert A. Murphy, CEO 
       Business Advancement Solutions     
  
By:_______________________________________ Date:_____________________ 
     Dr. Alex Harris, Chief Executive Officer & Co-Founder  

03/12/2020

03/12/2020


